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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

☒QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934


For the quarterly period ended June September 30, 2023

OR or

☐TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to.  to

Commission File Number: 001-40021

AEON Biopharma, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Priveterra Acquisition Corp.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 001-39945 85-3940478

(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation)


incorporation or organization)

(Commission

File Number)

(I.R.S.

Employer




Identification

Number)

300 SE 2nd Street, Suite 600 5 Park Plaza

Fort Lauderdale Suite 1750

Irvine, FL CA 33301 92614

(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

(754 949) 220-9229 354-6499

(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code

Not Applicable telephone number)

(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered

Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share PMGM The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC
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Redeemable warrants, each warrant exercisable for one share of

Class A common stock at an exercise price of $11.50

PMGMW The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC

Units, each consisting of one share of Class A common stock and

one-third of one redeemable warrant

PMGMU The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1)  has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d)  of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the

preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past

90 days.   Yes  ☒    No  ☐

​

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of

Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files).

  Yes  ☒    No   ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an

emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company”

in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ☐ Accelerated filer ☐

Non-accelerated filer ☒ Smaller reporting company ☒

Emerging growth company ☒ ​

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised

financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. ☐

​

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).   Yes  ☒ ☐    No  ☐ ☒

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Trading symbol Name of Exchange on which registered

Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value per share AEON NYSE American

Warrants to purchase Class A common stock AEON WS NYSE American

As of July 21, 2023 November 8, 2023, 2,002,272 there were 37,159,600 of the registrant’s shares of Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value $0.0001 per share, outstanding.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this “Report”) contains certain statements that are "forward-looking statements" within the meaning

of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the "Reform Act"). All statements other than statements of historical facts contained in

this Report, including statements concerning possible or assumed future actions, business strategies, events or results of operations, and

6,900,000 sharesany statements that refer to projections, forecasts or other characterizations of future events or circumstances, including any

underlying assumptions, are forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other

important factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,

performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements.

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “may,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “could,”

“intend,” “target,” “project,” “contemplate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other

similar expressions. The forward-looking statements in this Report are only predictions. We have based these forward-looking statements
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largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends that we believe may affect our business, financial

condition and results of operations. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Report and are subject to a number of

important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements, including the risks,

uncertainties and assumptions. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks, including, without limitation, the following:

● the anticipated growth rate and market opportunities of AEON;

● the ability to maintain the listing of Class A common stock and the warrants on NYSE American;

● AEON’s public securities’ potential liquidity and trading;

● AEON’s ability to raise financing in the future;

● AEON’s success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, officers, key employees or directors;

● factors relating to the business, operations and financial performance of AEON, including:

● the initiation, cost, timing, progress and results of research and development activities, preclinical studies or clinical trials with respect to
AEON’s current and potential future product candidates;

● AEON’s ability to identify, develop and commercialize its main product candidate, botulinum toxin complex, ABP-450 (prabotulinumtoxinA)
injection (“ABP-450”);

● AEON’s ability to obtain a Biologics License Application for therapeutic uses of ABP-450;

● AEON’s ability to advance its current and potential future product candidates into, and successfully complete, preclinical studies and clinical
trials;

● AEON’s ability to obtain and maintain regulatory approval of its current and potential future product candidates, and any related restrictions,
limitations and/or warnings in the label of an approved product candidate;

● AEON’s ability to obtain funding for its operations;

● AEON’s ability to obtain and maintain intellectual property protection for its technologies and any of its product candidates;

● AEON’s ability to successfully commercialize its current and any potential future product candidates;

● the rate and degree of market acceptance of AEON’s current and any potential future product candidates;

● regulatory developments in the United States and international jurisdictions;

● potential liability, lawsuits and penalties related to AEON’s technologies, product candidates and current and future relationships with third
parties;

● AEON’s ability to attract and retain key scientific and management personnel;

● AEON’s ability to effectively manage the growth of its operations;

● AEON’s ability to contract with third-party suppliers and manufacturers and their ability to perform adequately under those arrangements,
particularly the Company’s license and supply agreement with Daewoong Pharmaceutical Co.

Table of Contents

Ltd. (the 

“Daewoong Agreement”);

● AEON’s ability to compete effectively with existing competitors and new market entrants;

● potential effects of extensive government regulation;

● AEON’s future financial performance and capital requirements;

● AEON’s ability to implement and maintain effective internal controls;

● the impact of supply chain disruptions; and

● the impact of macroeconomic developments beyond our control, such as health epidemics or pandemics, macro-economic uncertainties,
social unrest, hostilities, natural disasters or other catastrophic events, on AEON’s business, including its preclinical studies, clinical studies and
potential future clinical trials.

The preceding list is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all of our forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-looking

statements on our current expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections. While we believe these expectations, assumptions,

estimates and projections are reasonable, such forward-looking statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown risks and

uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. These and other important factors, including those discussed in this Report, may cause

our actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or

implied by these forward-looking statements. Given these risks and uncertainties, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such
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forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included elsewhere in this Report are not guarantees of future performance and

our actual results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in which we operate, may differ

materially from the forward-looking statements included elsewhere in this Report. In addition, even if our results of operations, financial

condition and liquidity, and events in the industry in which we operate, are consistent with the forward-looking statements included

elsewhere in this Report, they may not be predictive of results or developments in future periods.

Any forward-looking statement that we make in this Report speaks only as of the date of such statement. Except as required by law, we do

not undertake any obligation to update or revise, or to publicly announce any update or revision to, any of the forward-looking statements,

whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, after the date of this Report. For all of our forward-looking statements, we

claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Reform Act.

As used in this Report, unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise requires: “we,” “us,” “our,” “AEON,” the “Company,” and similar

references refer to AEON Biopharma, Inc. and its subsidiaries, and “common stock” refers to our Class B A common stock, par value $0.0001 per

share, were issued and outstanding. stock.
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PART I. FINANCIALI —FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

PRIVETERRA ACQUISITION CORP.AEON BIOPHARMA, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETSSHEETS

(in thousands, except share data and par value amounts)

     June 30,       December 31, 

2023 2022

(unaudited)

Assets

Current assets

Cash $ 441,377 $ 67,909

Prepaid assets   150,721   41,287

Total Current Assets 592,098 109,196

Cash and Investments held in Trust Account 21,193,395 279,384,429

Total Assets $ 21,785,493 $ 279,493,625

Liabilities, Common Stock Subject to Possible Redemption and Stockholders’ Deficit    

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 6,960,841 $ 2,620,682

Franchise tax payable 16,232 226,936
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Promissory Note – Related Party 1,000,000 150,000

Deferred tax liability — 588,899

Excise tax liability 424,059 —

Income tax payable 1,059,625 294,430

Total current liabilities 9,460,757 3,880,947

Warrant liabilities   1,336,725   669,759

Deferred underwriting commission   1,255,800   5,892,600

Total liabilities   12,053,282   10,443,306

      

Commitments and Contingencies       

Class A common stock subject to possible redemption, 2,002,272 shares and 27,600,000 shares as of June

30, 2023, and December 31, 2022, at redemption value of $10.58 and $10.09, respectively 21,193,395 278,487,272

      

Stockholders’ Deficit:       

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued or outstanding as of June

30, 2023 and December 31, 2022   —   —

Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value; 280,000,000 shares authorized; 0 shares issued and

outstanding (excluding 2,002,272 and 27,600,000 shares subject to possible redemption as of June 30,

2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively)   —   —

Class B common stock, $0.0001 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; 6,900,000 shares issued and

outstanding at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022   690   690

Additional paid-in capital   32,000   32,000

Accumulated deficit (11,493,874) (9,469,643)

Total Stockholders’ Deficit   (11,461,184)   (9,436,953)

Total Liabilities, Common Stock Subject to Possible Redemption and Stockholders’ Deficit $ 21,785,493 $ 279,493,625

Successor Predecessor

September 30,  December 31, 

     2023      2022

(Unaudited)

ASSETS         

Current assets:         

Cash $ 16,177 $ 9,746

Prepaid expenses and other current assets   734   92

Total current assets   16,911   9,838

Property and equipment, net   356   431

Operating lease right-of-use asset   323   475

Other assets   29   34

Total assets $ 17,619 $ 10,778

LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT          

Current liabilities:          

Accounts payable $ 4,013 $ 7,805

Accrued clinical trials expenses   5,641   2,051

Accrued compensation   1,020   1,112

Excise tax payable 569 —

Other accrued expenses   2,934   740

Current portion of convertible notes at fair value, including related party amount of $0 and $38,834 at

September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively   —   70,866

Total current liabilities   14,177   82,574

Convertible notes at fair value, including related party amount of $0 and $23,132, at September 30, 2023

and December 31, 2022, respectively   —   60,426

Operating lease liability   52   242

Warrant liability 2,172 —

Contingent consideration liability 74,505 —
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Embedded forward purchase agreements and derivative liabilities 48,453 —

Total liabilities   139,359   143,242

Commitments and contingencies          

Convertible preferred stock issuable in series, $0.0001 par value; 44,666,035 shares authorized as of

December 31, 2022; 21,257,708 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2022; liquidation preference

of $141,920 at December 31, 2022   —   137,949

Stockholders’ Deficit:          

AEON Biopharma, Inc. stockholders’ deficit:          

Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value; 500,000,000 and 207,450,050 shares authorized, 37,159,600 and

138,848,177 shares issued and 37,159,600 and 138,825,356 shares outstanding at September 30, 2023 and

December 31, 2022, respectively   4   14

Additional paid-in capital   362,114   187,348

Subscription receivables (60,710) —

Accumulated deficit   (423,148)   (474,839)

Treasury stock, at cost, 0 and 22,821 shares at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively   —   (23)

Total AEON Biopharma, Inc. stockholders’ deficit   (121,740)   (287,500)

Non-controlling interest   —   17,087

Total stockholders' deficit   (121,740)   (270,413)

Total liabilities, convertible preferred stock and stockholders' deficit $ 17,619 $ 10,778

The See accompanying notes are an integral part of to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. statements

31
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PRIVETERRA ACQUISITION CORP.AEON BIOPHARMA, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(in thousands, except share and per share data) (Unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended

June 30,  June 30, 

     2023      2022      2023      2022

Operating costs $ 3,526,521 $ 427,204 $ 5,270,006 $ 816,277

Loss from operations (3,526,521) (427,204) (5,270,006) (816,277)

Other (expense) income

Unrealized change in fair value of warrants (524,114) 2,173,893 (666,966) 5,206,773

Gain on forgiveness of deferred underwriting fee payable — — 200,087 —

Interest earned on investments held in Trust Account 199,960 137,380 1,902,329 266,966

Total other (expense) income, net (324,154) 2,311,273 1,435,450 5,473,739

(Loss) Income before provision for income taxes (3,850,675) 1,884,069 (3,834,556) 4,657,462

Provision for income taxes (91,662) (16,965) (496,296) (16,965)

Net (loss) income $ (3,942,337) $ 1,867,104 $ (4,330,852) $ 4,640,497

       

Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding, Class A common

stock   2,002,272   27,600,000   7,559,570 27,600,000

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share, Class A common stock $ (0.44) $ 0.05 $ (0.30) $ 0.13
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Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding, Class B common

stock   6,900,000   6,900,000   6,900,000   6,900,000

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share, Class B common stock $ (0.44) $ 0.05 $ (0.30) $ 0.13

     Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30,  September 30, 

2023      2022 2023      2022

Predecessor 

July 1 to 

July 21          

Successor 


July 22 to

September 30

Predecessor


July 1 to

September 30         

Predecessor 

January 1 to 


July 21          

Successor 

July 22 to

September 30

Predecessor


January 1 to

September 30

Operating expenses:                      

Selling, general and

administrative $ 1,055 $ 5,460 $ 2,436 $ 9,841 $ 5,460 $ 8,171

Research and development   1,573   6,383   7,477   19,803   6,383   25,225

Change in fair value of

contingent consideration   —   (69,715)   —   —   (69,715)   —

Total operating costs and

expenses   2,628   (57,872)   9,913   29,644   (57,872)   33,396

(Loss) income from operations   (2,628)   57,872   (9,913)   (29,644)   57,872   (33,396)

Other (loss) income:                              

Change in fair value of

convertible notes   2,582   —   (666)   (3,528)   —   15,261

Change in fair value of

warrants   —   1,593   —   —   1,593   —

Change in fair value of

embedded forward purchase

agreements and derivative

liabilities (4,959) (15,776) — (4,959)   (15,776)   —

Other income, net   5   186   141   114   186   142

Total other (loss) income,

net   (2,372)   (13,997)   (525)   (8,373)   (13,997)   15,403

(Loss) income before taxes   (5,000)   43,875   (10,438)   (38,017)   43,875   (17,993)

Income taxes   —   —   —   —   —   —

(Loss) Income and

comprehensive (loss) income $ (5,000) $ 43,875 $ (10,438) $ (38,017) $ 43,875 $ (17,993)

Basic and diluted net (loss)

income per share $ (0.04) $ 1.19 $ (0.08) $ (0.28) $ 1.19 $ (0.13)

Weighted average shares of

common stock outstanding

used to compute basic and

diluted net (loss) income per

share 138,848,177 37,159,600 138,848,177 138,848,177 37,159,600 138,848,177

The

See accompanying notes are an integral part of to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. statements

42
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PRIVETERRA ACQUISITION CORP.

AEON BIOPHARMA, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

(Unaudited)

FOR THE THREE AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023(in thousands, except share data) (Unaudited)

Common Stock Additional Total

Class A Class B Paid-in Accumulated Stockholders’

     Shares      Amount      Shares      Amount      Capital      Deficit      Deficit

Balance — January 1, 2023 — $ — 6,900,000 $ 690 $ 32,000 $ (9,469,643) $ (9,436,953)

Accretion of Class A common stock to redemption value — — — — — 2,931,576 2,931,576

Excise tax imposed on common stock redemptions — — — — — (424,059) (424,059)

Net loss — — — — — (388,515) (388,515)

Balance - March 31, 2023 (unaudited) — — 6,900,000 690 32,000 (7,350,641) (7,317,951)

Accretion of Class A common stock to redemption value — — — — — (200,896) (200,896)

Net loss — — — — — (3,942,337) (3,942,337)

Balance — June 30, 2023 (unaudited) — $ — 6,900,000 $ 690 $ 32,000 $ (11,493,874) $ (11,461,184)

     Convertible               Additional                                 Non-      Total

Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Subscription Accumulated Treasury Stock controlling Stockhold

Shares      Amount Shares Amount Capital Receivables Deficit Shares Amount Interest Deficit

Balance as of June 30, 2023 (Predecessor)   21,257,708 $137,949   138,848,177 $ 14 $ 204,384 $ — $ (507,856)   (22,821) $ (23) $ 19,592 $ (283,8

Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (5,000)   —   —   —   (5,0

Stock-based compensation expense   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   729   7

Balance as of July 21, 2023 (Predecessor)   21,257,708 $137,949   138,848,177 $ 14 $ 204,384 $ — $ (512,856)   (22,821) $ (23) $ 20,321 $ (288,1

Balance as of July 22, 2023 (Successor)   — $ —   37,159,600 $ 4 $ 359,753 $ (60,710) $ (467,023) $ — $ — $ — $ (167,9

Net income —   —   —   —   —   —   43,875   —   —   — 43,8

Stock-based compensation expense —   —   —   —   2,361   —   —   —   —   — 2,3

Balance as of September 30, 2023 (Successor)   — $ —   37,159,600 $ 4 $ 362,114 $ (60,710) $ (423,148)   — $ — $ — $ (121,7

Balance as of June 30, 2022 (Predecessor)   21,257,708 $137,949   138,848,177 $ 14 $ 187,348 $ — $ (429,838) $(22,821) $ (23) $ 14,271 $ (228,2

Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (10,438)   —   —   —   (10,4

Stock-based compensation expense   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   1,073   1,0

Balance as of September 30, 2022 (Predecessor)  21,257,708 $137,949   138,848,177 $ 14 $ 187,348 $ — $ (440,276)   (22,821) $ (23) $ 15,344 $ (237,5
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AEON BIOPHARMA, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

(in thousands, except share data) (Unaudited) (Continued)

FOR THE THREE AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Class A Class B Additional Total

Common Stock Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated Stockholders’

     Shares      Amount      Shares      Amount      Capital      Deficit      Deficit

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us

©2023 Refi nitiv.  Al l  rights reserved. Republ ication or redistribution of Refi nitiv content, including
by fram ing or sim i lar m eans, is prohibi ted
w ithout the prior w ri tten consent of Refi nitiv.  'Refi nitiv' and the Refi nitiv logo  are
registered tradem arks of Refi nitiv and i ts affi l iated
com panies.

12/95

Balance — January 1, 2022 — $ — 6,900,000 $ 690 $ 32,000 $ (16,962,545) $ (16,929,855)

Net income — — — — — 2,773,393 2,773,393

Balance - March 31, 2022 (unaudited) — — 6,900,000 690 32,000 (14,189,152) (14,156,462)

Accretion of Class A common stock to redemption value — — — — — (79,687) (79,687)

Net income — — — — — 1,867,104 1,867,104

Balance - June 30, 2022 (unaudited) — $ — 6,900,000 $ 690 $ 32,000 $ (12,401,735) $ (12,369,045)

     Convertible               Additional                                 Non-      Total

Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Subscription Accumulated Treasury Stock controlling Stockholder

Shares      Amount Shares Amount Capital Receivables Deficit Shares Amount Interest Deficit

Balance as of January 1, 2023 (Predecessor)   21,257,708 $137,949   138,848,177 $ 14 $ 187,348 $ — $ (474,839)  (22,821) $ (23) $ 17,087 $ (270,413

Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (38,017)   —   —   —   (38,017

Stock-based compensation expense   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   3,235   3,235

Debt extinguishment due to warrant

modification   —   —   —   —   17,036   —   —   —   —   —   17,036

Balance as of July 21, 2023 (Predecessor)   21,257,708 $137,949   138,848,177 $ 14 $ 204,384 $ — $ (512,856)  (22,821) $ (23) $ 20,321 $ (288,159

Balance as of July 22, 2023 (Successor)   — $ — 37,159,600 $ 4 $ 359,753 $ (60,710) $ (467,023)   — $ — $ — $ (167,976

Net income —   —   —   —   —   —   43,875   —   —   — 43,875

Stock-based compensation expense —   —   —   —   2,361   —   —   —   —   — 2,361

Balance as of September 30, 2023 (Successor)   — $ —   37,159,600 $ 4 $ 362,114 $ (60,710) $ (423,148)   — $ — $ — $ (121,740

Balance as of January 1, 2022 (Predecessor)   21,257,708 $137,949   138,848,177 $ 14 $ 187,348 $ — $ (422,283)  (22,821) $ (23) $ 11,120 $ (223,824

Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (17,993)   —   —   —   (17,993

Stock-based compensation expense   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   4,224   4,224

Balance as of September 30, 2022 (Predecessor)  21,257,708 $137,949   138,848,177 $ 14 $ 187,348 $ — $ (440,276)  (22,821) $ (23) $ 15,344 $ (237,593

The

See accompanying notes are an integral part of to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. statements
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PRIVETERRA ACQUISITION CORP.AEON BIOPHARMA, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands, except per share data) (Unaudited)

For the Six Months Ended

June 30, 

2023 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net (loss) income $ (4,330,852) $ 4,640,497

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash used in operating activities:    

Interest earned on investments held in Trust Account (1,902,329) (266,966)
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Unrealized change in fair value of warrants 666,966 (5,206,773)

Gain on forgiveness of deferred underwriting fee payable (200,087) —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:          

Prepaid assets (109,434) 131,895

Income and Franchise tax payable 554,491 (83,035)

Deferred tax liability (588,899) —

Accrued expenses 4,340,159 214,228

Net cash used in operating activities   (1,569,985)   (570,154)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Principal invested into Trust account (400,000) —

Withdrawal from Trust Account for tax obligations 1,493,453 80,500

Cash withdrawn for redemptions 258,999,909 —

Net cash provided by investing activities 260,093,362 80,500

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:          

Borrowings under promissory note   1,000,000   —

Repayment of promissory note   (150,000)   —

Redemption of Class A common stock (258,999,909) —

Net cash used in financing activities   (258,149,909)   —

Net Change in Cash   373,468 (489,654)

Cash - Beginning of period   67,909   497,412

Cash - End of period $ 441,377 $ 7,758

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Financing Activities:    

Deferred underwriting commissions payable charged to additional paid in capital $ 4,436,713 $ —

Excise tax liability accrued for common stock redemptions $ 424,059 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

     Nine Months Ended

September 30, 

2023 2022

Predecessor 


January 1 to 


July 21

Successor 


July 22 to

September 30

Predecessor


January 1 to

September 30

Cash flows from operating activities:            

Net (loss) income $ (38,017) $ 43,875 $ (17,993)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:         

Depreciation   54   21   36

Write-off of deferred offering costs   —   —   331

Stock-based compensation expense 3,234 2,361   4,224

Change in fair value of convertible notes   3,528   —   (15,261)

Change in fair value of warrants — (1,593)   —

Change in fair value of embedded forward purchase agreements and

derivative liabilities 4,959 15,776   —

Change in fair value of contingent consideration — (69,715)   —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Prepaid expenses and other current assets   36   (363)   (15)

Accounts payable   (248)   (3,716)   1,433

Accrued expenses and other liabilities   4,736   (1,701)   284

Other assets and liabilities   (27)   (6)   (169)

Net cash used in operating activities   (21,745)   (15,061)   (27,130)

Cash flows from investing activities:               

Purchases of property and equipment   —   —   (297)
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Net cash used in investing activities   —   —   (297)

Cash flows from financing activities:               

Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes   14,000   —   44,500

Net cash provided by financing activities   14,000   —   44,500

Net (decrease) increase in cash   (7,745)   (15,061)   17,073

Cash at beginning of period   9,746   31,238   5,128

Cash at end of period $ 2,001 $ 16,177 $ 22,201

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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PRIVETERRA ACQUISITION CORP. AEON BIOPHARMA, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023Note 1.    Organization

(Unaudited)

Note 1 — Organization andDescription of Business Operation

Organization and General

AEON Biopharma, Inc. (formerly known as Priveterra Acquisition Corp. (the ; “AEON” or the “Company”) is a blank check biopharmaceutical

company focused on developing its proprietary botulinum toxin complex, ABP-450 (prabotulinumtoxinA) injection (“ABP-450”), for debilitating

medical conditions. The Company is headquartered in Irvine, California.

On July 21, 2023 (the “Closing Date”), the Company completed the acquisition of AEON Biopharma Sub, Inc. (formerly known as AEON

Biopharma, Inc.) (“Old AEON”) pursuant to the definitive agreement dated December 12, 2022 (the “Business Combination Agreement”), as

amended April 27, 2023, by and among Priveterra Acquisition Corp. (“Priveterra”), Priveterra’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Priveterra Merger Sub,

Inc., and Old AEON. Old AEON was incorporated in Delaware on November 17, 2020in February 2012 under the name Alphaeon Corporation as a

wholly-owned subsidiary of Strathspey Crown Holdings Group, LLC (“SCH”). The Company was formed for the purpose of effecting a merger,

capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses

(“Business Combination”).

On November 15, 2022December 18, 2019, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”)changed its

name to “AEON Biopharma, Inc.” On the Closing Date, Old AEON merged with Priveterra Merger Sub, Inc., with Old AEON surviving the merger as

a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Priveterra the Company. Also on the Closing Date, the Company changed its name from

“Priveterra Acquisition Corp. The transactions contemplated by” to “AEON Biopharma, Inc.” and is referred to herein as “AEON,” or the Merger

Agreement are intended“Company.” Unless the context otherwise requires, references to serve as“Priveterra” herein refer to the Company’s

initial Business Combination. See Note 6 for further information. Company prior to the Closing Date.

On January 5, 2023, in connection with Under the Business Combination proposal, a purported stockholder of Agreement, the Company filed

a complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against the Company and its board of directors, alleging

that the registration statement on Form S-4 filed on December 27, 2022 with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) omitted

material information related to the Business Combination. Since the filing of the complaint, several purported stockholders of the Company

have also sent demand letters to the Company’s counsel, similarly alleging that the registration statement filed by the Company on December

27, 2022 with the SEC omitted material information related to the Business Combination and demanding that the Company, its board of
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directors and/or AEON Biopharma, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“AEON”), make supplemental corrective disclosures addressing the alleged

deficiencies.

The Company is an early stage and emerging growth company and, as such, the Company is subject to all of the risks associated with early stage

and emerging growth companies.

As of June 30, 2023, the Company had not commenced any operations. All activity for the period from November 17, 2020, the Company’s

inception, through June 30, 2023, relates to the Company’s formation and the initial public offering (“IPO”), described below, and identifying a

target company for a business combination. The Company will not generate any operating revenues until after the completion of its initial

Business Combination, at the earliest. The Company generates non-operating income in the form of interest income from the proceeds derived

from the IPO and unrealized gains and losses on the change in fair value of it warrants. The Company has selected December 31 as its fiscal year

end.

The Company’s sponsor is Priveterra Sponsor, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Sponsor”).

On November 16, 2022, Guggenheim agreed to waive its entitlement to the deferred underwriting commission acquire all outstanding equity

interests of $3,767,400 to which it became entitled upon completion of the Company’s IPO, subject to the consummation of the transaction. As a

result, the Company derecognized the deferred underwriting fee payable of $3,767,400 and recorded $3,604,829 of the forgiveness of the deferred

underwriting fee allocated to public shares to the carrying value of the Old AEON for approximately 16,500,000 shares of Class A common stock,

and the remaining balance of $162,571 was as a gain from extinguishment of liability allocated to warrant liabilities.

On January 23, 2023, Wells Fargo agreed to waive its entitlement to the deferred underwriting commission of $4,636,800 to which it became

entitled to upon completion of the Company’s IPO. As a result, the Company the six months ended June 30, 2023 derecognized the deferred

underwriting fee payable of $4,636,800 and recorded $4,436,713 of the forgiveness of the deferred underwriting fee allocated to public shares to

the carryingpar value of the shares of Class A $0.0001 per share (“common stock and the remaining balance of $200,087 was as a gain from

extinguishment of liability for the portion allocated to warrant liabilities. As of June 30, 2023, the balance of the deferred underwriting fee

payable was $1,255,800.

Financing

The registration statement for the Company’s IPO was declared effective on February 8, 2021 (the “Effective Date”). On February 11, 2021, the

Company consummated an IPO of 27,600,000 units at $10.00 per unit (the “Units” stock”), which includes the full exercise by the
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underwriters of the over-allotment option to purchase an additional 3,600,000 Units, at $10.00 per Unit, generating gross proceeds of

$276,000,000, which is discussed in Note 3.

Simultaneously with the closing of the IPO, the Company consummated the sale of 5,213,333 warrants (the “Private Placement Warrants”), at a

price of $1.50 per warrant, which is discussed in Note 4. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at a price of

$11.50 per share, generating gross proceeds of $7,820,000.

Transaction costs of the IPO amounted to $15,630,212 consisting of $5,520,000 of underwriting fees, $9,660,000 of deferred underwriting fees, and

$450,212 of other offering costs. Of the transaction costs, $655,046 is included in offering costs on the statements of operations and $14,975,166 is

included in equity.

Trust Account

Following the closing of the IPO on February 11, 2021, $276,000,000 ($10.00 per Unit) from the net offering proceeds of the sale of the UnitsOld

AEON’s stockholders received in the IPO and the sale form of the Private Placement Warrants was placed in a trust account (the “Trust

Account”), located in the United States with Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company acting as trustee and will be invested in U.S.

government securities, within the meaning set forth in Section 2(a)(16) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (“Investment

Company Act”), with a maturity of 185 days or less or in any open-ended investment company that holds itself out as a money market fund
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meeting the conditions of Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act, as determined by the Company. Except with respect to interest earned on

the funds held in the Trust Account that may be released to the Company to pay its franchise and income tax obligations, if any, the proceeds

from the Company’s IPO and the sale of the Private Placement Warrants will not be released from the Trust Account until the earliest of (i) the

completion of initial Business Combination, (ii) the redemption of the Company’s public shares if the Company does not complete an initial

Business Combination within 24 months from the closing of the IPO, subject to applicable law, or (iii) the redemption of the Company’s public

shares properly submitted in connection with a stockholder vote to amend its amended and restated certificate of incorporation to modify the

substance or timing of the Company’s obligation to redeem 100% of its public shares if the Company has not consummated an initial business

combination within 24 months from the closing of the IPO or with respect to any other material provisions relating to stockholders’ rights or

pre-initial Business Combination activity. The proceeds deposited in the Trust Account could become subject to the claims of the Company’s

creditors, if any, which could have priority over the claims of the Company’s public stockholders.

In connection with the vote at the special meeting of stockholders held on February 10, 2023 (the “Special Meeting”) the holders of 25,597,728

shares of Class A common stock properly exercised their right to redeem their shares for cash at a redemption price of approximately $10.11 per

share, for an aggregate redemption amount of $258,999,909, resulting in 2,002,272 shares of Class A common stock after redemptions. The trust

account balance after the redemption payments was $20,259,152. As of June 30, 2023, the trust account balance was $21,193,395.

Initial Business Combination

The Company will provide its public stockholders with the opportunity to redeem all or a portion of their public shares upon the completion of

the initial Business Combination either (i) in connection with a stockholder meeting called to approve the initial Business Combination or (ii) by

means of a tender offer. The decision as to whether the Company will seek stockholder approval of a proposed initial Business Combination or

conduct a tender offer will be made by the Company, solely in its discretion. The stockholders will be entitled to redeem their shares for a pro

rata portion of the amount then on deposit in the Trust Account (initially approximately $10.00 per share, plus any pro rata interest earned on

the funds held in the Trust Account and not previously released to the Company to pay its tax obligations).

The shares of common stock subject to redemption are recorded at a redemption value and classified as temporary equity upon the IPO, in

accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 480 “Distinguishing Liabilities

from Equity.” In such case, the Company will proceed with a Business Combination if the Company has net tangible assets of at least $5,000,001

upon such consummation of a Business Combination and, if the Company seeks stockholder approval, a majority of the issued and outstanding

shares voted are voted in favor of the Business Combination.

The Sponsor, officers and directors have agreed to (i) waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares and public shares in

connection with the completion of the initial Business Combination, (ii) waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares and

public shares in connection with a stockholder vote to approve an amendment to the Company’s amended and restated
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certificate of incorporation, and (iii) waive their rights to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to their founder shares

if the Company fails to complete the initial Business Combination within the Combination Period.

On December 12, 2022, the Company entered into a Business Combination Agreement (the “Business Combination Agreement”) by and among

the Company, Priveterra Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Merger Sub”), and AEON Biopharma, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“AEON”).

The Business Combination Agreement provides, among other things, that on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, Merger

Sub will merge with and into AEON, with AEON surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the consummation of the Merger and

the other transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, collectively, the “Merger”). Upon In addition, following the

Closing, certain AEON Stockholders will be issued up to 16,000,000 additional shares of common stock to the extent certain milestones are

achieved.

Prior to the closing of the Merger (the “Closing”), Priveterra shares were listed on Nasdaq as “PMGM.” The post-Merger Company common

stock and warrants commenced trading on the NYSE American under the symbols “AEON” and “AEON WS,” respectively, on July 24, 2023. See

Note 3, “Forward Merger,” for additional details.

Liquidity and Going Concern
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The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis that assumes the Company will change its

name to “AEON Biopharma, Inc.” The date on which the Closing actually occurs is hereinafter referred to continue as the “Closing Date.”

Liquidation

a going concern. The Company will have 24 monthshas experienced recurring losses from the closingoperations and has a net capital deficiency

and negative cash flows from operations since its inception. As of the IPO to complete the initial Business Combination which has been

extended through August 11, 2023 (the “Combination Period”). However, if the Company is unable to complete the initial Business Combination

within the Combination Period, the Company will (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably

possible but not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem the public shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate

amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest earned on the funds held in the Trust Account and not previously released to

the Company to pay its taxes (less up to $100,000 of interest to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public

shares, which redemption will completely extinguish public stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further

liquidation distributions, if any), subject to applicable law, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such redemption, subject to the

approval of the Company’s remaining stockholders and the Company’s board of directors, liquidate and dissolve, subject, in each case, to the

Company’s obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of other applicable law.

The Company’s Sponsor has agreed that it will be liable to the Company if and to the extent any claims by a third party for services rendered or

products sold to the Company, or a prospective target business with which the Company has entered into a written letter of intent,

confidentiality or similar agreement or business combination agreement, reduce the amount of funds in the Trust Account to below the lesser

of (i) $10.00 per public share and (ii) the actual amount per public share held in the Trust Account as of the date of the liquidation of the Trust

Account, if less than $10.10 per share due to reductions in the value of the trust assets, less taxes payable, provided that such liability will not

apply to any claims by a third party or prospective target business who executed a waiver of any and all rights to the monies held in the Trust

Account (whether or not such waiver is enforceable) nor will it apply to any claims under the Company’s indemnity of the underwriters of the

Company’s IPO against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). However, the

Company has not asked its Sponsor to reserve for such indemnification obligations, nor has the Company independently verified whether its

Sponsor has sufficient funds to satisfy its indemnity obligations and believe that the Company’s Sponsor’s only assets are securities of the

Company. Therefore, the Company cannot assure that its Sponsor would be able to satisfy those obligations.

Liquidity, Capital Resources and Going Concern

The Company’s liquidity needs up to February 11, 2021September 30, 2023, the date Successor reported cash of the IPO, had been satisfied

through a capital contribution from the Sponsor $16.2 million and an accumulated deficit of $25,000 (see Note 5) for the founder shares and the

loans under an unsecured promissory note from the Sponsor of $73,295 (see Note 5). In order to finance transaction costs in connection with a

Business Combination, the Company’s Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor or certain of the Company’s officers and directors may, but are not

obligated to, provide the Company Working Capital Loans (see Note 5).

The Company’s IPO was on February 11, 2021$423.1 million. As of June 30, 2023December 31, 2022, the Company had $441,377 in its operating bank

account, Predecessor reported cash of $9.7 million and working capital an accumulated deficit of $8,868,659 (excluding taxes payable which is

funded by earnings from the Trust Account) and has incurred and$474.8 million. The Company expects to incur losses for the foreseeable

future. The Company expects to have sufficient cash to fund its operating plan through mid-December 2023. Any further development of ABP-

450 for any indication, including the completion of the Phase 2 open-label extension study in migraine, any Phase 3 trials for migraine, and any

additional significant costsstudies in pursuit cervical dystonia, will require additional funding, which may not be available to us on reasonable

terms, or at all. As a result of its financing and acquisition plans.

Additionally, the Companythese conditions, management has until August 11, 2023 (originally February 11, 2023; see Note 6) to consummate a

Business Combination. In connection with the Company’s assessment of going concern considerations in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 205-

40, “Presentation of Financial Statements– Going Concern,” Management has determinedconcluded that the liquidity condition and

mandatory liquidation, should a Business Combination not occur, and potential subsequent dissolution raisesthere is substantial doubt about

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. concern and to meet its obligations as they become due within one year after the date

that these condensed consolidated financial statements are issued.

The Company intendsexpects to complete a Business Combination before seek additional funding in the mandatory liquidation date.

No form of equity financings or debt, however, there can be no assurance that such efforts will be successful or that, in the event that they are

successful, the terms and conditions of such financing will be favorable.

The preparation of these condensed consolidated financial statements does not include any adjustments have been made that may result

from the outcome of this uncertainty. This basis of accounting contemplates the recovery of the Company’s assets and the satisfaction of

theCompany’sliabilitiesand commitmentsin the normal course of business and does not include any adjustments to reflect the
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carryingpossible future effects of the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or amounts andclassification of assets or

liabilities. liabilities that
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might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. If the Company is unable to obtain adequate capital, it could

be forced to cease operations.

The Company’s future operations are highly dependent on a combination of factors, including (1)  the success of its research and

development programs; (2) the timely and successful completion of any additional financing; (3) the development of competitive therapies by

other biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies; (4) the Company’s ability to manage growth of the organization; (5) the Company’s ability

to protect its technology and products; and, ultimately (6) regulatory approval and successful commercialization and market acceptance of its

product candidates.

NOTENote 2.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESSummary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“ U.S. GAAP”) for interim financial information and in accordance

with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 8 of Regulation S-X of the SEC. Certain information or footnote disclosures normally included in

financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC for

interim financial reporting. Accordingly, they do not include all the information and footnotes necessary for a complete presentation of

financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited. The condensed

consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its controlled subsidiaries.

On July 21, 2023, AEON completed the Merger with Old AEON, with Old AEON surviving the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company, the accounting acquirer. The transaction was accounted for as a forward merger asset acquisition.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the “Company,” for periods prior to the Closing, refers to Old AEON, AEON Biopharma Sub, Inc.

(“Predecessor”), and for the periods after the Closing, refers to AEON Biopharma, Inc., including AEON Biopharma Sub, Inc. (“Successor”). As a

result of the Merger, the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the Predecessor and Successor are not directly comparable.

AEON Biopharma Sub, Inc. was deemed to be the predecessor entity. Accordingly, the historical financial statements of AEON Biopharma Sub,

Inc. became the historical financial statements of the combined Company, upon the consummation of the Merger. As a result, the financial

statements included in this report reflect (i) the historical operating results of AEON Biopharma Sub, Inc. prior to the Merger and (ii) the

combined results of the Company, including AEON Biopharma Sub, Inc., following the Closing. The accompanying financial statements include a

Predecessor period, which includes the period through July 21, 2023 concurrent with the Merger, and a Successor period from July 22, 2023

through September 30, 2023. A black line between the Successor and Predecessor periods has been placed in the condensed consolidated

financial statements and in the tables to the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements to highlight the lack of comparability

between these two periods.

Unaudited Interim Financial Information

The accompanying interim condensed consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2023 (Successor), the condensed consolidated

statements of operations and comprehensive loss and convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit for the periods from July 1, 2023 to

July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to

September 30, 2023 (Successor) and the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor), and the condensed consolidated

statements of cash flows for the periods from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor) and

the nine months ended September 30, 2022 and the related note disclosures are unaudited. The balance sheet information as of December 31,

2022 (Predecessor) is derived from the Predecessor’s audited financial statements. These unaudited interim financial statements have been

prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and, in management’s opinion, on a basis consistent with the audited financial statements and reflect

all adjustments consisting of a which only include normal recurring nature, which are adjustments necessary for a the fair presentation of the
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Company’s financial position operatingas of September 30, 2023 (Successor) and its results of operations and comprehensive loss and cash flows

for the periods presented.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023

(Predecessor), July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023

(Successor) and the Company’s Form 10-K/A for the year three and nine months ended December 31, 2022 as filed with the SEC on April 10, 2023,

which contains the audited financial statements and notes thereto. September 30, 2022 (Predecessor). The interim results for the three periods

from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and six

months ended June 30, 2023July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor) are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the

year ending December 31, 2023 or for any future other interim periods.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated condensed financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned

subsidiary where the Company has the ability to exercise control. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated

in consolidation.

Emerging Growth Company Status

The Company is an “emerging growth company,” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act, as modified by the Jumpstart Our Business

Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”), and it may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable

to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the

independent registered public accounting firm attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure

obligations regarding executive compensation in its periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding

a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved.

Further, Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial

accounting standards until private companies (that is, those that have not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do

not have a class of securities registered under the Exchange Act) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting

standards. The JOBS Act provides that a company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that

apply to non-emerging growth companies but any such election to opt out is irrevocable. The Company has elected not to opt out of such

extended transition period which means that when a standard is issued or revised and it has different application dates for public or private

companies, the Company, as an emerging growth company, can adopt the new or revised standard at the time private companies adopt the

new or revised standard. This may make comparison of the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements with another public

company which is neither an emerging growth company nor an emerging growth company which has opted out of using the extended

transition period difficult or impossible because of the potential differences in accounting standards used. period.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the Company’s

management to make estimates,  judgments and assumptions that affect the amounts reported amountsin the financial statements and

disclosures made in the accompanying notes. The

7
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Company’s most significant estimates relate to the research and development accruals, valuation of common stock and related stock-based

compensation, and the fair values of the contingent consideration, forward purchase agreements, in-process research and development,

warrant liabilities, convertible notes, among others. Although the Company bases estimates on historical experience, knowledge of current

events and actions it may undertake in the future, and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which

form the basis for making judgments over the carrying values of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at this

process may result in actual results differing materially from those estimated amounts used in the date preparation of the unaudited

condensed consolidated financial statementsstatements.
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Segment Reporting

Operating segments are identified as components of an enterprise about which separate discrete financial information is available for

evaluation by the chief operating decision-maker in making decisions regarding resource allocation and assessing performance. The Company

provides segment financial information and results for its segments based on the reported amountssegregation of revenues and expenses that

its chief operating decision makers review for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating its financial performance.

As of September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company operates and manages its business as one operating and reportable segment.

Risk and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks common to early-stage companies in the pharmaceutical industry including, but not limited to, dependency

on the clinical and commercial success of its current and any future product candidates, ability to obtain regulatory approval of its current and

any future product candidates, the need for substantial additional financing to achieve its goals, uncertainty of broad adoption of its approved

products, if any, by physicians and patients and significant competition.

The Company relies on Daewoong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Daewoong”), a South Korean pharmaceutical manufacturer, as an exclusive

and sole supplier to manufacture the Company’s source material for product candidates. Any termination or loss of significant rights, including

exclusivity, under the Company’s license and supply agreement with Daewoong (the “Daewoong Agreement”) would materially and adversely

affect the Company’s commercialization of its products. See Note 7, “Commitments and Contingencies” for a discussion of the Daewoong

Agreement.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The cost of property and equipment is

depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. The Company’s furniture and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line

basis over a period of seven years. Equipment is depreciated over a useful life of five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the

lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the related lease term. Property and equipment, net, as of December 31, 2022 and September

30, 2023 (unaudited) are as follows (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor

September 30,  December 31, 

     2023      2022

Furniture and fixtures $ 199 $ 199

Equipment   237   237

Leasehold improvements   66   66

Property and equipment   502   502

Accumulated depreciation   (146)   (71)

Property and equipment, net $ 356 $ 431

8
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Other Accrued Expenses

Other accrued expenses were as follows (in thousands):

     September 30, December 31,

2023 2022

Successor Predecessor

Legal expenses $ 1,873 $ —
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Operating lease liability - short term portion 296 257

Daewoong vial usage 91 202

Remaining other accrued expenses 675 281

Total other accrued expenses $ 2,934   $ 740

Convertible Notes (Predecessor)

The Company elected to account for its Predecessor convertible promissory notes at fair value at inception and at each subsequent

reporting date. Subsequent changes in fair value were recorded as a component of non-operating loss in the condensed consolidated

statements of operations and comprehensive loss or as a component of other comprehensive loss for changes related to instrument-specific

credit risk. As a result of electing the fair value option, direct costs and fees related to the convertible promissory notes are expensed as

incurred. The convertible promissory notes were converted into shares of the Company’s common stock at the Closing.

Contingent Consideration (Successor)

The Company accounts for its contingent consideration as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an assessment

of the Contingent Consideration Shares specific terms (as further defined in Note 6) and applicable authoritative guidance in ASC 480,

Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (“ASC 480”) and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”). Based on the appropriate guidance, the

Company determined that the Contingent Consideration Shares would be classified as a liability on the condensed consolidated balance sheets

and remeasured at each reporting period with changes to fair value recorded to the condensed consolidated statements of operations and

comprehensive loss.

Forward Purchase Agreements (Successor)

Based on the applicable guidance in ASC 480, ASC 815, ASC 505, Equity (“ASC 505”) and Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 4.E, Receivables from

Sale of Stock (“SAB 4E”), the Company has determined that each of its forward purchase agreements entered in connection with the Merger is a

freestanding hybrid financial instrument comprising a subscription receivable and embedded features, which have been bifurcated and

accounted for separately as derivative instruments. The Company has recorded the derivatives as liabilities and measured them at fair value

with the initial value of the derivative recorded as a loss “on the line” in the Successor’s opening accumulated deficit. On the line describes

those transactions triggered by the consummation of the Merger that are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements of the

Predecessor or the Successor as they are not directly attributable to either period but instead were contingent on the Merger. Subsequent

changes in the bifurcated derivatives are recorded in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Warrants (Successor)

The Company accounts for warrants as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an assessment of the warrant’s

specific terms and applicable authoritative guidance in ASC 480 and ASC 815. The assessment considers whether the warrants are freestanding

financial instruments and meet all of the requirements for equity classification, including whether the warrants are indexed to the Company’s

own shares of common stock, among other conditions for equity classification. This assessment is conducted at the time of warrant issuance

and as of each subsequent quarterly period end date while the warrants are outstanding. For issued or modified warrants that meet all of the

criteria for equity classification, the warrants are required to be recorded as a component of additional paid-in capital at the time of issuance.

For issued or modified warrants that do not meet all the criteria for equity classification, the warrants are required to be recorded at their

initial fair value on the date of issuance, and each balance sheet date thereafter until settlement. Changes in the estimated fair value of the

warrants are recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

9
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Convertible Preferred Stock (Predecessor)

The Company recorded its Predecessor convertible preferred stock at their respective issuance price, less issuance costs on the dates of

issuance. The convertible preferred stock is classified outside of permanent equity as temporary equity in the accompanying condensed

consolidated balance sheets. Although the convertible preferred stock is not redeemable at the holder’s option, upon certain change in control
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events that are outside of the Company’s control, including liquidation, sale or transfer of control of the Company, holders of the convertible

preferred stock may have the right to receive their liquidation preference to any distribution of the proceeds under the terms of the Company’s

amended and restated certificate of incorporation. The Company has not adjusted the carrying values of the convertible preferred stock to the

liquidation preferences of such shares since it is uncertain whether or when a redemption event will occur. Subsequent adjustments to

increase the carrying values to the redemption values will be made only when it becomes probable that such redemption will occur. As part of

the Merger, each share of Old AEON common stock issued with respect to the Old AEON convertible preferred stock was converted into

approximately 2.328 shares of common stock and the right to receive a pro-rata portion of the contingent consideration.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or an exit price paid to transfer a liability in the principal or

most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.

Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair value measurements are based on a three-tiered valuation hierarchy, which is classified and disclosed by the Company in one of the

three categories as follows:

· Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;

· Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active

markets; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, or can be corroborated by

observable market data for substantially the full term of the asset or liability; and

· Level 3 — Prices or valuation techniques that require unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to

the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The categorization of a financial instrument within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the

fair value measurement.

Leases

The Company determines whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception. Right-of-use (“ROU”) assets represent the Company’s right

to use an underlying asset during the reporting period. lease term, and lease liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease

payments arising from the lease. ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized at lease commencement based upon the estimated present

value of unpaid lease payments over the lease term using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate applicable to the underlying asset unless

the implicit rate is readily determinable. The Company determines the lease term as the noncancellable period of the lease, and may include

options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option. Leases with a term of 12

months or less are not recognized on the balance sheets.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development expenses consist primarily of costs associated with

clinical studies including clinical trial design, clinical site reimbursement, data management, travel expenses and the cost of products used for

clinical trials and internal and external costs associated with the Company’s regulatory compliance and quality assurance functions, including

the costs of outside consultants and contractors that assist in the process of submitting and maintaining regulatory filings, and overhead costs.

Additionally, research and development expenses include employee compensation, including stock-based compensation, supplies, consulting,

prototyping, testing, materials, travel expenses and an allocation of facility

10
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Makingoverhead expenses. Costs incurred in obtaining technology licenses are charged to research and development expense as acquired in-

process research and development (“IPR&D”) if the technology licensed has not reached technological feasibility and has no alternative future

use. The acquired IPR&D recorded at the Closing was recorded “on the line” in the Successor’s opening accumulated deficit.
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The Company accrues the expenses for its clinical trial activities performed by third parties, including clinical research organizations and

other service providers, based upon estimates requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the

estimate of the effect of a condition, situation or set of circumstances that existed at work completed over the date life of the unaudited

condensed consolidated financial statements, which management consideredindividual study in formulating its estimate, could

change accordance with associated agreements. The Company determines these estimates through discussion with internal personnel and

outside service providers as to progress or stage of completion of trials or services pursuant to contracts with clinical research organizations

and other service providers and the agreed-upon fee to be paid for such services. Payments made to outside service providers in the near term

due to one or more future confirming events. One advance of the more significant accountingperformance of the related services are recorded

as prepaid expenses and other current assets until the services are rendered. There have been no material adjustments to the Company’s

estimates included in these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements is the determination of for clinical trial expenses through

December 31, 2022 (Predecessor) and September 30, 2023 (Successor).

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense for all share-based awards. The Company accounts for stock-based compensation as

measured at grant date, based on the fair value of the warrant liability. Such estimates may be subject award. The Company measures the fair

value of awards granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which requires the input of subjective assumptions, including the

estimated fair value of common stock, the expected volatility of the Company’s common stock, expected risk-free interest rate, and the

option’s expected life. The Company also evaluates the impact of modifications made to change as more current information becomes

available and accordingly the actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalentsoriginal terms of equity awards when they occur.

The Company considers all short-term investments with fair value of equity awards that are expected to vest is amortized on a straight-line

basis over the requisite service period. Stock-based compensation expense is recognized net of actual forfeitures when they occur, as an

original maturity of three monthsincrease to additional paid-in capital or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The Company had

approximately $441,000 and $68,000noncontrolling interest in cash and did not have any cash equivalents as of June 30, 2023 and December 31,

2022.

Investments Held in Trust Account

At June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, substantially all of the assets held in the Trust Account were held as cash held by Continental Stock

Transfer & Trust Company. At December 31, 2022, the Company’s portfolio of investments held in the Trust Account was comprised of U.S.

government securities, within the meaning set forth in Section 2(a)(16) of the Investment Company Act, with a maturity of 185 days or less, or

investments in money market funds that invest in U.S. government securities, or a combination thereof. The Company classifies its U.S.

Treasury and equivalent securities as held-to-maturity in accordance with ASC Topic 320 “Investments - Debt and Equity Securities.” Held-to-

maturity securities are those securities which the Company has the ability and intent to hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity treasury

securities are recorded at amortized cost on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets and adjusted for the amortization in

selling, general and administrative or accretion of premiums or discounts.

Offering Costs associated with the Initial Public Offering

The Company complies with the requirements of the ASC 340-10-S99-1research and SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) Topic 5A - “Expenses of

Offering”. Offering costs consist principally of professional and registration fees incurred through the balance sheet date that are related to the

Public Offering. Offering costs are charged to temporary equity or the statement of operations based on the relative value of the Public

Warrants to the proceeds received from the Units sold upon the completion of the IPO. Accordingly, offering costs totaling $15,630,212

(consisting of $5,520,000 of underwriting discount, $9,660,000 of deferred underwriting discount, and $450,212 of other offering costs) were

recognized with $655,046 which was allocated to the Public Warrants and Private Warrants, includeddevelopment expenses in the condensed

consolidated statement statements of operations and $14,975,166 includedcomprehensive loss. All stock-based compensation costs are

recorded in temporary equity.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash accounts in a financial institution,

which, at times, may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit of $250,000. Any loss incurred or a lack of access to such funds

could have a significant adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition, resultscondensed consolidated statements of operations and

cash flows. comprehensive loss based upon the underlying employee’s role within the Company.

Class A Common Stock SubjectNoncontrolling Interest (Predecessor)
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ABP Sub Inc., the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, grants stock options to Possible Redemption certain employees and nonemployee

consultants of ABP Sub Inc. The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense recognized by ABP Sub Inc. as an increase in

noncontrolling interest in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements. At the Closing, all such shares were either canceled

or converted into AEON shares. See Note 11, “Share-based Compensation” for more information.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for its Classincome taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires, among other things, that deferred

income taxes be provided for temporary differences between the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities and their financial statement

reported amounts. In addition, deferred tax assets are recorded for the future benefit of utilizing net operating losses and research and

development credit carryforwards and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when such items are expected

to reverse. A common stock subject valuation allowance is provided against deferred tax assets unless it is more likely than not that they will be

realized.

The Company records uncertain tax positions on the basis of a two-step process whereby (i) it determines whether it is more likely than not

that the tax positions will be sustained on the basis of the technical merits of the position and (ii) for those tax positions that meet the more-

likely-than-not recognition threshold, it recognizes the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely to possible redemption

in accordance be realized upon ultimate settlement with the guidance related tax authority.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits within the income tax expense line in Accounting

Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 480 “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity.” Class A common stock subject the accompanying condensed

consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. Any accrued interest and penalties related to mandatory redemption (if any) is

classifieduncertain tax positions will be reflected as a liability instrument and is measured at fair value. Conditionally redeemable Class A

common stock (including Class A common stock that feature redemption rights that are either within in the control of the holder or subject to

redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within the Company’s control) is classified as temporary equity. At all other

times, Class A common stock is classified as stockholders’ equity. The Company’s Class A common stock features certain redemption rights that

is considered to be outside of the Company’s control and subject to the occurrence of uncertain future events. Accordingly, Class A common

stock subject to possible redemption is presented at redemption value as temporary equity, outside of the stockholders’ deficit section of the

Company’s condensed consolidated balance sheets.

11
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Net Loss Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

Prior to the Merger, the Predecessor calculated basic and diluted net loss per share to common stockholders in conformity with the two-

class method required for companies with participating securities. The Company considered all series of convertible preferred stock to be

participating securities as they participate in any dividends declared by the Company. Under the two-class method, undistributed earnings

allocated to these participating stockholders were subtracted from net income in determining net income attributable to common

stockholders. Net loss attributable to common stockholders was not allocated to convertible preferred stock as the holders of convertible

preferred stock did not have a contractual obligation to share in losses. Subsequent to the Merger, the Company only has one class of shares.

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of

shares of common stock outstanding during the period, without consideration for potentially dilutive shares of common stock in Predecessor

periods. For Predecessor periods, diluted net loss per share was computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the

weighted average number of shares of common stock and potentially dilutive securities outstanding for the period using the “treasury stock,”

“if converted” or “two-class” method unless their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. For purposes of the diluted net loss per share

calculation, convertible preferred stock, warrants, convertible notes and common stock options were considered as potentially dilutive

securities.

Since the Company was in a loss position for the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023

(Successor), January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor) and for the three and nine months
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ended September 30, 2022, basic net loss per share is the same as diluted net loss per share as the inclusion of all potentially dilutive common

shares was anti-dilutive.

Basic and diluted net loss per share for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 was calculated as follows (in thousands, except share and

per share amounts) (unaudited):

Nine months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor)

Net loss available to common stockholders $ (17,993)

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 138,848,177

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted $ (0.13)

Basic and diluted net loss per share for the three months ended September 30, 2022 was calculated as follows (in thousands, except share

and per share amounts) (unaudited):

Three months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor)

Net loss available to common stockholders $ (10,438)

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 138,848,177

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted $ (0.08)

Basic and diluted net loss per share for the periods from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023

(Successor) were calculated as follows (in thousands, except share and per share amounts) (unaudited):

Period from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor)          

Net loss available to common stockholders $ (38,017)

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted   138,848,177

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted $ (0.28)

Period from July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor)          

Net income available to common stockholders $ 43,875

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted   37,159,600

Net income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and

diluted $ 1.19

12

Table of Contents

Basic and diluted net loss per share for the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023

(Successor) were calculated as follows (in thousands, except share and per share amounts) (unaudited):

Period from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor)          

Net loss available to common stockholders   $ (5,000)

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted   138,848,177

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted   $ (0.04)

Period from July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor)          

Net income available to common stockholders   $ 43,875

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted   37,159,600
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Net income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and

diluted   $ 1.19

The following potentially dilutive securities outstanding have been excluded from the computation of diluted weighted average shares

outstanding because such securities have an anti-dilutive impact (unaudited):

     September 30, 

2023 2022

Successor Predecessor

Warrants 14,479,999 —

Contingent consideration 16,000,000 —

Contingent founder shares 3,450,000 —

Convertible preferred stock outstanding   —   21,257,708

Convertible preferred stock warrants outstanding   —   342,011

Common stock options and restricted stock units   4,888,537   10,516,525

  38,818,536   32,116,244

Contingencies

The Company may be, from time to time, a party to various disputes and claims arising from normal business activities. The Company

continually assesses litigation to determine if an unfavorable outcome would lead to a probable loss or reasonably possible loss which could be

estimated. The Company accrues for all contingencies at the earliest date at which the Company deems it probable that a liability has been

incurred and the amount of such liability can be reasonably estimated. If the estimate of a probable loss is a range and no amount within the

range is more likely than another, the Company accrues the minimum of the range. In the cases where the Company believes that a reasonably

possible loss exists, the Company discloses the facts and circumstances of the litigation, including an estimable range, if possible.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In June 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standards update (ASU 2016-13) that amended the guidance on the measurement of credit

losses on financial instruments. The guidance amended the impairment model by requiring entities to use a forward-looking approach based

on expected losses to estimate credit losses on certain financial instruments. In November 2019, the FASB issued an update to the guidance to

defer the effective date for all entities except SEC filers that are not smaller reporting companies to fiscal years beginning after December 15,

2022, including interim periods within those years. The Predecessor adopted this standard in the first quarter of 2023. The adoption of this

standard did not have an impact on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements or related disclosures.

In August 2020, the FASB issued an accounting standards update that simplified the accounting for certain financial instruments with

characteristics of liabilities and equity by reducing the number of accounting models for convertible debt and convertible preferred stock

instruments. It also amended the accounting for certain contracts in an entity’s own equity that are currently accounted for as derivatives

because of specific settlement provisions. In addition, the new guidance modified how particular convertible instruments and certain

contracts that may be settled in cash or shares impact the diluted EPS computation. The guidance will be effective for the Company for fiscal

years beginning after December 15, 2023, including interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted for fiscal years

beginning after December 15, 2020 but only if the adoption is as of the beginning of a fiscal
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year. The Predecessor adopted this standard on January 1, 2023. The adoption of this standard did not have an impact on the Company’s

condensed consolidated financial statements or related disclosures.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the American Institute of Certified

Public Accountants, and the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) did not, or are not believed by management to, have a material
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impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 3.     Forward Merger

On December 12, 2022, Old AEON and Priveterra entered into a Business Combination Agreement. On July 3, 2023, Priveterra held the special

meeting of stockholders, at which the Priveterra stockholders considered and adopted, among other matters, a proposal to approve the

transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, including the Merger. On July 21, 2023, the parties consummated the

Merger. In connection with the Closing, Priveterra changed its name from Priveterra Acquisition Corp. to AEON Biopharma, Inc.

At the effective time of the Merger (“Effective Time”), each outstanding share of Old AEON common stock (on an as-converted basis after

taking into effect the conversion of the outstanding warrants of Old AEON exercisable for shares of Old AEON preferred stock, the conversion of

the shares of Old AEON preferred stock into Old AEON common stock in accordance with the governing documents of Old AEON as of the

Effective Time, the conversion of the outstanding convertible notes of Old AEON into Old AEON common stock in accordance with the terms of

such convertible notes and after giving effect to the issuance of Old AEON common stock in connection with the merger of ABP Sub, Inc. with

and into Old AEON) issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time converted into the right to receive approximately 2.328

shares of the Company’s common stock and the right to receive a pro-rata portion of the contingent consideration. In addition, each share of

Priveterra Class B common stock (“Founder Shares”), par value $0.0001 per share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective

Time converted into one share of common stock totaling 6,900,000 common shares (of which 3,450,000 Founder Shares are subject to certain

vesting and forfeiture conditions).

In connection with the Merger, on January 6, 2023, Priveterra and Old AEON entered into separate subscription agreements for convertible

notes with each of Alphaeon 1 LLC (“A1”) and Daewoong Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Daewoong”) (collectively, the “Original Committed Financing

Agreements”), pursuant to which A1 and Daewoong agreed to purchase, and Priveterra and Old AEON agreed to sell to each of them, up to $15

million and $5 million, respectively, aggregate of principal of interim convertible notes. Further, on June 8, 2023, Old AEON and Priveterra

entered into a committed financing agreement with A1 (the “Additional Committed Financing Agreement”), pursuant to which A1 agreed to

purchase, and Priveterra and Old AEON agreed to sell to A1, up to an additional $20 million aggregate principal of interim convertible notes.

Pursuant to such agreement, the Company issued $14 million of interim convertible notes to A1 in the first and second quarters of 2023, and $25

million was received at Closing in exchange for an aggregate of 5,797,611 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at $7.00 per share. The

proceeds from the interim convertible notes were used to fund Old AEON’s operations through the consummation of the Merger.

On April 27, 2023, Priveterra and AEON amended the Business Combination Agreement. Concurrently with the amendment to the Business

Combination Agreement, Priveterra amended the Sponsor Support Agreement to include restriction and forfeiture provisions related to the

Founder Shares. See Note 6 for additional information. The fair value of the contingent consideration at the Closing was valued to be $125.7

million, and is included in the purchase price. Additionally, the Successor assumed the Predecessor’s 2019 Incentive Award Plan, and as such,

the fair value of the replacement awards of $10.6 million were included in purchase consideration, $8.8 million related to stock options and $1.8

million related to restricted stock units. See Note 11 for additional information.

Asset Acquisition Method of Accounting

The Merger was accounted for using the asset acquisition method in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Under this method of accounting,

Priveterra was considered to be the accounting acquirer based on the terms of the Merger. Upon consummation of the Merger, the cash on

hand resulted in the equity at risk being considered insufficient for Old AEON to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial

support. Therefore, Old AEON was considered a Variable Interest Entity (“VIE”) and the primary beneficiary of Old AEON was treated as the

accounting acquirer. Priveterra holds a variable interest in Old AEON and owns 100% of Old AEON’s equity. Priveterra was considered the

primary beneficiary as it has the decision-making rights that gives it the power to

14
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direct the most significant activities. Also, Priveterra retained the obligation to absorb the losses and/or receive the benefits of Old AEON that

could have potentially been significant to Old AEON. The Merger was accounted for as an asset acquisition as substantially all of the fair value
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was concentrated in IPR&D, an intangible asset. Old AEON’s assets (except for cash) and liabilities were measured at fair value as of the

transaction date. Consistent with authoritative guidance on the consolidation of a VIE that is not considered a business, differences in the total

purchase price and fair value of assets and liabilities are recorded as a gain or loss to the condensed consolidated statement of operations. The

loss reflected below on the consolidation of the VIE is reflected “on the line” in the Successor’s opening accumulated deficit.

Costs incurred in obtaining technology licenses are charged to research and development expense as IPR&D if the technology licensed has

not reached technological feasibility and has no alternative future use. The IPR&D recorded at the Closing of $324 million is included within

operating expense in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. To estimate the value of the acquired IPR&D, the Company used a

Multi-Period Excess Earnings Method under the Income Approach. The determination of the fair value requires management to make

significant estimates including, but not limited to, the discount rate used, the total addressable market for each potential drug, market

penetration assumptions, and the estimated timing of commercialization of the drugs. Changes in these assumptions could have a significant

impact on the fair value of the IPR&D. The significant assumptions used in determining IPR&D was the discount rate of 25%, implied internal

rate of return of 25.3% and long-term growth rate of 4%.

The following is a summary of the purchase price calculation (unaudited, in thousands except share and per share data).

Number of shares of common stock of the combined company 16,500,000

Multiplied by the Priveterra share price, as of the Closing $ 10.84

Total $ 178,860

Fair value of contingent consideration   125,699

Replacement of share-based payment awards 10,648

Assumed liabilities 125

Total purchase price $ 315,332

The allocation of the purchase price was as follows (unaudited, in thousands).

Cash $ 2,001

Net working capital (excluding cash) (16,182)

Other assets and liabilities   775

Acquired in-process research and development   324,000

Net assets acquired 310,594

Loss on consolidation of VIE 4,738

Total purchase price $ 315,332

In connection with the Merger, the transactions that occurred concurrently with the closing date of the Merger were reflected “on the 

line”. “On the line” describes those transactions triggered by the consummation of the Merger that are not recognized in the consolidated 

financial statements of the Predecessor nor the Successor as they are not directly attributable to either period but instead were contingent on 

the Merger. The opening cash balance in the condensed consolidated statement of cash flow of $31.2 million consists of cash from Priveterra 

$29.2 million and Old AEON $2.0 million. The number of shares of common stock issued and amounts recorded on the line within stockholders’ 

deficit are reflected below to arrive at the opening consolidated balance sheet of the Successor.
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As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the common stock subject to possible redemption reflected on the condensed consolidated balance

sheets are reconciled in the following table:
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Class A common stock subject to possible redemption, December 31, 2022 $ 278,487,272

Plus:

Waiver of Class A shares issuance costs   4,436,712

Less:

Redemption (258,999,909)

Accretion of carrying value to redemption value (2,730,680)

Class A common stock subject to possible redemption, June 30, 2023 $ 21,193,395

                 Common shares     

Common

stock amount     

Subscription

Receivable      APIC     

Accumulated

Deficit

Priveterra closing equity as of July 21, 2023 — $ — $ — $ 10,280 $ (12,829)

Shares issued as consideration in the Merger Note 1 16,500,000 2 — 189,633 —

Stock-compensation for Class B Founder Shares Note 3 6,900,000 1 — 34,362 (34,362)

Issuance of Forward Purchase Agreements Note 6 6,275,000 1 (60,710) 66,714 (38,255)

Issuance of Make-Whole derivative Note 6 — — — — (427)

Shares issued for Committed Financing Note 6 5,797,611 1 — 61,097 (36,097)

Shares issued in New Money PIPE Subscription Agreements Note 6 1,001,000 0 — 3,844 (3,844)

Founder contingent shares Note 6 — — — (18,521) —

Acquired IPR&D and loss on consolidation of VIE Note 3 — — — — (328,738)

Settlement of Medytox top-off right derivative Note 6 — — — 4,959 (4,959)

Other miscellaneous 685,989 0 — 7,385 (7,513)

Total 37,159,600 $ 4 $ (60,710) $ 359,753 $ (467,023)

See Note 6 for the current amount held in the Trust Account and the ordinary shares currently subject to redemption following the

Company’s February 10, 2023 Special Meeting of shareholders to extend the Business Combination deadline date from February 11, 2023 to

August 11, 2023 and the waiver of underwriting fee on January 23, 2023.

Net (Loss) Income per Common Share

The Company complies with accounting and disclosure requirements of FASB ASC Topic 260, “Earnings Per Share”. Net (loss) income per common

share is computed by dividing net (loss) income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. The

Company has two classes of common shares, which are referred to as Class A common stock and Class B common stock. Earnings and losses are

shared pro rata between the two classes of stock. Private and public warrants to purchase 14,480,000 Class A common stock at $11.50 per share

were issued on February 8, 2021. No warrants were exercised during the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. The calculation of

diluted net (loss) income per common share does not consider the effect of the warrants issuedSponsor, in connection with Priveterra’s IPO,

purchased 6,900,000 shares of Class B Common Stock (the “Founder Shares”) for $25,000 (approximately $0.004 per share). These shares had no

value until Priveterra effected the (i) IPO, (ii) exercise of over-allotment, and (iii) Private Placement since Merger. Upon the exercise of Merger,

the warrants are Founder Shares automatically converted Class A Common Stock. This conversion was solely contingent upon the

occurrence completion of future events. As of June 30, 2023the Merger, a performance condition, and 2022, the Company did not have include

any dilutive securities or other contracts that could, potentially, be exercised or converted into common stock and then share in future service

requirements. Pursuant to the earningsterms of the Company. As a result, diluted net (loss) income per common share isSponsor Support

Agreement, as amended, effective at the same as basic net (loss) income per common share for the periods. Accretion associated with the

redeemable Class A common stock is excluded from earnings per share as the redemption value approximates fair value.

Below is a reconciliation Closing, 50% of the net (loss) income per share of common stock:

For the Three Months Ended June 30, For the Six Months Ended June 30,

2023 2022 2023 2022

     Class A      Class B      Class A      Class B      Class A      Class B      Class A      Class B

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per

common share                

Numerator:                

Allocation of net (loss) income $ (886,698) $ (3,055,639) $ 1,493,683 $ 373,421 $ (2,264,201) $ (2,066,651) $ 3,712,398 $ 928,099

Denominator                
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Weighted-average shares outstanding 2,002,272 6,900,000 27,600,000 6,900,000 7,559,570 6,900,000 27,600,000 6,900,000

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per

common share $ (0.44) $ (0.44) $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ (0.30) $ (0.30) $ 0.13 $ 0.13

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Founder Shares (i.e., 3,450,000 Founder Shares) (the “Contingent Founder Shares”) were unvested and subject to the restrictions and

forfeiture provisions set forth in this Sponsor Support Agreement. As such, the grant date fair value of the Company’s assets and liabilities,

which qualify as financial instruments under FASB ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures,” approximates the carrying amounts

representedremaining 3,450,000 shares without vesting conditions was expensed in the condensed consolidated balance sheets, primarily

due amount of $34.4 million and is presented “on the line.”

Note 4.    Related Party Transactions (Predecessor)

2019 Debt Financings

In June 2019, the Predecessor entered into a senior unsecured note purchase agreement (the “Original 2019 Note Purchase Agreement”),

with Dental Innovations, pursuant to its short-term nature, other than which the derivative warrant liability. Predecessor issued Dental

Innovations a promissory note (the “Original 2019 Note”) with a principal amount of $5.0 million. Pursuant to the terms of the Original 2019

Note, the Predecessor was required to repay a total of $8.75 million, representing all principal and interest owed, upon the earliest to occur of (i)

June 19, 2022, (ii) Dental Innovations’ demand for repayment following the Predecessor’s completion of an initial public offering and (iii) the

Predecessor’s election to repay the Original 2019 Note in full.

Derivative Financial InstrumentsUnder the Original 2019 Note Purchase Agreement, Dental Innovations committed to purchase from the

Predecessor an additional promissory note with a principal amount of $5.0 million, subject to the Predecessor issuing and selling an additional

promissory note with a principal amount of $5.0 million to a lender not affiliated with Dental Innovations. Any such additional promissory notes

were to have the same payment terms as the Original 2019 Notes.

The Company evaluates its financial instrumentsIn December 2019, the Predecessor entered into an amendment to determine if the

Original 2019 Note Purchase Agreement that provided for the exchange of the Original 2019 Note for a convertible promissory note with a

principal amount of $5.0 million. In addition, Dental Innovations was no longer committed to purchase from the Predecessor an additional

promissory note with a principal amount of $5.0 million subject to the Predecessor issuing and selling an additional promissory note with a

principal amount of $5.0 million to a lender not affiliated with Dental Innovations. In December 2019, the Predecessor issued and sold five

additional convertible promissory notes, each with a principal amount of $1.0 million, including one to SCH and one to a member of the

Predecessor’s board of directors (all such instruments are derivatives or contain features that qualify as embedded derivatives in accordance

with ASC Topic 815, “Derivatives and Hedging”. Derivative instruments are recorded at fair value on convertible promissory notes, the grant

date and re-valued at each reporting date, with changes in the fair value reported in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Derivative assets and liabilities are classified in the consolidated balance sheets as current or non-current based on whether “2019 Convertible

Notes”).
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The Predecessor’s payment and performance under the 2019 Convertible Notes were guaranteed by ABP Sub Inc., the Predecessor’s wholly

owned subsidiary prior to the Merger. Pursuant to the terms of the 2019 Convertible Notes, the Predecessor was required to repay 175% of the

principal amount to the holders on the third anniversary of the issuance of the 2019 Convertible Notes. In the event of an underwritten public

offering of the Predecessor’s common stock, the 2019 Convertible Notes would have automatically converted into a number of shares of the

Predecessor’s common stock equal to 175% of the principal amount of the 2019 Convertible Notes, divided by the per share price at which shares

were offered to the public in such offering.
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Due to certain embedded features within the 2019 Convertible Notes, the Predecessor elected to account for the 2019 Convertible Notes

and all their embedded features at fair value at inception. Subsequent changes in fair value were recorded as a component of other (loss)

income in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss or not net-cash as a component of other

comprehensive income (loss) for changes to instrument-specific credit risk. As a result of electing the fair value option, direct costs and fees

related to the 2019 Convertible Notes were expensed as incurred.

In January 2020, in connection with the distribution of the units of A1 to the Predecessor’s stockholders, each of the holders of the

Predecessor’s 2019 Convertible Notes were granted contingent warrants by A1 to purchase shares of Evolus, Inc. (“Evolus”) from A1. The

contingent warrants were exercisable at the option of the holders only prior to the Predecessor’s first underwritten public offering of common

stock under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or upon an event of default under the 2019 Convertible Notes. The

2019 Convertible Notes were concurrently amended to provide the noteholders the option, prior to the notes’ conversion, to cancel a portion of

the indebtedness represented by such noteholder’s 2019 Convertible Note and receive a number of shares of Evolus from A1 having a market

value equal to the value of such cancelled indebtedness, in lieu of automatic conversion of all of the noteholder’s 2019 Convertible Note into

shares of the Predecessor’s common stock. The amount of cancelled indebtedness that could be so applied in exercise of the contingent

warrant was capped as the ratio that the value of Evolus shares held by A1 bore to the combined value of (i) the Evolus shares held by A1 and (ii)

the Predecessor immediately prior to consummation of the Predecessor’s first underwritten public offering of common stock under the

Securities Act.

In September 2020, in connection with the distribution of the units of Alphaeon Credit Holdco LLC (“AC HoldCo”) and Zelegent HoldCo LLC (“Z

HoldCo”) to the Predecessor’s stockholders, each of the holders of the Predecessor’s 2019 Convertible Notes were granted contingent warrants

by AC HoldCo and Z HoldCo to purchase shares of Alphaeon Credit, Inc. (“Alphaeon Credit”) and Zelegent from AC HoldCo and Z HoldCo. The

contingent warrants were exercisable at the option of the holders only prior to the Predecessor’s first underwritten public offering of common

stock under the Securities Act, or upon an event of default under the 2019 Convertible Notes. The 2019 Convertible Notes were concurrently

amended to provide the noteholders the option, prior to the notes’ conversion, to cancel a portion of the indebtedness represented by such

noteholder’s 2019 Convertible Note and receive a number of shares of Alphaeon Credit and/or Zelegent from AC HoldCo and Z HoldCo having a

market value equal to the value of such cancelled indebtedness, in lieu of automatic conversion of all of the applicable noteholder’s 2019

Convertible Note into shares of the Predecessor’s common stock. The amount of cancelled indebtedness that can be so applied in exercise of

the contingent warrant was capped as the ratio of aggregate indebtedness held by the convertible note holder as a proportion of the value of

Alphaeon Credit or Zelegent to the value of the Predecessor.

Additionally, on July 22, 2022, the 2019 debt was amended. The Dental Innovations note’s maturity date was extended from June 19, 2022 to

December 29, 2023. The original note had a principal of $5.0 million. Upon the original maturity date, the total due was 175% of principal, which

equals $8.7 million (which such amount included an additional amount of $3.7 million). Interest was increased from 0.0% to 15.79% on the total

payable of $8.7 million from the original maturity date of June 19, 2022 to the new maturity date of December 29, 2023.

On July 22, 2022, the maturity dates for four of the $1.0 million convertible promissory notes were extended from November 1, 2022,

December 12, 2022, December 12, 2022 and December 18, 2022, respectively, to December 29, 2023. Each of the fournotes had a principal of $1.0

million. Upon the original maturity date, the total due on each of the fournotes was 175% of principal, whichequals $1.7 million(which such amount

included an additionalamount of $0.7 million). At the original maturity dates, the principal sum of $1.0 millionwaspaid back to each of the note

holders. The remaining $0.7 million was to be due at the extended maturity date of December 29, 2023. The interest rate was increased from 0.0%

to 10.0% interest on the remaining $0.7 millionfrom the original maturity date to the new maturity date.

The 2019 SCH Note’s maturity date was extended from December 18, 2022 to December 29, 2023. The original Note had a principal of $1.0

million. Upon the original maturity date, the total due was 175% of principal, which equals $1.7 million. The interest rate was increased from

0.0% to 15.79% on the total of $1.7 million from the original maturity date to the new maturity date.
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In April 2023, the contingent warrants were amended to include the merger between AEON and Old AEON as a qualifying listing under the

warrant agreement, which stated that the holders of the contingent warrants would exercise the warrants, and that the holders would

receive 85% of the shares the holders would have been entitled to receive via the previous warrant agreement. The contingent warrants were

exercised into Evolus shares held by A1 and Alphaeon Credit at the same time the convertible notes were converted to shares of the Company’s
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stock. The Company determined that the contingent warrants amendment modified the settlement provision in the 2019 Convertible Notes.

The Company determined that the amendment should be accounted for as a debt extinguishment. Since the noteholders were both

shareholders of Old AEON, Evolus and Alphaeon Credit, the debt extinguishment was accounted for as a capital transaction on the April 2023

modification date. As such, due to the warrant modification, the Predecessor recognized a $5.2 million reduction to the underlying fair value of

the convertible notes and recorded a corresponding increase of $5.2 million to additional paid in capital during the periods from January 1, 2023

to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor).

During the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), and the three and nine

months ended September 30, 2022, the Predecessor recognized $(0.3) million, $0.4 million, $(0.5) million and $(0.6) million, respectively, of

(expense) income related to the (increase) decrease in the fair value of the 2019 Convertible Notes. As of December 31, 2022 (Predecessor), the

principal amount outstanding under the 2019 Convertible Notes was $6.0 million, with an estimated fair value of $16.2 million. The 2019

Convertible Notes were converted into shares of the Successor’s common stock at the Closing and were recorded “on the line” as part of the

shares issued as consideration in the Merger (see Note 3).

SCH Convertible Note

The Predecessor issued a convertible promissory note to SCH (the “SCH Convertible Note”). Prior to the Merger, the Predecessor’s payment

and performance under the SCH Convertible Note were guaranteed by ABP Sub Inc. Pursuant to the terms of the SCH Convertible Note, the

Predecessor was required to repay 175% of the principal amount to SCH on the third anniversary of its issuance. In the event of an underwritten

public offering of the Predecessor’s common stock, the SCH Convertible Note would have automatically converted into a number of shares of

the Predecessor’s common stock equal to 175% of the principal amount of the SCH Convertible Note, divided by the per share price at which

shares were offered to the public in such offering.

Due to certain embedded features within the SCH Convertible Note, the Predecessor elected to account for the SCH Convertible Note and

the embedded features at fair value at inception. Subsequent changes in fair value were recorded as a component of other (loss) income in the

condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss or as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) for changes

to instrument-specific credit risk. As a result of electing the fair value option, any direct costs and fees related to the SCH Convertible Note

were expensed as incurred.

Additionally, the 2020 Strathspey Crown note’s maturity date was extended from January 2, 2023 to December 29, 2023. The original note had

a principal of $17.5 million. Upon the original maturity date, the total due was $30.6 million. The interest rate was increased from 0.0% to 15.79%

on the total of $30.6 million from the original maturity date to the new maturity date.

During the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), and the three and nine

months ended September 30, 2022, the Predecessor recognized $(0.4) million, $1.7 million, $(1.3) million and $0.4 million, respectively, of

(expense) income related to the (increase) decrease in the fair value of the SCH Convertible Note. As of December 31, 2022, the principal amount

outstanding under the SCH Convertible Note was $17.5 million, with an estimated fair value of $25.1 million.

In April 2023, the contingent warrants were amended to include the merger between AEON and Old AEON as a qualifying listing under the

warrant agreement, which stated that the holders of the contingent warrants would exercise the warrants, and that the holders would

receive 85% of the shares the holders would have been entitled to receive via the previous warrant agreement. The Company determined that

the contingent warrants amendment modified the settlement provision in the 2019 Convertible Notes. The Company determined that the

amendment should be accounted for as a debt extinguishment. Since Evolus and Alphaeon Credit are related parties of AEON, the debt

extinguishment was accounted for as a capital transaction on the April 2023 modification date. As such, due to the warrant modification, the

Predecessor recognized a $11.8 million reduction to the underlying fair value of the convertible notes and recorded a corresponding increase of

$11.8 million to additional paid in capital during the periods from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor).

The SCH Convertible Note was converted into shares of the Successor’s common stock at the Closing and was recorded “on the line” as part

of the shares issued as consideration in the Merger (see Note 3).
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In December 2021, the Predecessor entered into an agreement with A1 (the “A1 Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Predecessor

could issue subordinated convertible promissory notes to A1 with an aggregate principal amount of up to $25.0 million. On December 8 and 15,

2021, the Predecessor issued two convertible notes (collectively, the “2021 A1 Convertible Notes”), each with a principal amount of $5.0 million,

and totaling $10.0 million, that matured on the third anniversary of their issuance. The A1 Convertible Notes were unsecured and subordinated

to the Predecessor’s other convertible notes.

The 2021 A1 Convertible Notes bore interest, compounded daily, at the lesser of 10% per annum or the maximum rate permissible by law.

Interest was paid in-kind by adding the accrued amount thereof to the principal amount on a monthly basis on the last day of each calendar

month for so long as any principal amount was outstanding (such paid in-kind interest, in the aggregate at any time, the “PIK Principal”).

Immediately prior to an initial public offering, all of the then outstanding principal amount and accrued and unpaid interest under the 2021

A1 Convertible Notes was to automatically convert into shares of the Predecessor’s common stock. The number of shares of common stock

issuable upon conversion of the instrument 2021 A1 Convertible Notes would have been equal to (i) the outstanding loan amount (including the

PIK Interest) divided by (ii) the product of (a) the price per share of such common stock issued to the public in the initial public offering

multiplied by (b) the applicable discount rate. The discount rate was to be determined for each note based on the number of days elapsed

between the date the applicable note was executed and the date on which a conversion event was formally announced and was to be equal to

(x) 10% if between zero and 90 days, (y) 15% if between 91 and 180 days, or (z) 20% if greater than 180 days.

Due to certain embedded features within the 2021 A1 Convertible Notes, the Predecessor elected to account for the 2021 A1 Convertible

Notes and the embedded features at fair value at inception. Subsequent changes in fair value were recorded as a component of other (loss)

income in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss or as a component of other

comprehensive income (loss) for changes to instrument-specific credit risk.

During the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), and the three and nine

months ended September 30, 2022, the Predecessor recognized $0.2 million, $1.4 million, $0 million and $1.6 million, respectively, of (expense)

income related to the (increase) decrease in the fair value of the 2021 A1 Convertible Notes. As of December 31, 2022, the principal amount

outstanding under the 2021 A1 Convertible Notes was $10 million, with an estimated fair value of $8.7 million. The 2021 A1 Convertible Notes

were converted into shares of the Successor’s common stock at the Closing.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Predecessor issued five additional tranches of subordinated convertible promissory notes to

A1 on February 18, 2022, March 9, 2022, April 14, 2022, June 3, 2022 and July 1, 2022 (collectively, the “2022 A1 Convertible Notes”), the first four with

a principal amount of $3.0 millioneachand the fifth issued July 1, 2022, for a principal amount of $2.5 million and totaling $14.5 million. The terms

of the 2022 A1 Convertible Notes were similar to those of the 2021 A1 Convertible Notes. During the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023

(Predecessor) and January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), and the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, the Predecessor

recognized $0.3 million, $2.0 million, $0.5 million and $2.3 million, respectively, of (expense) income related to the (increase) decrease in the fair

value of the 2022 A1 Convertible Notes. As of December 31, 2022, the principal balance was $14.5 million, with an estimated fair value of $12.2

million. The 2022 A1 Convertible Notes were converted into shares of the Successor’s common stock at the Closing.

Additionally, on March 30, 2022, the Predecessor amended the 2021 A1 Convertible Notes and the convertible notes issued on February 18,

2022 and March 9, 2022 to remove the discount rate associated with the automatic conversion of any outstanding convertible notes into shares

of common stock in connection with an initial public offering.

On March 6, 2023, the Predecessor entered into an agreement with A1, pursuant to which the Predecessor issued subordinated convertible

promissory notes to A1 with an aggregate principal amount of $6.0 million (“March 2023 A1 Convertible Notes”) that matured on the earlier of (x)

the date of the consummation of the Merger and (y) December 29, 2023. The March 2023 A1 Convertible Notes bore interest at 15.79%, based on

simple interest daily, unless issued at least five days prior to maturity date. The March 2023 A1 Convertible Notes had similar terms to the 2021

A1 Convertible Notes and 2022 A1 Convertible Notes and were unsecured and subordinated to the Predecessor’s other convertible notes. During

the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), the Predecessor recognized $8.4

million and $8.4 million, respectively, of income related to the decrease in the fair value of the March 2023 A1 Convertible Notes. The March 2023

A1 Convertible Notes were
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converted into shares of the Successor’s common stock at the Closing and was recorded “on the line” as part of the shares issued as

consideration in the Merger (see Note 3).

Note 5.    Daewoong Convertible Notes (Predecessor)

In August 2020, the Predecessor entered into a Convertible Promissory Note Purchase Agreement with Daewoong (the “Daewoong Purchase

Agreement”), pursuant to which the Predecessor issued Daewoong two subordinated convertible promissory notes (collectively, the “2020

Daewoong Convertible Notes”) with an aggregate principal amount of $25.0 million. The 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes had similar terms, of

which one was issued on August 27, 2020 with a principal amount of $10.0 million and the other was issued on September 18, 2020 with a

principal amount of $15.0 million. The 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes were unsecured and subordinated to the Predecessor’s 2019

Convertible Notes. The Predecessor’s payment and performance under the 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes was guaranteed by ABP Sub Inc.,

the Predecessor’s wholly owned subsidiary prior to the Merger.

The 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes bore interest daily at 3% per annum with semiannual compounding. Interest is paid in-kind by adding

the accrued amount thereof to the principal amount on a semi-annual basis on June 30th and December 31st of each calendar year for so long

as any principal amount remained outstanding (such paid in-kind interest, in the aggregate at any time, the “PIK Principal”). The 2020

Daewoong Convertible Notes had a maturity date of September 18, 2025.

Pursuant to the 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes’ terms, Daewoong could be required within have elected to convert all of the then

outstanding principal amount and all accrued and unpaid interest into the Predecessor’s common stock at any time following the date that

was 12 months after September 18, 2020, provided, that such election must have been made at the same time with respect to all notes issued to

Daewoong. The number of shares issuable upon any conversion would have been equal to (i) the outstanding principal amount (excluding PIK

Principal) divided by $25.0 million and (ii) multiplied by 9.99% of the balance sheet aggregate of all of the shares of the Predecessor’s common

stock then outstanding, the Predecessor’s common stock issuable upon conversion or exercise of all of the outstanding convertible or

exercisable securities, all outstanding vested or unvested options or warrants to purchase the Predecessor’s capital stock, but excluding all out-

of-the-money options, and all shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of any convertible debt (whether or not such debt would have

been convertible at such time).

Immediately prior to an initial public offering (“IPO”), all of the then outstanding principal amount and accrued and unpaid interest under

the 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes would have automatically converted into shares of the Predecessor’s common stock. The number of

shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes was equal to (i) the outstanding principal amount

(excluding PIK Principal) divided by $25.0 million and (ii) multiplied by the greater of (A) 9.99% of the pre-IPO shares of the Predecessor, and (B)

that number of shares having an aggregate value of $20.0 million immediately prior to the IPO based upon a price per share of such common

stock issued to the public in the IPO; provided, however, that in no event was Daewoong’s ownership to exceed 15% of the pre-IPO shares of the

Predecessor after taking into account conversion of the 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes. In the event, and only in the event, that shares of

the Predecessor were sold in the IPO whereby the pre-money valuation of the Predecessor was $200.0 million or greater, within five business

days of the conversion of the 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes, the Predecessor would have been required pay to Daewoong the PIK Principal

plus all accrued and unpaid interest either in cash or by the issuance of additional shares of common stock at the price per share in the IPO,

which payment method would have been be at the Predecessor’s sole election.

In May 2021, the Daewoong Purchase Agreement was amended to provide for the issuance of an additional subordinated convertible

promissory note by the Predecessor to Daewoong at an initial principal amount of $5.0 million. The subordinated convertible promissory note

was issued with terms similar to the two subordinated convertible promissory notes issued in 2020 and had a maturity date of May 12, 2026 (all

such convertible promissory notes, the “Daewoong Convertible Notes”).

Pursuant to the terms of the amended Daewoong Purchase Agreement, Daewoong could have elected to convert all of the then

outstanding principal amount and all accrued and unpaid interest into the Predecessor’s common stock at any time following the date that

was 12 months after September 18, 2020, provided, that such election must have been made at the same time with respect to all notes issued to

Daewoong. The number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion would have been equal to (i) the outstanding principal amount

(excluding PIK Principal) divided by $30.0 million and (ii) multiplied by 11.99% of the aggregate of all of the shares of the Predecessor’s common

stock then outstanding, the Predecessor’s common stock issuable upon conversion or exercise of all of the outstanding convertible or

exercisable securities, all outstanding vested or unvested options or warrants to purchase the Predecessor’s capital stock, but excluding all out-

of-the-money options, and all shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of any convertible debt (whether or not such debt would have

been convertible at such time).
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In addition, immediately prior to an initial public offering, all of the then outstanding principal amount and accrued and unpaid interest

under the convertible notes would have automatically converted into shares of the Predecessor’s common stock. The number of shares of

common stock issuable upon conversion of the convertible notes was equal to (i) the outstanding principal amount (excluding PIK Principal)

divided by $30.0 million and (ii) multiplied by the greater of (A) 11.99% of the pre-IPO shares of the Predecessor, and (B) that number of shares

having an aggregate value of $24.0 million immediately prior to the IPO based upon a price per share of such common stock issued to the public

in the IPO; provided, however, that in no event was Daewoong’s ownership to exceed 18% of the pre-IPO shares of the Predecessor after taking

into account conversion of the Daewoong Convertible Notes.

Due to certain embedded features within the Daewoong Convertible Notes, the Predecessor elected to account for the Daewoong

Convertible Notes, including the paid-in-kind principal and interest, and the embedded features at fair value at inception. Subsequent changes

in fair value were recorded as a component of other (loss) income in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive

loss or as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) for changes to instrument-specific credit risk. As a result of electing the fair value

option, any direct costs and fees related to the Daewoong Convertible Notes were expensed as incurred.

On July 29, 2022, the Predecessor entered into a Convertible Promissory Note Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) between the

Predecessor and Daewoong Co., LTD. and received $30 million. The related note had a stated interest rate of 15.79% per annum. Such note was

scheduled to mature on December 29, 2023 and had similar conversion terms to the Daewoong Convertible Notes. Such note could have been

prepaid, in whole, without premium or penalty at any time prior to the maturity date.

During the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), and the three and nine

months ended September 30, 2022, the Predecessor recognized $(10.8) million, $(10.4) million, $0.7 million and $11.5 million, respectively, of

(expense) income related to the (increase) decrease in the fair value of the Daewoong Convertible Notes. As of December 31, 2022, the principal

amount outstanding (excluding the PIK Principal) under the Daewoong Convertible Notes was $60 million, with an estimated fair value of $53.5

million. The Company has determinedDaewoong Convertible Notes were converted into shares of the warrants are a derivative

instrument. Successor’s common stock at the Closing.

Note 6.    Fair Value Measurements

Fair The Company measures fair value is defined asbased on the price prices that would be received for sale of to sell an asset or paid for to

transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. GAAP establishes a three-tier

The carrying value of cash, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, convertible notes approximate fair value hierarchy, which

prioritizesbecause of the inputs used in measuringshort-term nature of those instruments. There were no convertible notes outstanding at

September 30, 2023. The following are other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. The hierarchy givesvalue on a

recurring basis.

Convertible Notes at Fair Value (Predecessor)

Due to certain embedded features within the highest priorityconvertible notes, the Predecessor elected the fair value option to

unadjusted quoted prices in active marketsaccount for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) its convertible notes, including any

paid-in-kind principal and interest, and the embedded features. During the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and January 1,

2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), and the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, the Predecessor recognized $2.6 million, $(3.5)

million, $(0.7) million and $29.3 million, respectively, of (expense) income related to the (increase) decrease in the fair value of the convertible

notes. As of December 31, 2022, the principal amount outstanding under the convertible notes was $111 million, with an estimated fair value of

$131.3 million. The convertible notes were converted into shares of the Successor’s common stock at the Closing. See Note 4, “Related Party

Transactions (Predecessor),” and Note 5, “Daewoong Convertible Notes (Predecessor)” for more information on the convertible notes.

The fair value of the convertible notes was determined based on Level 3 inputs using a scenario-based analysis that estimated the fair value

of the convertible notes based on the probability-weighted present value of expected future investment returns, considering each of the

possible outcomes available to the noteholders, including various initial public offering, settlement, equity financing, corporate transaction

and dissolution scenarios. The significant unobservable input assumptions that can significantly change the fair value included (i) the weighted

average cost of capital, (ii) the timing of payments, (iii) the discount for lack of marketability, (iv) the probability of certain corporate scenarios,

and (v) the long-term pretax operating margin. During the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and January 1, 2023 to July 21,

2023 (Predecessor), the Predecessor utilized discount rates ranging from 15% to 40% and 15% to 45%, respectively, reflecting changes in the

Predecessor’s risk profile, time-to-maturity probability, and key terms when modified to the convertible notes.
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Preferred Stock Warrant Liability (Predecessor)

In 2016, in connection with an earlier debt issuance that has been subsequently settled, the Predecessor issued to one of its investors,

Longitude Venture Partners II, L.P. (“Longitude”), warrants to purchase 342,011 shares of the Predecessor’s Series B convertible preferred stock

at an exercise price of $7.3097 per share. The Predecessor accounted for the warrants as a liability, which were initially recorded at their fair

value of $0.8 million on the date of issuance and are subject to remeasurement at each subsequent balance sheet date. Any change in fair

value of the warrants as a result of the remeasurement was recognized as a component of other (loss) income, net in the accompanying

condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

The fair value of the warrant liability is determined based on Level 3 inputs using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which includes

expected volatility, risk-free interest rate, expected life and expected dividend yield. The warrant liability was not material as of December 31,

2022 (Predecessor) and there were no material changes in fair value for the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and January 1,

2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), and the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor). The preferred stock warrants

expired prior to the Closing.

Forward Purchase Agreements (Successor)

On June 29, 2023, Priveterra and Old AEON entered into the Forward Purchase Agreements with each of (i) ACM and (ii) Polar (each of ACM

ARRT J LLC and Polar, individually, a “Seller”, and together, the “Sellers”) for OTC Equity Prepaid Forward Transactions. For purposes of each

Forward Purchase Agreement, Priveterra is referred to as the “Company” prior to the consummation of the Merger, while AEON is referred to as

the “Company” after the consummation of the Merger.

Pursuant to the terms of the Forward Purchase Agreements, the Sellers intended, but were not obligated, to purchase up to 7,500,000

shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock in the aggregate concurrently with the Closing pursuant to each Seller’s respective FPA Funding

Amount PIPE Subscription Agreement, less the 236,236 shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock purchased by ACM ARRT J LLC from third-

parties through a broker in the open market prior to the Closing, for which all redemptions rights were irrevocably waived (such shares, the

“Recycled Shares”). No Seller shall be required to purchase an amount of shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock that would result in that

Seller owning more than 9.9% of the total shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to such

purchase, unless such Seller, at its sole discretion, waives such 9.9% ownership limitation. The Number of Shares subject to a Forward Purchase

Agreement is subject to reduction following a termination of the Forward Purchase Agreements with respect to such shares as described under

“Optional Early Termination” (“OET”) in the respective Forward Purchase Agreements.

Each Forward Purchase Agreement provides that a Seller will be paid directly the Prepayment Amount which was equal to an aggregate of

$66.7 million based on the product of (i) 6,275,000 shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock (the “Additional Shares”) and (ii) the redemption

price per share of $10.63.

On July 21, 2023, the Company was obligated to pay each Seller separately the Prepayment Amount required under its respective Forward

Purchase Agreement, except that since the Prepayment Amount payable to a Seller was to be paid from the purchase of the Additional Shares

by such Seller pursuant to the terms of its respective FPA Funding Amount PIPE Subscription Agreement, such amount was netted against such

proceeds, with such Seller being able to reduce the purchase price for the Additional Shares by the Prepayment Amount. For the avoidance of

doubt, any Additional Shares purchased by a Seller will be included in the Number of Shares for its respective Forward Purchase Agreement for

all purposes, including for determining the Prepayment Amount. Therefore, the aggregate Prepayment Amount of $66.7 million was netted

against the proceeds paid from the purchase of the Additional Shares in the aggregate by the Sellers pursuant to the FPA Funding Amount PIPE

Subscription Agreements. The Prepayment Amount of $66.7 million was recorded at its present value of $60.7 million as Subscription

Receivables, which reduces stockholders’ deficit on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. The $6 million difference between the

subscription receivables and the present value of the subscription receivables at Closing was recorded as a loss “on the line” in the Successor’s 

opening accumulated deficit (see Note 3).

The redemption price per share in the Forward Purchase Agreements is subject to a reset price (the "Reset Price"). The Reset Price was

initially the redemption price per share of $10.63 per share. Beginning 90 days after the Closing, the Reset Price became subject to monthly

resets, to be the lowest priorityof (a) the then-current Reset Price, (b) $10.63 and (c) the 30-day volume-weighted average price of the Company’s
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Common Stock immediately preceding such monthly reset. The monthly resets of the Reset Price are subject to unobservable inputs (Level 3

measurements). These tiers consist of: a floor of $7.00 per share (the “Reset Price Floor”); however, if during the term of the Forward Purchase

Agreements, the Company
● Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in active markets;

● Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable such as quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and

● Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions, such as
valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.
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sells or issues any shares of Common Stock or securities convertible or exercisable for shares of Common Stock at an effective price of less than

the Reset Price (a “Dilutive Offering”), then the Reset Price would immediately reset to the effective price of such offering and the Reset Price

Floor would be eliminated. Additionally, in the event of a Dilutive Offering, the maximum number of shares available under the Forward

Purchase Agreements could be increased if the Dilutive Offering occurs at a price below $10.00 per shares. The maximum number of shares 

would be reset to equal 7,500,000 divided by a number equal to the offering price in the Dilutive Offering divided by $10.00. As of November 10,

2023, the Reset Price is equal to $7.00 per share and the closing price for the Company’s Common Stock was $4.18. Elimination of the Reset Price

Floor may result in the Sellers selling the shares covered by the Forward Purchase Agreements at lower prices and in the Company receiving less

of the Prepayment Amount.

The Company accountsdid not have access to the Prepayment Amount immediately following the Closing and, depending on the mannerof

settlement for income taxesthe transactions covered by the Forward Purchase Agreements, may have limited or no access to the Prepayment

Amount, particularly if the Company’s Common Stock continues to trade below the prevailing Reset Price. Further, the Company may be

required to make cash payments to the counterparties in respect of settlement amounts under the Forward Purchase Agreements, such as in

the case of a failure to maintain the listing of the Company’s Common Stock on a national securities exchange. Any of the above scenarios may

adversely affect the Company’s liquidity and capital needs.

From time to time and on any date following the Merger (any such date, an “OET Date”), any Seller may, in its absolute discretion, terminate

its Forward Purchase Agreement in whole or in part by providing written notice to the Company (the “OET Notice”), no later than the next

Payment Date following the OET Date (which shall specify the quantity by which the Number of Shares shall be reduced (such quantity, the

“Terminated Shares”)). The effect of an OET Notice shall be to reduce the Number of Shares by the number of Terminated Shares specified in

such OET Notice with effect as of the related OET Date. As of each OET Date, the Company shall be entitled to an amount from the Seller, and

the Seller shall pay to the Company an amount, equal to the product of (x) the number of Terminated Shares and (y) the Reset Price in respect

of such OET Date. The payment date may be changed within a quarter at the mutual agreement of the parties.

The “Valuation Date” will be the earlier to occur of (a) the date that is two years after the Closing Date pursuant to the Business

Combination Agreement; (b) the date specified by Seller in a written notice to be delivered to AEON at such Seller’s discretion (which Valuation

Date shall not be earlier than the day such notice is effective) after the occurrence of any of (w) a VWAP Trigger Event, (x) a Delisting Event, or (y)

a Registration Failure (defined terms in each of clauses (b)(w) through (b)(y), as described in further detail below) and (c) 90 days after delivery by

AEON of a written notice in the event that for any 20 trading days during a 30 consecutive trading day-period that occurs at least 6 months after

the Closing Date, the VWAP Price is less than the current Reset Price Floor of $7.00 per share; provided, however, that the Reset Price may be

reduced immediately to any lower price at which the Company sells, issues or grants any shares or securities convertible or exchangeable into

shares (other than, among other things, grants or issuances under the Company’s equity compensation plans, any securities issued in

connection with the Merger or any securities issued in connection with the FPA Funding Amount PIPE Subscription Agreements), subject to

certain exceptions, in which case the Reset Price Floor would be eliminated. Elimination of the Reset Price Floor may result in the Sellers selling

the shares covered by the Forward Purchase Agreements at lower prices and in the Company receiving less of the Prepayment Amount.

On the Cash Settlement Payment Date, which is the tenth local business day following the last day of the valuation period commencing on

the Valuation Date, a Seller shall pay the Company a cash amount equal to (1) (A) a maximum of up to 7,500,000 shares of common stock (the

“Number of Shares”) as of the Valuation Date less the number of Unregistered Shares, multiplied by (B) the volume-weighted daily VWAP Price

over the Valuation Period less (2) if the Settlement Amount Adjustment is less than the cash amount to be paid, the Settlement Amount
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Adjustment. The Settlement Amount Adjustment is equal to (1) the Number of Shares as of the Valuation Date multiplied by (2) $2.00 per share,

and the Settlement Amount Adjustment will be automatically netted from the Settlement Amount. . For example, if the VWAP Price over the

Valuation Period were equal to the sales price of the Company’s Common Stock on November 10, 2023, or $4.18, the Company would receive a

cash amount equal to (A) (i) the number of shares to be sold by the Sellers multiplied by (ii) $4.18, less (B) the product of (i) such number of shares

sold by the Sellers multiplied by (ii) $2.00; in other words, the Sellers would be obligated to pay the Company $2.18 per share sold by the Sellers. If

the Sellers were to sell all 6,275,000 shares of Common Stock purchased at the Closing, the Company would receive an aggregate of $13.7 million

in proceeds, based on such sales price of $4.18. However, if the shares are neither registered for resale under an effective resale registration

statement (the deadline for which is 120 days, subject to certain conditions, after a written request for registration by a Seller) nor transferable

without any restrictions pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of Section 5 of the Securities Act, including pursuant to

Rule 144 (the “Unregistered Shares”), such Unregistered Shares would not be included in the calculation of the Settlement Amount and the

Seller would not be obligated to pay us any amount, but the Company would still be obligated to pay such Seller the Settlement Amount

Adjustment of $2.00 per share. In such a scenario, if all 6,275,000 shares of
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Common Stock purchased by the Sellers at the Closing were Unregistered Shares at settlement, the Company would potentially owe the Sellers

an aggregate of approximately $12.6 million.

If the Settlement Amount Adjustment exceeds the Settlement Amount, the Company will pay the Seller in shares of common stock or, at

the Company’s election, in cash (other than a Delisting Event as defined in the agreement, in which case the Settlement Amount Adjustment

would be settled in cash). Under such circumstances, the Company may not have sufficient shares authorized and may not have sufficient

funds or be able to obtain financing from third parties to pay such amount. Breach by the Company of any of these obligations could constitute

an event of default under a Forward Purchase Agreement, which could subject the Company to financial exposure thereunder (including

arising from potential indemnification claims by a Seller). These uncertainties with respect to the number of shares the Company may be

required to issue or amount of cash the Company may owe under the Forward Purchase Agreements could materially and adversely affect the

Company’s ability to raise capital, the Company’s liquidity position, the Company’s ability to operate the Company’s business and execute the

Company’s business strategy, and the trading volatility and price of the Company’s securities. In addition, future debt or other contractual

agreements may contain cross-default or cross-acceleration provisions that could be triggered if the Company defaulted on its obligations to a

Seller. The Forward Purchase Agreements would be canceled and all obligations due thereunder would be accelerated in the event of the

bankruptcy of the Company or a sale of the Company for consideration other than stock of another entity. In the event of a tender offer or a

sale of the Company for stock of another company, the terms of the Forward Purchase Agreement would be adjusted to give effect to the

tender offer or sale transaction.Any or all of these consequences could have material adverse consequences for the Company.

Based on the applicable guidance in ASC 740, “Income Taxes.” 480, ASC 740, requires815, ASC 505 and SAB 4E, the recognition Company has 

determined that each of deferred tax assetsits forward purchase agreements entered in connection with the Merger is a freestanding hybrid 

financial instrument comprising a subscription receivable and liabilitiesembedded features, which have been bifurcated and accounted for 

both separately as derivative instruments. The Company has recorded the expected impact of differences between the unaudited condensed 

consolidated financial statements and tax basis of assets andderivatives as liabilities and for measured them at fair value with the expected 

future tax benefit to be derived from tax initial value of the derivative of $32.3 million and the loss and tax credit carry forwards. ASC 740 

additionally requireson issuance of $6.0 million recorded as a valuation allowance to be established when it is more likely than not that all or a 

portion of deferred tax assets will not be realized. As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, loss “on the Company’s deferred tax asset had a full 

valuation allowance recorded against it. The Company’s tax rate was 2.69% and 0.93% for line” in the three months ended June 30, 2023 and 

2022, respectively, (7.85)% and 0.37% for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The effective tax rate differs from the 

statutory tax rate of 21% for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, primarily due to Successor’s opening accumulated deficit 

(see Note 3). Subsequent changes in the valuation allowance on bifurcated derivatives are recorded in the deferred tax assets.

ASC 740 also clarifiescondensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. For the accounting for uncertainty in income

taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements and prescribesperiod from July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), the Company

recorded a recognition threshold and measurement process for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or

expected to be taken in a tax return. For those benefits to be recognized, a tax position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon
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examination by taxing authorities. ASC 740 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in

interim period, disclosure and transition.

The Company recognizes accrued interest and penaltiesloss related to unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense. There were no

unrecognized tax benefits and no amounts accrued for interest and penalties asthe change in fair value of June 30, 2023 and December 31,

2022derivatives of $15.5 million. The Company is currently not aware utilized the Monte-Carlo valuation model to value the forward purchase

agreements at Closing date and as of any issues under review that could result in September 30, 2023. The following table summarizes the

significant payments, accruals or material deviation from its position.

The Company has identified the United States as its only “major” tax jurisdiction. The Company is subject to income taxation by major taxing

authorities since inception. These examinations may include questioning the timing and amount of deductions, the nexus of income among

various tax jurisdictions and compliance with federal and state tax laws. The Company’s management does not expect that the total amount of

unrecognized tax benefits will materially change over the next twelve months.

Risks and Uncertainties

Management continues to evaluate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the industry and has concluded that while it is reasonably possible

that the virus could have a negative effect on the Company’s financial position, results of its operations and/or search for a target company, the

specific impact is not readily determinable inputs as of the date valuation dates:

September 30,  July 21,

2023 2023

Stock Price $ 5.60 $ 10.84

Expected volatility   67.00%   55.00%

Risk-free interest rate   5.11%   4.82%

Expected life (in years)   1.81   2

Expected dividend yield   —   —

New Money PIPE Subscription Agreements and Letter Agreements

On June 29, 2023, Priveterra entered into separate subscription agreements (the “New Money PIPE Subscription Agreements”) with each of

these condensed consolidated financial statements. ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP, the Polar Affiliate and certain other investors (collectively,

the “New Money PIPE Investors”). Pursuant to the New Money PIPE Subscription Agreements, the New Money PIPE Investors subscribed for and

purchased, and Priveterra issued and sold to the New Money PIPE Investors, on the Closing Date, an aggregate of 1,001,000 shares of Priveterra

Class A Common Stock for a purchase price of $7.00 per share, for aggregate gross proceeds of $7.0 million (the “New Money PIPE Investment”).

The condensed consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustmentsCompany recorded a loss of $3.8 million on the line in the

Successor’s opening accumulated deficit related to issuance of common shares underlying the New Money PIPE Subscription Agreement equal

to the market price of the stock on the Closing Date less the purchase price of $7.00 per share.

On June 29, 2023, the Sponsor entered into separate letter agreements (each, “Letter Agreement” and collectively, the “Letter Agreements”)

with each of ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP and Polar. Pursuant to the Letter Agreements, in the event that might result from the

outcome average price per share at which shares of this uncertainty. common stock purchased pursuant to the New Money PIPE Subscription

Agreements that
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In February 2022, are transferred during the Russian Federation and Belarus commenced a military action with the country of Ukraine. As a

result of this action, various nations, including the United States, have instituted economic sanctions against the Russian Federation and
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Belarus. Further, the impact of this action and related sanctionsperiod ending on the world economyearliest of (A) June 21, 2025, (B) the date on

which the applicable Forward Purchase Agreement terminates and (C) the date on which all such shares are not determinable sold (such price,

the “Transfer VWAP”, and such period, the “Measurement Period”) is less than $7.00 per share, then (i) ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP and Polar

shall be entitled to receive from Sponsor a number of additional shares of common stock that have been registered for resale by us under an

effective resale registration statement pursuant to the Securities Act, under which ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP and Polar may sell or transfer

such shares of common stock in an amount that is equal to the lesser of (A) a number of shares of common stock equal to the Make-Whole

Amount divided by the VWAP (measured as of the date the additional shares are transferred to ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP or Polar, as

applicable) and (B) an aggregate of these 400,000 shares of common stock (the “Additional Founder Shares”) and (ii) Sponsor shall promptly (but

in any event within fifteen (15) business days) after the Measurement Date, transfer the Additional Founder Shares to ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C

LP or Polar, as applicable. “Make-Whole Amount” means an amount equal to the product of (A) $7.00 minus the Transfer VWAP multiplied by (B)

the number of Transferred PIPE Shares. “VWAP” means the per share volume weighted average price of the common stock in respect of the five

consecutive trading days ending on the trading day immediately prior to the Measurement Date. “Measurement Date” means the last day of

the Measurement Period.

Based on the terms of the Letter Agreements, and applicable guidance in ASC 815 and SAB 5.T, “Accounting for Expenses or Liabilities Paid by

Principal Stockholder(s)”, the Company has determined that the make-whole provision in the Letter Agreements is a freestanding financial

instrument and a derivative instrument. The Company has recorded the derivative liability and measured it at fair value with the initial value

of the derivative ($0.4 million) recorded as a loss “on the line” in the Successor’s opening accumulated deficit (see Note 3). Subsequent changes

in fair value of the make-whole provision are recorded in the condensed consolidated financial statements. The specific impact on the

Company’s financial condition, resultsstatements of operations and cash flows is also not determinable ascomprehensive loss. As of September

30, 2023 (Successor), the make-whole provision derivative liability was $0.7 million, included in the forward purchase agreements and derivative

liability on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. For the period from July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), the Company

recorded a loss related to the change in fair value of the date make-whole provision derivative liability of these condensed consolidated

financial statements. $0.3 million.

On January 5, 2023, in

Committed Financing

In connection with the Merger, on January 6, 2023, Priveterra and Old AEON entered into separate subscription agreements for convertible

notes with each of Alphaeon 1 LLC (“A1”) and Daewoong Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Daewoong”) (collectively, the “Original Committed Financing

Agreements”), pursuant to which A1 and Daewoong agreed to purchase, and Priveterra and Old AEON agreed to sell to each of them, up to $15

million and $5 million, respectively, aggregate of principal of interim convertible notes. Further, on June 8, 2023, Old AEON and Priveterra

entered into a committed financing agreement with A1 (the “Additional Committed Financing Agreement”), pursuant to which A1 agreed to

purchase, and Priveterra and Old AEON agreed to sell to A1, up to an additional $20 million aggregate principal of interim convertible notes.

Pursuant to such agreement, the Company issued $14 million of interim convertible notes to A1 in the first and second quarters of 2023, and $25

million was received at Closing in exchange for an aggregate of 5,797,611 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at $7.00 per share. The

proceeds from the interim convertible notes were used to fund Old AEON’s operations through the consummation of the Merger.

The Company recorded a loss of $13.7 million on the line in the Successor’s opening accumulated deficit related to issuance of common

shares underlying the Committed Financing Agreements equal to the market price of the stock on the Closing Date less the purchase price of

$7.00 per share.

Contingent Consideration and Contingent Founder Shares (Successor)

As part of the Merger, Founder Shares and certain Participating Stockholders shares (together, “Contingent Consideration Shares”), as

further discussed below, contain certain contingent provisions.

On April 27, 2023, Priveterra and Old AEON amended the Business Combination Proposal, a purposed stockholder of the Company filed a

complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, against the Company and its board of directors, alleging

that the registration statement on Form S-4 filed on December 27, 2022Agreement. Concurrently with the SEC omitted material information

related to the Business Combination. Since the filing of the complaint, several purported stockholder of the Company have also sent demand

letters to the Company’s counsel, similarly alleging that the registration statement filed by the Company on December 27, 2022 with the SEC

omitted material information relatedamendment to the Business Combination Agreement, Priveterra amended the Sponsor Support

Agreement to include restriction and demanding that forfeiture provisions related to the Company, its boardFounder Shares. In addition

following the Closing, certain AEON Stockholders will be issued up to 16,000,000 additional shares of directors and/or AEON make supplemental

corrective disclosures addressingcommon stock.

Pursuant to the alleged deficiencies.
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Inflation Reduction Act of 2022

On August 16, 2022, the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (the “IR Act”) was signed into federal law. The IR Act provides for, among other things, a

new U.S. federal 1% excise tax on certain repurchases of stock by publicly traded U.S. domestic corporations and certain U.S. domestic

subsidiaries of publicly traded foreign corporations occurring on or after January 1, 2023. The excise tax is imposed on the repurchasing

corporation itself, not its stockholder from which shares are repurchased. The amount terms of the excise tax is generally 1% Sponsor Support

Agreement, as amended, effective immediately after the Closing, 50% of the fair market value of the shares repurchased at the time of the

repurchase. However, for purposes of calculating the excise tax, repurchasing corporations are permitted to net the fair market value of

certain new stock issuances against the fair market value of stock repurchases during the same taxable year. In addition, certain exceptions

apply to the excise tax. The U.S. Department of the TreasuryFounder Shares (i.e., 3,450,000 Founder Shares) (the “Treasury” “Contingent

Founder Shares”) has been given authority to provide regulationswere unvested and other guidance to carry out and prevent the abuse or

avoidance of the excise tax.

On December 27, 2022, the Treasury published Notice 2023-2, which provided clarification on some aspects of the application of the excise tax.

The notice generally provides that if a publicly traded U.S. corporation completely liquidates and dissolves, distributions in such complete

liquidation and other distributions by such corporation in the same taxable year in which the final distribution in complete liquidation and

dissolution is made are not subject to the excise tax. Although such notice clarifies certain aspectsrestrictions and forfeiture provisions set

forth in this Sponsor Support Agreement. The remaining 50% of the excise tax, the interpretation Founder Shares and operation of aspects of

the excise tax (including its application and operation with respect to SPACs) remain unclear and such interim operating rules are subject to

change.

Because the application of this excise tax is not entirely clear, any redemption or other repurchase effected by the Company in connection

with a business combination, extension vote or otherwise, may be subject to this excise tax. Because any such excise tax would be payable by

the Company and not by the redeeming holder, it could cause a reduction in the value of Class A common stock, cash available with which to

effectuate a business combination or cash available for distribution in a subsequent liquidation. Whether and to what extent the Company

would be subject to the excise tax in connection with a business combination will depend on a number of factors, including (i) the structure of

the business combination, (ii) the fair market value of the redemptions and repurchases in connection with the business combination, (iii) the

nature and amount of any “PIPE” or other equity issuances in connection with the business combination (or any other equity issuances within

the same taxable year of the business combination) and (iv) the content of any subsequent regulations, clarifications, and other guidance

issued by the Treasury. Further, the application of the excise tax in respect of distributions pursuant to a liquidation of a publicly traded U.S.

corporation is uncertain and has not been addressed by the Treasury in regulations, and it is possible that the proceeds held in the trust

account could be used to pay any excise tax owed the Company in the event it is unable to complete a business combination in the required

time and redeem 100% of the remaining Class A common stock in accordance with the amended and restated certificate of incorporation, in

which case the amount that would otherwise be received by the public stockholders in connection with the Company’s liquidation would be

reduced.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-13, Financial Instruments-

Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which requires entities to measure all expected credit losses

for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts.

ASU 2016-13 also requires additional disclosures regarding significant estimates and judgments used in estimating credit losses, as well as the

credit quality and underwriting standards of an entity’s portfolio. The Company adopted the Private
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Placement Warrants are not subject to such restrictions and forfeiture provisions. The Contingent Founder Shares shall vest, and shall become

free of the provisions as follows:

●  1,000,000 of this guidance the Contingent Founder Shares (the “Migraine Phase 3 Contingent Founder Shares”) shall vest

upon the achievement of the conditions for the issuance of the Migraine Phase 3 Contingent Consideration Shares on January 1,

2023. The adoption did not have a material impact or prior to the Migraine Phase 3 Outside Date;
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● 1,000,000 of the Contingent Founder Shares (the “CD BLA Contingent Founder Shares”) shall vest upon the achievement of

the conditions for the issuance of the CD BLA Contingent Consideration Shares on or prior to the Company’s condensed

consolidated financial statements. CD BLA Outside Date; and

● 1,450,000 of the Contingent Founder Shares (the “Episodic/Chronic Migraine Contingent Founder Shares”) shall vest upon

the earlier of (x) the achievement of the conditions for the issuance of the Episodic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares on

or before the Episodic Migraine Outside Date and (y) the achievement of the conditions for the issuance of the Chronic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares on or before the Chronic Migraine Outside Date.

The Company’s management doesSponsor has agreed not believe to vote the Contingent Founder Shares during any period of time that any

recentlysuch Contingent Founder Shares are subject to vesting.

Following the Closing, in addition to the consideration received at the Closing and as part of the overall consideration paid in connection

with the Merger, certain holders of common stock in Old AEON (the “Participating AEON Stockholders”) will be issued but not yet effective,

accounting standards, a portion of up to 16,000,000 additional shares of common stock, as follows:

● 1,000,000 shares of common stock, in the aggregate, if, currently adopted would have a material effect on or before June 30,

2025 (as it may be extended, the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3. INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

On February 11, 2021“Migraine Phase 3 Outside Date”), the Company shall have commenced a Phase 3 clinical study for the treatment of

chronic migraine or episodic migraine, which Phase 3 clinical study will have been deemed to commence upon the first subject having received

a dose of any product candidate that is being researched, tested, developed or manufactured by or on behalf of the Company or any of its

subsidiaries (any such product candidate, a “Company Product”) in connection with such Phase 3 clinical study (such 1,000,000 shares of

common stock, the “Migraine Phase 3 Contingent Consideration Shares”); and

● 4,000,000 shares of common stock, in the aggregate, if, on or before November 30, 2026 (as it may be extended, the “CD BLA

Outside Date”), the Company shall have received from the FDA acceptance for review of the BLA submitted by the Company for

the treatment of cervical dystonia (such 4,000,000 shares of common stock, the “CD BLA Contingent Consideration Shares”);

●  4,000,000 shares of common stock, in the aggregate, if, on or before June 30, 2029 (as it may be extended, the “Episodic

Migraine Outside Date”), the Company shall have received from the FDA acceptance for review of the BLA submitted by the

Company for the treatment of episodic migraine (such 4,000,000 shares of common stock, the “Episodic Migraine Contingent

Consideration Shares”); provided that in the event the satisfaction of the conditions for the issuance of the Episodic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares occurs prior to the satisfaction of the conditions for the issuance of the Chronic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares, then the number of Episodic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares shall be increased to

11,000,000 shares of common stock; and

●  7,000,000 shares of common stock, in the aggregate, if, on or before June 30, 2028 (as it may be extended, the “Chronic 

Migraine Outside Date”, and together with the Migraine Phase 3 Outside Date, the CD BLA Outside Date and the Episodic 

Migraine Outside Date, the “Outside Dates”), the Company shall have received from the FDA acceptance for review of the BLA 

submitted by AEON for the treatment of chronic migraine (such 7,000,000 shares of common stock, the “Chronic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares”); provided that in the event that the number of Episodic Migraine Contingent Consideration

Shares is increased to 11,000,000, then the number of Chronic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares shall be decreased to

zero and no Contingent Consideration Shares will be issued in connection with the satisfaction of the conditions to the issuance

of the Chronic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares.
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●  In the event that the Company licenses any of its products (except in connection with migraine or cervical dystonia

indications) to a third-party licensor for distribution in the U.S. market (a “Qualifying License”) prior to the satisfaction of (x) the

conditions for the issuance of the Episodic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares and (y) the conditions for the issuance of

the Chronic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares, then upon the entry of AEON into such Qualifying License, 2,000,000

shares of common stock shall become due and payable to Participating Stockholders and the number of Episodic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares and (A) the number of Episodic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares shall be reduced by

1,000,000 or by 2,000,000 and (B) the number of Chronic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares shall be reduced by 1,000,000,

but not below zero.

The Company accounts for the Contingent Consideration Shares as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an

assessment of the Contingent Consideration Shares specific terms and applicable authoritative guidance in ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities

from Equity (“ASC 480”) and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”). Based on the appropriate guidance, the Company determined that the

Contingent Consideration Shares would be classified as a liability on the condensed consolidated balance sheets and remeasured at each

reporting period with changes to fair value recorded to the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, while

the founder shares were recorded to equity. As of September 30, 2023 (Successor), the contingent consideration liability was $72.1 million. For

the period from July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), the income related to the change in fair value of contingent consideration was

$69.7 million.

The Company utilized the Probability-Weighted Expected Return Method (PWERM) model to value the contingent consideration based on

earnout milestones, probability of forfeiture and success scenarios. For the successor period July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023, the Company

recognized $69.7 million in income related to the change in fair value of contingent consideration on the condensed consolidated statements of

operations and comprehensive loss.

Warrants (Successor)

Upon the Closing, 14,479,999 warrants initially issued by Priveterra in February 2021, consisting of 9,200,000 public warrants sold 27,600,000

Units, in the IPO and 5,279,999 warrants issued in a concurrent private placement, were assumed by AEON. The terms of the warrants are

governed by a Warrant Agreement dated February 8, 2021 between the Company (then known as Priveterra Acquisition Corp.) and Continental

Stock Transfer & Trust Company (the “Warrant Agreement”).

The warrants were accounted for as a liability at a purchase the Closing with changes in the fair value through September 30, 2023 recorded

to the condensed consolidated statement of operations. The Company utilized the publicly reported market price of $ 10.00 per Unit, which

includes the full exercise bypublic warrants to value the underwriterswarrant liability at $2.2 million as of their option September 30, 2023

(Successor). For the Successor period from July 22, 2023 to purchase an additional 3,600,000 Units at $10.00 per Unit. September 30, 2023, the

income from the change in fair value of warrants was $1.6 million.

Public warrants

Each Unit was sold at $10.00 and consisted of one share of Class A common stock, and one-thirdwhole public warrant entitles the holder to

purchase one share of Class A common stock (“Public Warrant”). Each whole Public Warrant entitles the holder thereof to purchase one share

of Company’s common stock at a price of $11.50 per share, subject to adjustment. Each warrant will become share. The public warrants became

exercisable on the later of 30 days after the completion of the initial Business Combination or 12 months after the closing of the Company’s IPO

on February 11, 2021Merger, andwill expire five years after the completion of the initial Business Combination, or earlier upon redemption or

liquidation. (see Note 4).

The Company paid underwriting fees at the closing of the IPO of $5,520,000. As of February 11, 2021 an additional fee of $9,660,000 (see Note 6) was

deferred and will become payable upon the Company’s completion of an initial Business Combination. The deferred portion of the fee will

become payable to the underwriters from the amounts held in the Trust Account solely in the event the Company completes its initial Business

Combination.

Warrants — Each whole warrant entitles the holder to purchase one Class A common stock at a price of $11.50 per share, subject to adjustment

as discussed herein. In addition, if (x) the Company issue additional shares of Class A common stock or equity-linked securities for capital raising

purposes in connection with the closing of the initial Business Combination at an issue price or effective issue price of less than $9.20 per share

of Class A common stock (with such issue price or effective issue price to be determined in good faith by the Company’s board of directors and, in

the case of any such issuance to the initial stockholders or their affiliates, without taking into account any founder shares held by the initial

stockholders or such affiliates, as applicable, prior to such issuance), (the “Newly Issued Price”) (y) the aggregate gross proceeds from such

issuances represent more than 60% of the total equity proceeds, and interest thereon, available for the funding of the initial Business

Combination on the date of the consummation of the initial Business Combination (net of redemptions), and (z) the volume weighted average

trading price of the Company’s Class A common stock during the 20 trading day period starting on the trading day after the day on which the
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Company consummates its initial Business Combination (such price, the “Market Value”) is below $9.20 per share, the exercise price of the

warrants will be adjusted (to the nearest cent) to be equal to 115% of the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price, and the $18.00

per share redemption trigger price described under “— Redemption of warrants” will be adjusted (to the nearest cent) to be equal to 180% of

the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price.

The warrants will become exercisable on the later of 12 months from the closing of the IPO or 30 days after the completion of its initial Business

Combination, and will expire five years after the completion of the Company’s initial Business Combination, at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on

July 21, 2028, the five-year anniversary of the completion of the Merger, or earlier upon redemption or liquidation.

The Company has agreed that as soon as practicable, but in no event later than fifteen (15) business days after the closing of the initial Business

Combination, it will use its best efforts to file with the SEC a registration statement for the registration, under the Securities Act, of the Class A

common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants. The Company will use its best efforts to cause the same to become effective and to

maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement, and a current prospectus relating thereto, until the expiration or redemption of

the warrants in accordance with the provisions of the warrant agreement. If a registration statement covering the Class A common stock

issuable upon exercise of the warrants is not effective by the sixtieth (60th) business day after the closing of the initial Business Combination,

warrant  Warrant holders may, until such time as there is an effective registration statement and during any period when the Company will

have has failed to maintain an effective registration statement covering the shares of the Company’s common stock issuable upon exercise of

the warrants, exercise warrants on a “cashless“cashless” basis” in accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act or another exemption.

Notwithstanding the above, if the Company’s Class A common stock are at the time of any exercise of a warrant not listedexception. When

exercised on a national securities exchange such that they satisfycashless basis, the definition number of a “covered security” under Section

18(b)(1) of the Securities Act, the Company may, shares received per warrant is capped at its option, require holders of public warrants who

exercise their warrants to do so on a “cashless basis” in accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act and, in the event the Company so

elect, it will not be required to file or maintain in effect a registration statement, and in the event the Company does not so elect, it will use its

best efforts to register or qualify the shares under applicable blue sky laws to the extent an exemption is not available. 0.361.
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Once the warrants become exercisable, the The Company may call the public warrants for redemption for cash:

● in whole and not in part;
● at a price of $0.01 per warrant;
● upon not less than 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption to each warrant holder (the “30-day “30-day redemption period”);
● if, and only if, there is an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933 covering the issuance of the shares of common stock

issuable upon exercise of the warrants, and a current prospectus relating thereto, available through the 30-day redemption period; and

27

Table of Contents

● if, and only if, the closing price of the Company's common stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock
capitalizations, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like and for certain issuances of Class A common stock and equity-linked securities for
capital raising purposes in connection with the closing of the initial Business Combination as described elsewhere in the IPO) like) for any 20
trading days within a 30-trading day period ending three business days before the Company sends to the notice of redemption to the warrant
holders;holders.

The Company may also call the public warrants for redemption:

● in whole and not in part;
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● at $0.10 per warrant upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption provided that holders will be able to exercise their warrants
on a cashless basis prior to redemption and receive that number of shares to be determined by reference to a table in the Warrant Agreement,
based on the redemption date and the “fair market value” (as defined in the Warrant Agreement) of common stock except as otherwise described
below; and

● if, and only if, the last saleclosing price of the Class ACompany’s common stock is less than $18.00equals or exceeds $10.00 per share (as adjusted
for stock splits, stock dividends, capitalizations, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like),  for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day
period ending three business days before the Private Placement Warrants must also be concurrently called forCompany sends to the notice of
redemption on to the same terms (except as described above with respect to a holder’s ability to cashless exercise its warrants) as the
outstanding public warrants, as described above.warrant holders.

NOTE 4. PRIVATE PLACEMENT

Simultaneously with the closing of the IPO, the Sponsor purchased an aggregate of 5,213,333 Private Placement Warrants, at a price of $1.50 per

Private Placement Warrant, for an aggregate purchase price of $7,820,000. placement warrants

Each Private Placement Warrant private placement warrant was identical to the Public Warrantspublic warrants initially sold by Priveterra

in the IPO, except that the Private Placement Warrants, private placement warrants, so long as they are held by the Sponsor or its permitted

transferees, (i) will not be redeemable by the Company (ii) may not (including the Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of these

warrants), subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by the holders until 30 days after the completion of the

Company’s initial Business Combination, and (iii) (ii) may be exercised by the holders on a cashless basis. The Company’s Sponsor has agreed to (i)

waive its redemption rights with respect to its founder shares and public shares in connection with the completion of the Company’s initial

Business Combination, (ii) waive its redemption rights with respect to its founder shares and public shares in connection with a stockholder

vote to approve an amendment to the Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation (A) to modify the substance or timing of

the Company’s obligation to redeem 100% of its public shares if the Company does not complete its initial Business Combination within 24

months from the closing of the Company’s IPO on February 11, 2021 or (B) with respect to any other provision relating to stockholders’ rights or

pre-initial Business Combination activity and (iii) waive its rights to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to its founder

shares if the Company fails to complete its initial Business Combination within 18 months (or up to 24 months if the Company extends the

period of time) from the closing of the Company’s IPO on February 11, 2021. In addition, the Company’s Sponsor has agreed to vote any founder

shares held by them and any public shares purchased during or after the Company’s IPO (including in open market and privately negotiated

transactions) in favor of the Company’s initial Business Combination.

NOTE 5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On December 17, 2020Medytox Top-off Right

The Predecessor entered into a settlement agreement with Medytox, Inc. (“Medytox”) (the “Settlement Agreement”), effective as of June 21,

2021, as amended on May 5, 2022. Pursuant to the Sponsor paid $25,000, or approximately $0.004 per Settlement Agreement, among other things,

the Predecessor agreed to enter into a share issuance agreement with Medytox pursuant to cover certain offering costs in consideration for

5,750,000 Class B which the Predecessor issued 26,680,511 shares of Old AEON common stock, par value $0.0001 (the “Founder Shares”). On

February 8, 2021, as part per share, to Medytox. The Settlement Agreement stated that in the event the shares of an upsizingOld AEON common

stock the Predecessor issued to Medytox represent less than 10% of the IPO, Predecessor’s total outstanding shares immediately prior to the

consummation of the Merger (the “Target Ownership”), the Company effected a stock split in which each issued share will issue additional

shares of Class B Old AEON common stock that was outstanding was converted into one and two tenthsto Medytox sufficient to cause Medytox

to achieve the Target Ownership (the “Top-off Right”).

Because the shares of Class B Old AEON common stock resulting in an aggregate due to be issued to Medytox represented less than 10% of

6,900,000the Predecessor’s total outstanding shares immediately prior to consummation of the Merger, the Predecessor issued additional

shares of Class B Old AEON common stock issued and outstanding. All shares and associated amounts have been retroactively restated(the

“Top-off Shares”) to reflect Medytox sufficient to cause Medytox to achieve the surrender of these shares. The founder shares included an

aggregate of upTarget Ownership immediately prior to 900,000 shares subject the Merger to forfeiture if the over-allotment option was not

exercised byTop-off Right.

Based on the underwriters in full. As a result terms of the underwriters’ election Settlement Agreement, the Top-off Right is a freestanding

financial instrument, and is accounted for as a derivative liability pursuant to fully exercise ASC 815. Accordingly, the Company recognized a loss

of their over-allotment option, $5.0 million in the 900,000 shares were no longer subject to forfeiture.

The initial stockholders have agreed not to transfer, assign or sell any of their Founder Shares and any Class A common stock issuable upon

conversion thereof until Predecessor period, reflecting the earlier to occur of: (A) one year after change in fair value through the
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completion closing date of the initial Business Combination Merger. At the Closing of the Merger, the derivative liability was derecognized, and

(B) the  issuance of the Top-off Shares was recognized on the line in the Successor’s opening additional paid-in capital (see Note 3).
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date following the completion of the initial Business Combination on which the Company completes a liquidation, merger, capital stock

exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of its stockholders having the right to exchange their common stock for cash,

securities or other property (the “lock-up”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock equals or

exceeds $12.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock capitalizations, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading

days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 180 days after the initial Business Combination, the founder shares will be released

from the lockup.

Promissory Note – Related Party

On December 17, 2020, the Sponsor agreed to loan the Company up to $75,000 to be used for a portion of the expenses of the IPO. On January 13,

2021, the Sponsor agreed to loan the Company up to an additional $50,000 to be used for a portion of the expenses of the IPO. These loans are

non-interest bearing, unsecured and were due at the earlier of June 30, 2021 or the closing of the IPO. The loan was repaid upon the closing of

the IPO out of the offering proceeds. As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company had no amounts outstanding borrowings under

the promissory note. Additionally, this note is no longer available to the Company.

On November 28, 2022, the Sponsor issued the promissory note to the Company, pursuant to which the Company was entitled to borrow up to

an aggregate principal amount of $150,000 (the “Second Note”). The promissory note is non-interest bearing and payable on the earlier of the

date on which the Company consummates a Business Combination or the date that the winding up of the Company is effective. In the month of

December, the Sponsor deposited a total of $150,000 of such funds in the operating account. As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the

balance on the second note was $0 and $150,000, respectively. The Second Note was fully repaid on May 3, 2023.

On April 27, 2023, the Company issued an unsecured promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) to the Sponsor, pursuant to which the Company

may borrow up to an aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000. The Promissory Note is non-interest bearing, unsecured and payable upon the

effective date of the Company’s initial business combination. The Promissory Note is subject to customary events of default which could,

subject to certain conditions, cause the Promissory Notes to become immediately due and payable. As of June 30, 2023, the Company drew

$1,000,000 under the Promissory Note, which amount remains outstanding.

Working Capital Loans

The Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor, or certain of the Company’s officers and directors may, but are not obligated to, loan the Company

funds as may be required (“Working Capital Loans”). If the Company completes the initial Business Combination, the Company would repay the

Working Capital Loans. In the event that the initial Business Combination does not close, the Company may use a portion of the working capital

held outside the Trust Account to repay the Working Capital Loans but no proceeds from the Trust Account would be used to repay the Working

Capital Loans. Up to $1,500,000 of such Working Capital Loans may be convertible into Private Placement Warrants at a price of $1.50 per warrant

at the option of the lender (the “Working Capital Warrants”). Such warrants would be identical to the Private Placement Warrants. In June 2021

the Company had $100,000 of Working Capital Loans outstanding which were converted into 66,667 Working Capital Warrants. As of June 30, 2023

and December 31, 2022, the Company had no borrowings under the Working Capital Loans.

Administrative Service Fee

The Company has agreed, commencing on February 8, 2021, to pay $25,000 per month for administrative and other services, of which

$10,000 per month will be paid to the Sponsor for office space and administrative services provided to members of the management team and

up to $15,000 will be used to compensate the Company’s Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer and Secretary for a portion of their

time spent on the Company’s affairs. Upon completion of the Company’s Business Combination or the Company’s liquidation, the Company will

cease paying these monthly fees. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, $75,000 and $150,000 was recognized in the condensed

consolidated statements of operations and has been paid, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, $75,000 and $150,000

was recognized in the condensed statements of operations and has been paid, respectively.
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NOTE 6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Underwriters Agreement

The underwriters are entitled to a deferred fee of $0.35 per Unit, or $9,660,000 in the aggregate. The deferred fee will become payable to the

underwriters from the amounts held in the Trust Account solely in the event that the Company completes a Business Combination, subject to

the terms of the underwriting agreement. On November 16, 2022, the Company and one of the underwriters executed a waiver letter

confirming the underwriter’s waiver of its deferred fee under the terms of the underwriting agreement. On January 23, 2023, Wells Fargo agreed

to waive its entitlement to the deferred underwriting commission of $4,636,800 to which it became entitled to upon completion of the

Company’s IPO, subject to the consummation of a transaction. As a result, the Company derecognized the deferred underwriting fee payable of

$4,636,800 and recorded $4,436,713 of the forgiveness of the deferred underwriting fee allocated to Public Shares to the carrying value of the

shares of Class A common stock and the remaining balance of $200,087 was as a gain from extinguishment of liability for the portion allocated to

warrant liabilities. As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the deferred underwriting fee payable is $1,255,800 and $5,892,600, respectively.

Excise Tax

In connection with the vote to approve the Charter Amendment Proposal, holders of 25,597,728 shares of Class A Common Stock properly

exercised their right to redeem their shares of Class A Common Stock for an aggregate redemption amount of $258,999,909. In connection to the

redemption of shares, during the six months ended June 30, 2023, the Company recorded $424,059 of excise tax liability calculated as 1% of

shares redeemed less the number of shares to be issued as stated in the Business Combination Agreement.

The liability does not impact the condensed consolidated statements of operations and is offset against additional paid-in capital or

accumulated deficit if additional paid-in capital is not available. This excise tax liability can be offset by future share issuances within the same

fiscal year which will be evaluated and adjusted in the period in which the issuances occur. Should the Company liquidate prior to December 31,

2023, the excise tax liability will not be due.

Registration Rights

The holders of the founder shares, Private Placement Warrants, and warrants that may be issued upon conversion of Working Capital Loans will

have registration rights to require the Company to register a sale of any of its securities held by them pursuant to a registration rights

agreement to be signed in connection with the Company’s IPO. These holders will be entitled to make up to three demands, excluding short

form registration demands, that the Company registers such securities for sale under the Securities Act. In addition, these holders will have

“piggy-back” registration rights to include their securities in other registration statements filed by the Company.

Business Combination Agreement

On December 12, 2022, the Company entered into the Business Combination Agreement by and among the Company, Merger Sub, and AEON.

The Business Combination Agreement provides, among other things, that on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, Merger

Sub will merge with and into AEON, with AEON surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Upon the Closing, the Company will

change its name to “AEON Biopharma, Inc.”

Pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement, at the effective time of the Merger, each option, whether vested or unvested, exercisable

for AEON equity that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger shall be assumed by the Company and continue in full

force and effect on the same terms and conditions as are currently applicable to such options, subject to adjustments to exercise price and

number of shares of Class A Common Stock issued upon exercise.

Under the Business Combination Agreement, the Company will acquire all of the outstanding equity interests of AEON (including equity

interests issued upon conversion of the outstanding convertible notes of AEON) in exchange for shares of the Company’s Class A common stock,

par value $0.0001 per share (the “Class A Common Stock”), based on an implied AEON equity value of $165,000,000, to be paid to AEON
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stockholders at the effective time of the Merger, except that 809,000 shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock otherwise issuable as

merger consideration shall be held back to satisfy the exercise of certain of AEON’s convertible notes upon the maturity thereof. For more

information regarding the Business Combination Agreement, please see the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 1, 2023, and registration

statement Amendment No. 2 to Form S-4 filed on March 9, 2023, registration statement Amendment No. 3 to Form S-4 filed on May 1, 2023 and

registration statement Amendment No. 4 to Form S-4 filed on May 9, 2023.
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Special Meeting of Stockholders of the Company

On January 11, 2023, the Company and AEON entered into interim financing letter agreements with certain investors for a total aggregate

amount of $20 million.

On January 5, 2023, in connection with the Business Combination proposal, a purposed stockholder of the Company filed a complaint in the

United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, against the Company and its board of directors, alleging that the registration

statement on Form S-4 filed on December 27, 2022 with the SEC omitted material information related to the Business Combination. Since the

filing of the complaint, several purported stockholders of the Company have also sent demand letters to the Company’s counsel, similarly

alleging that the registration statement filed by the Company on December 27, 2022 with the SEC omitted material information related to the

Business Combination and demanding that the Company, its board of directors and/or AEON make supplemental corrective disclosures

addressing the alleged deficiencies.

On January 23, 2023, the Company and a second underwriter executed a waiver letter confirming the underwriter’s waiver of its deferred fee

under the terms of the underwriting agreement which represents an additional $4,636,800 of the deferred fee as waived.

On February 10, 2023, at the Special Meeting of stockholders of the Company, stockholders of the Company approved the certificate of

amendment to the second amended and restated certificate of incorporation to amend the Company’s contractual expiration date of February

11, 2023 by changing the date by which the Company must cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up if it fails to complete a

merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination from February 11, 2023 to

August 11, 2023. In connection with the vote at the Special Meeting, the holders of 25,597,728 shares of Class A Common Stock, par value $0.0001

per share, properly exercised their right to redeem their shares for cash at a redemption price of approximately $10.11 per share, for an

aggregate redemption amount of $258,999,909. The remaining shares to be potentially redeemed is 2,002,272.

NOTE 7. STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

Preferred Stock —The Company is authorized to issue a total of 1,000,000 preferred shares at par value of $0.0001 each. At June 30, 2023 and

December 31, 2022, there were no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Class A Common Stock—The Company is authorized to issue 280,000,000 shares of Class A common stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share. As of

June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, there were no shares of Class A common stock issued or outstanding (excluding 2,002,272 shares and

27,600,000 shares subject to redemption, respectively.)

Class B Common Stock — The Company is authorized to issue 20,000,000 shares of Class B common stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share.

Holders are entitled to one vote for each share of Class B common stock. At June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, there were 6,900,000 shares of

Class B common stock issued and outstanding.

Holders of Class A common stock and holders of Class B common stock will vote together as a single class on all matters submitted to a vote of

the Company’s stockholders except as required by law. Unless specified in the Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation, or

as required by applicable provisions of the Delaware state law or applicable stock exchange rules, the affirmative vote of a majority of the

Company’s shares of common stock that are voted is required to approve any such matter voted on by its stockholders.

The Class B common stock will automatically convert into Class A common stock concurrently with or immediately following the

consummation of the initial Business Combination on a one-for-one basis, subject to adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends,

reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like, and subject to further adjustment as provided herein. In the case that additional shares of Class
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A common stock or equity-linked securities are issued or deemed issued in connection with the initial Business Combination, the number of

Class A common stock issuable upon conversion of all founder shares will equal, in the aggregate, on an as-converted basis, 20% of the total

number of Class A common stock outstanding after such conversion (after giving effect to any redemptions of Class A common stock by public

stockholders), including the total number of Class A common stock issued, or deemed issued or issuable upon conversion or exercise of any

equity-linked securities or rights issued or deemed issued, by the Company in connection with or in relation to the consummation of the initial

Business Combination, excluding any Class A common stock or equity-linked securities exercisable for or convertible into Class A common stock

issued, or to be issued, to any seller in the initial Business Combination and
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any Private Placement Warrants issued to the Sponsor, officers or directors upon conversion of Working Capital Loans; provided that such

conversion of founder shares will never occur on a less than one-for-one basis.

NOTESummary of Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following details the Company’s recurring measurements for assets and liabilities at fair value (in thousands, unaudited):

Convertible Notes Warrant Liabilities

Contingent

Consideration

Embedded Forward

Purchase Agreement

and Make Whole

Derivative

(Level 3) (Level 1) (Level 3) (Level 3)

Predecessor

Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 131,292 $ - $ - $ -

Issuance of convertible notes 14,000 - - -

Change in fair value 3,528 - - -

Conversion to common shares (148,820) - - -

Balance, July 21, 2023 - - - -

Successor

Balance, July 22, 2023 - 3,765 144,220 32,677

Additions - - - -

Change in fair value - (1,593) (69,715) 15,776

Balance, September 30, 2023 $ - $ 2,172 $ 74,505 $ 48,453

Note 7.    Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

In December 2021, the Predecessor entered into a three-year non-cancellable lease for office space. The lease does not include variable or

contingent lease payments. An operating lease asset and liability are recognized based on the present value of the remaining lease payments

discounted using the Predecessor’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

The following table summarizes supplemental balance sheet information related to the operating lease as of September 30, 2023 (in

thousands) (unaudited):

Minimum lease payments by fiscal year        

2023 $ 78
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2024   292

Total future minimum lease payments   370

Less: Imputed interest   (22)

Present value of lease payments   348

Less: Current portion (included in other accrued expenses)   (296)

Noncurrent operating lease liability $ 52

Operating lease right-of-use asset $ 323

Remaining lease term in years   1.2

Discount rate   10 %
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The following table summarizes supplemental disclosures of operating cost and cash flow information related to operating leases for the

periods from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), and the nine months ended

September 30, 2022 (Predecessor) (in 000’s) (Unaudited).

Three Months Ended      Nine Months Ended

September 30,  September 30, 

2023 2022 2023 2022

Predecessor


July 1, 2023

to July 21,

2023

Successor


July 22, 2023

to

September

30, 2023

Predecessor

Predecessor


January 1,

2023 to July

21, 2023

Successor


July 22, 2023

to

September

30, 2023

Predecessor

Cost of operating leases $ 16 $ 53 $ 69 $ 153 $ 53 $ 210

Cash paid for operating leases   26 51   74   180 51   173

Daewoong License and Supply Agreement

On December 20, 2019, the Predecessor entered the Daewoong Agreement, pursuant to which Daewoong agreed to manufacture and supply

ABP-450 and grant the Company an exclusive license for therapeutic indications to import, distribute, promote, market, develop, offer for sale

and otherwise commercialize and exploit ABP-450 in the United States, the European Union, the United Kingdom, Canada, Australia, Russia, the

Commonwealth of Independent States and South Africa (collectively the “covered territories”).

Daewoong supplies the Company with ABP-450 at an agreed-upon transfer price, with no milestone or royalty payments and no minimum

purchase requirements. Daewoong is responsible for all costs related to the manufacturing of ABP-450, including costs related to the operation

and upkeep of its manufacturing facility, and the Company is responsible for all costs related to obtaining regulatory approval, including clinical

expenses, and commercialization of ABP-450. The Company’s exclusivity is subject to its exercise of commercially reasonable efforts to: (i)

achieve all regulatory approvals necessary for ABP-450 to be marketed in the territory for therapeutic indications and (ii) commercialize ABP-450

in the territory for therapeutic indications. During the term of the Daewoong Agreement, the Company cannot purchase, sell or distribute any

competing products in a covered territory or sell ABP-450 outside a covered territory.

The initial term of the Daewoong Agreement is from December 20, 2019 to the later of (i) the fifth anniversary of approval from the relevant

governmental authority necessary to market and sell ABP-450 or (ii) December 20, 2029, and automatically renews for unlimited additional

three-year terms, provided the Daewoong Agreement is not earlier terminated. The Daewoong Agreement will terminate upon written notice

by either the Company or Daewoong upon a continuing default that remains uncured within 90 days (or 30 days for a payment default) by the

other party, or without notice upon the bankruptcy or insolvency of the Company.

The Company has accrued $0.2 million and $0.1 million for ABP-450 supplies as of December 31, 2022 (Predecessor) and September 30, 2023

(Successor), respectively.
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Legal Proceedings

The Company, from time to time, is involved in various litigation matters or regulatory encounters arising in the ordinary course of business

that could result in unasserted or asserted claims or litigation. Other than as described below, the Company is not subject to any currently

pending legal matters or claims that would have a material adverse effect on its accompanying financial position, results of operations or cash

flows.

On September 18, 2023, Odeon Capital Group LLC (“Odeon”) filed a lawsuit against the Company in the Supreme Court of the State of New

York, alleging that the Company failed to pay Odeon’s deferred underwriting fee of $1.25 million. Odeon claims that it served as the underwriter

for Priveterra Acquisition Corp., the special purpose acquisition company with which Old AEON merged with and into in July 2023. Odeon seeks

monetary damages for the full amount of its claimed underwriting fee, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and other amounts. The Company has

yet to file a response to Odeon’s complaint.
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In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts and agreements that contain a variety of representations and

warranties and provide for general indemnifications. The Company’s exposure under these agreements is unknown because it involves claims

that may be made against the Company in the future, but have not yet been made. The Company accrues a liability for such matters when it is

probable that future expenditures will be made and such expenditures can be reasonably estimated. See Note 2 for additional information.

Note 8.    RECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTSIncome Taxes

The Company’s loss before income taxes was entirely generated from its U.S. operations. As a result of its continuing losses, the Company

had no provisionfor income taxes in the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor)

and January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), and the three and nine months ended

September 30, 2022 (Predecessor).

Note 9.    Convertible Preferred Stock (Predecessor)

As of December 31, 2022 (Predecessor), the Predecessor’s certificate of incorporation, as amended and restated, authorized the Predecessor

to issue up to 44,666,035 shares of preferred stock at a par value of $0.0001 per share. The Predecessor’s convertible preferred stock was

converted and exchanged into shares of the Company’s common stock at the Closing. The Predecessor had the following convertible preferred

stock issued and outstanding at December 31, 2022:

                    Preferential      Carrying Value,

Liquidation Net of Issuance

Shares Shares Issued Per Share Value Costs

Authorized and Outstanding Preference (in thousands) (in thousands)

Series                     

Series A   7,393,333   2,505,508 $ 5.4779 $ 13,725 $ 13,819

Series A-1   4,107,414   —   5.4779   —   —

Series A-2   4,846,750   4,846,750   5.4779   26,550   26,379

Series B   20,520,678   6,244,395   7.3097   45,645   43,896

Series B-1   136,805   —   7.3097   —   —

Series B-2   7,661,055   7,661,055   7.3097   56,000   53,855

  44,666,035   21,257,708 $ 141,920 $ 137,949

The holders of the convertible preferred stock had various rights and preferences as follows:

Voting Rights
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The holders of each share of convertible preferred stock, prior to the conversion of the preferred stock in connection with the Closing,

previously had the right to one vote for each share of common stock into which such preferred stock could be converted, and with respect to

such vote, such holder had have full voting rights and powers equal to the voting rights and powers of the holders of common stock. Prior to the

conversion of the preferred stock in connection with the Closing, each holder of the convertible preferred stock is entitled to vote, together

with holders of common stock, with respect to any question upon which holders of common stock had the right to vote.

Election of Directors

The holders of Series A and Series A-2 convertible preferred stock, voting together as a single class are entitled to elect one director of the

Company. The holders of Series B and Series B-2 convertible preferred stock, voting together as a single class, are entitled to together elect one

director of the Company. The holders of the convertible preferred stock and common stock (voting together as a single class and not as separate

series, and with the preferred stock voting on an as-converted basis using then-effective conversion prices) are entitled to elect any remaining

directors of the Company.
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Dividends

The holders of shares of Series B, Series B-1 and Series B-2 convertible preferred stock are entitled to non-cumulative dividends, out of any

assets legally available therefore, on a pari passu basis and prior and in preference to any declaration or payment of any dividend on the Series

A, Series A-1 and Series A-2 convertible preferred stock, or common stock of the Company, at the rate of $0.5847768 per calendar year for each

share of Series B, Series B-1 and Series B-2 convertible preferred stock, payable when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors.

The holders of shares of Series A, Series A-1 and Series A-2 convertible preferred stock are entitled to non-cumulative dividends, out of any

assets legally available therefore, on a pari passu basis and prior and in preference to any declaration or payment of any dividend on the

common stock of the Company, at the rate of $0.4382 per calendar year for each share of Series A, Series A-1 and Series A-2 preferred stock,

payable when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors.

Declared but unpaid dividends with respect to a share of preferred stock shall, upon conversion of such share to common stock, be paid to

the extent assets are legally available therefore in cash. There were no cash dividend declared through the Closing.

Liquidation

In the event of any liquidation event, the holders of Series B-2 convertible preferred stock would be entitled to receive, on a pari passu basis

and prior and in preference to any distribution of the proceeds of such liquidation event (“Proceeds”) to the holders of Series A-2 convertible

preferred stock, Series B convertible preferred stock, Series B-1 convertible preferred stock, Series A convertible preferred stock, Series A-1

convertible preferred stock and common stock, an amount per share equal to the Series B original issue price of $7.3097 per share, plus declared

but unpaid dividends on each such share (the “Series B-2 Liquidation Preference”).

Subject to the payments set forth above, in the event of any liquidation event, the holders of Series A-2 convertible preferred stock would

be entitled to receive, on a pari passu basis and prior and in preference to any distribution of the Proceeds of such liquidation event to the

holders of Series B convertible preferred stock, Series B-1 convertible preferred stock, Series A convertible preferred stock, Series A-1

convertible preferred stock and common stock, an amount per share equal to the Series A original issue price of $5.4779 per share, plus declared

but unpaid dividends on each such share (the “Series A-2 Liquidation Preference”).

Subject to the payments set forth above, in the event of any liquidation event, the holders of Series B convertible preferred stock and Series

B-1 convertible preferred stock would be entitled to receive, on a pari passu basis and prior and in preference to any distribution of the

Proceeds of such liquidation event to the holders of Series A convertible preferred stock, Series A-1 convertible preferred stock and common

stock, an amount per share equal to the Series B original issue price of $7.3097 per share, plus declared but unpaid dividends on each such share

(the “Series B Liquidation Preference”).

Subject to the payments set forth above, the holders of Series A convertible preferred stock and Series A-1 convertible preferred stock would

be entitled to receive, on a pari passu basis and prior and in preference to any distribution of the Proceeds of such Liquidation Event to the
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holders of common stock, an amount per share equal to the Series A issue price of $5.4779, plus declared but unpaid dividends on each such

share (the “Series A Liquidation Preference”).

Upon the completion of the distributions above, the remaining Proceeds available for distribution to stockholders, if any, would be

distributed ratably among the holders of convertible preferred stock and common stock in proportion to the number of shares of common

stock that would be held by each such holder if all shares of convertible preferred stock were converted into common stock at the then

effective conversion price.

Conversion

Each share of convertible preferred stock can be converted, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time after the date of issuance of

such share into such number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock. The conversion rate is 1:1 initially.
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Each share of convertible preferred stock would automatically convert into shares of common stock based on the applicable conversion

rate at the time in effect upon the earlier of (A) immediately prior to the closing, and conditioned upon such closing, of the sale of the

Company’s common stock in an underwritten public offering at a public offering price per share of not less than (w) $7.3097 minus the sum of (x)

the fair market value of the per unit membership interest of A1, as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company in good faith (the “A-1

Per Unit Price”) plus (y) the fair market value of the per unit membership interest of AC HoldCo, as determined by the Board of Directors of the

Company in good faith (the “AC Per Unit Price”) plus (z) the fair market value of the per unit membership interest of Z HoldCo, as determined by

the Board of Directors of the Company in good faith (together with the A-1 Per Unit Price and the AC Per Unit Price, the “Aggregate Spin-Out

Value”), and yielding net proceeds (after discounts and commissions) to the Company of at least $50 million, or (B) on the date specified by

affirmative vote at a meeting or by written consent from the holders of at least two-thirds of the convertible preferred stock then outstanding,

voting as a single class on an as-converted-to-common stock basis (the “Preferred Supermajority”).

In the event that the Preferred Supermajority enacts a conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock in conjunction with the consummation of

an initial public offering of the common stock in which the public offering price per share of the common stock (the “IPO Per Share Price”) is less

than 71.4286% of the then effective per share Series A-2 Liquidation Preference (the “Adjusted Series A-2 Preference Amount”), then the

number of shares of common stock issuable with respect to each share of Series A convertible preferred stock, each share of Series A-1

convertible Preferred Stock and each share of Series A-2 convertible preferred stock will be equal to the greater of (A) the quotient obtained by

dividing (x) the Adjusted Series A-2 Preference Amount by (y) the IPO Per Share Price, or (B) the quotient obtained by dividing the Series A

original issue price of $5.4779 per share by the applicable conversion price for such series of the Series A Preferred Stock, each as in effect on the

date of effective conversion.

In the event of an automatic conversion in conjunction with the consummation of an initial public offering of the common stock in which

the IPO Per Share Price is less than the Series B original issue price of $7.3097 per share, then the applicable conversion price for the Series B

convertible preferred stock, the Series B-1 convertible preferred stock and the Series B-2 convertible preferred stock for purposes of the

approved conversion will be the IPO Per Share Price, rounded to the nearest whole cent with one-half cent rounded up.

Redemption

The convertible preferred stock is not redeemable. The Company has classified the convertible preferred stock as temporary equity on the

accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets as these shares could be redeemed upon the occurrence of certain change in control

events that are outside of the Company’s control.

Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants

Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s Bridge Note, in 2016 the Company issued Longitude warrants to purchase 342,011 shares of the

Company’s Series B convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of $7.3097 per share. The warrants are exercisable, in whole or in part, from

the date of issuance and expired on May 31, 2023.

Note 10.    Common Stock
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Predecessor

As of December 31, 2022 (Predecessor), the Predecessor’s certificate of incorporation, as amended and restated, authorized the Predecessor

to issue up to 207,450,050 shares of common stock at a par value of $0.0001 per share. As of December 31, 2022 (Predecessor), 138,848,177 shares

were issued and 138,825,356 shares were outstanding. The holders of common stock were entitled to receive dividends whenever funds are

legally available, when and if declared by the Predecessor’s Board of Directors, subject to the prior rights of the holders of the Predecessor’s

convertible preferred stock. As of December 31, 2022 (Predecessor), no cash dividend had been declared to date. Each share of common stock

was entitled to one vote. The number of authorized shares of common stock could be increased or decreased (but not below the number of

shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of shares of preferred stock and common stock, voting together as a

single class.

At June 30, 2023the effective time of the Merger (“Effective Time”), (i) each outstanding share of Old AEON common stock (on an as-

converted basis after taking into effect the conversion of the outstanding warrants of Old AEON exercisable for shares of Old AEON preferred

stock, the conversion of the shares of Old AEON preferred stock into Old AEON common stock in accordance with the
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governing documents of Old AEON as of the Effective Time, the conversion of the outstanding convertible notes of Old AEON into Old AEON

common stock in accordance with the terms of such convertible notes and December 31, 2022after giving effect to the issuance of Old AEON

common stock in connection with the merger of ABP Sub, Inc. with and into Old AEON) issued and outstanding immediately prior to the

Effective Time converted into the right to receive approximately 2.328 shares of the Company’s common stock. In addition, each share of

Priveterra Class B common stock (“Founder Shares”), par value $0.0001 per share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective

Time converted into one share of common stock (of which 3,450,000 Founder Shares are subject to certain vesting and forfeiture conditions).

Successor

As of September 30, 2023 (Successor), the Company’s warrant liabilitycertificate of incorporation, as amended and restated, authorized the

Company to issue up to 500,000,000 of common stock at a par value of $0.0001 per share. As of September 30, 2023 (Successor), 37,159,600 shares

were issued and outstanding. The holders of common stock are entitled to receive dividends whenever funds are legally available, when and if

declared by the Company’s Board of Directors. As of September 30, 2023 (Successor), no cash dividend has been declared to date. Each share of

common stock is entitled to one vote. Refer to Note 3 for more information on the number of shares of common stock outstanding

immediately following the Merger.

Common Stock Reserved

The table below summarizes the Company’s reserved common stock for further issuance as of September 30, 2023 (Successor) and December

31, 2022 (Predecessor):

     September 30,  December 31, 

2023 2022

(unaudited)

Conversion of convertible preferred stock   —   21,257,708

Stock options issued and outstanding   3,846,972   9,694,890

Restricted stock units (unvested)   1,041,565   —

Shares available for future issuance under the stock incentive plan 3,508,139   27,884,000

Warrants 14,479,999   —

Contingent consideration 16,000,000   —

Convertible preferred stock warrants outstanding   —   342,011

Total common stock reserved   38,876,675   59,178,609
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Note 11.    Share-based Compensation Stock Incentive Plans

AEON 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (Predecessor)

In 2013, the Predecessor established its 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2013 Stock Incentive Plan”) as amended from time to time, that

provides for the granting of nonqualified stock options, restricted stock and stock appreciation rights to employees, members of the Board of

Directors and non-employee consultants. The 2013 Stock Incentive Plan provides for stock options to be granted with exercise prices not less

than the estimated fair value of the Predecessor’s common stock, and incentive options to be granted to individuals owning more than 10% of

the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Predecessor with exercise prices not less than 110% of the estimated fair value of

the Predecessor’s common stock on the date of grant. Stock options granted generally expire ten years after their original date of grant and

generally vest between three years to four years with 25% vesting on the first anniversary of the date of grant and then monthly vesting after

that. Stock options granted to a 10% stockholder are exercisable up to five years from the date of grant. Restricted stock awards granted

generally become fully vested between one to three years.

As of December 31, 2022 (Predecessor), the aggregate number of shares available for future grant under the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan was

valued27,884,000 shares. Upon the Closing, the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan was terminated and the stock options were cancelled.
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The following table summarizes stock option activity under the Predecessor’s 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (unaudited):

          Weighted

Average

Number of Exercise

Shares Price

Predecessor

Outstanding, January 1, 2022   10,516,525 $ 1.51

Options granted — —

Options forfeited (821,635) 1.23

Outstanding, December 31, 2022 9,694,890 1.53

Exercisable, December 31, 2022 9,694,890 $ 1.53

Outstanding, January 1, 2023 9,694,890 $ 1.53

Options granted — —

Options forfeited   — —

Options cancelled in connection with Merger (9,694,890) 1.53

Outstanding, July 21, 2023   — —

Exercisable, July 21, 2023   — $ —

As of December 31, 2022 (Predecessor), the weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding and options exercisable were

2.5 years. The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and options exercisable at $1,336,725December 31, 2022 (Predecessor) was $0.3

million. The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying options and $669,759,

respectively. Under the guidance estimated fair value of the Predecessor’s common stock at December 31, 2022 (Predecessor).

All awards were vested prior to 2022. As such during the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September

30, 2023 (Successor) and January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), and the three and nine

months ended September 30, 2022, the Company did not recognize share-based compensation expense related to stock options granted under

the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2022 and September 30, 2023, there was no unrecognized compensation expense related to

non-vested stock options.
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2019 Incentive Award Plan

In June 2019, ABP Sub Inc., the Predecessor’s wholly owned subsidiary, established its 2019 Incentive Award Plan (the “2019 Incentive Award

Plan”), as amended from time to time, that provides for the granting of incentive and nonqualified stock options, restricted stock units,

restricted stock and stock appreciation rights to its employees, members of the Board of Directors and non-employee consultants. The 2019

Incentive Award Plan has similar grant terms as the Company’s 2013 Stock Incentive Plan.

In connection with the Merger, the Successor assumed the 2019 Incentive Award Plan and all options and RSU awards that were outstanding

immediately prior to the Merger were converted into substantially similar awards covering shares of the Successor’s common stock based on a

conversion ratio of approximately 77.65 to 1 share. Additionally, the exercise price for the awards were repriced to $10.00 for all options. The fair

value of the replacement awards that were vested, based on the value immediately prior to the Merger, were included as purchase

consideration in ASC 815-40 the Warrants do not meet Merger. The remaining value of the criteria replacement awards will be recognized in the

successor period as compensation expense over the remaining vesting period, which includes stock-based compensation expense of $1.3 million

recorded in the successor period for equity treatment. the impact of the stock option repricing.

Prior to the consummation of the Merger, a total of 237,500 shares of ABP Sub Inc. common stock were available for issuance under the 2019

Incentive Award Plan. Following the effective date of the 2023 Plan, in the event that an outstanding award expires or is cancelled for any

reason, the shares allocable to the unexercised or cancelled portion of such award from the 2019 Incentive Award Plan will be added back to the

shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2023 Incentive Award Plan.

At the Closing, ABP had granted options to purchase a total of 45,130 ABP Sub options which converted into options to purchase 3,515,219

shares of the Company’s common stock, and a total of 15,059 RSU awards, which converted into RSU awards covering 1,169,366 shares of the

Company’s common stock. Of such RSU awards, 127,801 RSUs accelerated vesting concurrently with the Merger. As such, the Warrants must be

recordedCompany included an additional $1.8 million in purchase consideration (see Note 3 for additional information).
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Additionally, of such RSU awards, 466,468 RSU’s contained performance-based vesting criteria based on the condensed balance sheet at fair

value. This valuation is subject achievement of the same milestones as the contingent consideration (see Note 6 for additional information). As

of September 30, 2023, the milestones 1 and 2 were determined to re-measurement at each balance sheet date. With each re-measurement, be

probable, and the warrant valuation will Company began expensing the proportionate RSU’s over the vesting life, calculated as the expected

completion date from the date the milestone was determined to be adjustedprobable. For the period from July 22, 2023 to fair value, September

30, 2023 (Successor), the Company has recognized $0.2 million of such RSU with the change earnout vesting criteria, $0.2 million in fair value

recognizedselling, general and administrative expenses and a de minimus amount in research and development expenses in the Company’s

condensed consolidated statement of operations.

The Company’s warrant liability for following table summarizes stock option activity under 2019 Incentive Award Plan (unaudited):

          Weighted

Average

Number of Exercise

Shares Price

Predecessor

Outstanding, January 1, 2022   38,172 $ 986.36

Options granted   16,437   898.58

Options forfeited   (9,075)   965.92

Outstanding, December 31, 2022   45,534 958.75

Exercisable, December 31, 2022 23,155 $ 958.86

Outstanding, January 1, 2023 45,534 $ 958.75
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Options granted — —

Options forfeited (404) 1,021.98

Outstanding, July 21, 2023 45,130 959.06

Exercisable, July 21, 2023 30,968 $ 956.64

Successor   — —

Outstanding, July 22, 2023 (converted) 3,515,219 $ 10.00

Options granted   — —

Options forfeited   — —

Outstanding, September 30, 2023   3,515,219 10.00

Exercisable, September 30, 2023   2,600,009 $ 10.00

There were no options granted in the Private Placement Warrants is based on a valuation model utilizing inputs from observable and

unobservable markets with less volume and transaction frequency than active markets. 2019 Incentive Plan during 2023. The weighted average

fair value of options granted during the Private Warrant liability classified within Level 3year ended December 31, 2022 was $488.02. There were

no options granted in 2023.

As of December 31, 2022 and September 30, 2023, the fair value hierarchy. weighted average remaining contractual life of options

outstanding and options exercisable was 8.1 years and 7.3 years.

The Company’s warrant liability for During the Public Warrants is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that the Company has the abilityperiods from July 1, 2023 to access. The fair value of the Public Warrant liability is classified within

Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy due July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to limited trading activity. The Company classifies its U.S.

TreasurySeptember 30, 2023 (Successor) and equivalent securities as held-to-maturity in accordance with ASC Topic 320 “Investments -

Debt January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and Equity Securities.” Held-to-maturity securities are those securities which the Company has

the abilityJuly 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), and intent to hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity treasury securities are recorded at

amortized cost on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets and adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or

discounts.

At June 30, 2023, assets held in the Trust Account were comprised of $21,193,395 in cash held by Continental Stock Transfer & Trust. During the

three and six nine months ended June 30, 2023September 30, 2022 (Predecessor), the Company withdrew $260,493,363 in interest income from

the Trust Account for tax obligation purposesrecognized $0.2 million, $0.5 million, $2.7 million, $0.5 million, $1.1 million and in connection with

redemption. $4.2 million, respectively, of share-based compensation expense related to stock options granted.

At December 31, 2022, assets held in the Trust Account were comprised of $4,858 in cash and $279,379,571 in U.S. Treasury Bills. The sum of

the cash held in trust and the U.S. Treasury bills total the condensed consolidated balance sheet balance of $279,384,429. During the year ended

December 31, 2022, the Company withdrew $401,925 in interest income from the Trust Account for tax obligation purposes.

The following table presents information about the Company’s gross holding gains and fair value of held-to-maturity securities at June 30, 2023

and December 31, 2022:

                    Gross     

Amortized   Holding 

Held-To-Maturity Level Cost Gain Fair Value

December 31, 2022   U.S. Treasury Bill (Matures on 01/05/2023)   1 $ 279,339,034 $ 40,537 $ 279,379,571

The following table presents information about the Company’s liabilities that were measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30,

2023 and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques the Company utilized to determine such fair value.

     Level 1      Level 2      Level 3

Liabilities:

Private Placement Warrants   $ —   $ —   $508,725

Public Warrants   $828,000   $ —   $ —
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The following table presents information about the Company’s liabilities that were measured at fair value on a recurring basis asAs of

December 31, 2022 and indicatesSeptember 30, 2023, total unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested stock options was $12.3

million and $5.1 million, respectively, which is expected to be recognized over the fair value hierarchyweighted-average remaining requisite

service period of the valuation techniques the Company utilized to determine such fair value.

     Level 1      Level 2      Level 3

Liabilities:

Private Placement Warrants $ — $ — $250,239

Public Warrants $ — $419,520 $ —

24 months and 12 months, respectively.
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MeasurementThe following table summarizes restricted stock units activity under the 2019 Incentive Award Plan:

The Company established

          Weighted

Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value

Successor

Outstanding, July 22, 2023   — $ —

Granted   1,169,366   10.84

Forfeited   — —

Outstanding, September 30, 2023 1,169,366 10.84

Vested, September 30, 2023   127,801 $ 10.84

During the initial fair value for the Warrants on February 11, 2021periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to

September 30, 2023 (Successor) and January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), the

date Company recognized $0.1 million, $0.4 million, $0.5 million, and $0.4 million, respectively, of share-based compensation expense related to

restricted stock units granted.

As of September 30, 2023, total unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested restricted stock units was $10.5 million, which is

expected to be recognized over the weighted-average remaining requisite service period of 33 months.

AEON Biopharma Inc 2023 Incentive Award Plan

In connection with the Merger, the Company’s Board adopted, and its stockholders approved, the 2023 Plan, which became effective upon

the consummation of the Company’s IPO using a Monte Carlo simulation model Merger, that provides for the granting of nonqualified stock

options, restricted stock and stock appreciation rights to value the Public Warrants and a modified Black-Scholes model to value the Private

Placement Warrants. The Warrants were initially classified within Level 3employees, members of the Board of Directors and non-employee

consultants. The 2023 Plan will remain in effect until July 3, 2023, the tenth anniversary of the date the Company’s stockholders approved the

2023 Plan, unless earlier terminated. Stock options granted generally expire ten years after their original date of grant and generally vest

between three years to four years with equal installments vesting on each anniversary of the grant date, subject to continued service through

the applicable vesting date.

The initial aggregate number of shares of the Company’s common stock available for issuance under the 2023 Plan is equal to (a) 3,839,892

shares of common stock and (b) any shares which, as of the effective date of the 2023 Plan, are subject to an award outstanding under the ABP

2019 Plan (each, a “Prior Plan Award”), and which, on or following the effective date of the 2023 Plan, become available for issuance under the
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2023 Plan as provided in the 2023 Plan. In addition, the number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2023 Plan will be

annually increased on January 1 of each calendar year beginning in 2024 and ending in 2033 by an amount equal to the lesser of (i) 4% of the

number of fully-diluted number of shares outstanding on the final day of the immediately preceding calendar year or (ii) such other number of

shares as is determined by the Board. Any shares issued pursuant to the 2023 Plan may consist, in whole or in part, of authorized and unissued

common stock, treasury common stock or common stock purchased on the open market.

          Weighted

Average

Number of Exercise

Shares Price

Outstanding, July 22, 2023   — $ —

Options granted   331,753   5.47

Options forfeited   —   —

Outstanding, September 30, 2023   331,753 $ 5.47

Exercisable, September 30, 2023   — $ —

The weighted average fair value hierarchy due of options granted in 2023 was $3.18. The weighted average remaining contractual life of

options outstanding and options exercisable was 9.9 years. During the periods from July 22, 2023 to the use of unobservable inputs. In April 2021,

the Public Warrants began trading in the open market and were reclassified to Level 1. On June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022September 30,

2023 (Successor), the fair value
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Company recognized $0.1 million of share-based compensation expense related to stock options granted. As of September 30, 2023, total

unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested stock options was remeasured. At June 30, 2023$1.0 million, which is expected to be

recognized over the weighted-average remaining requisite service period of 38 months.

Share-based Compensation Expense and December 31, 2022, theValuation Information

The Company used a Monte Carlo simulation and modified Black-Scholes model, respectively, to value the Private Placement Warrants. The

Public Warrants were previously classified as Level 3 due to the lack of an observable market price accounts for the warrantsmeasurement and

initially valued using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Public Warrants were transferred to a level 2 due to lack recognition of an active

market during the quarter ended September 30, 2022 through March 31, 2023. At June 30, 2023, the Public Warrants transferred from a Level 2

measurement to a Level 1 due to the active market.

The Private Placement Warrants were classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy at the measurement date due to the use of

unobservable inputs. The Company’s Private Placement Warrant liability iscompensation expense for all share-based awards based on a

valuation model utilizing management judgment and pricing inputs from observable and unobservable markets with less volume and

transaction frequency than active markets. Significant deviations from these estimates and inputs could result in a material change in fair

value.

Transfers to/from Levels 1, 2 and 3 are recognized at the end of the reporting period in which a change in valuation technique or methodology

occurs. The estimated fair value of the Public Warrants transferred from a Level 2 measurement to a Level 1awards. The fair value

measurement duringof share-based awards is amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. The Company records share-

based compensation expense net of actual forfeitures.

During the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor) and January 1, 2023 to July

21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), and the three and nine months ended June 30, 2023 was
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$828,000. September 30, 2022 (Predecessor), the Company recognized $0.1 million, $2.4 million, $2.3 million, $2.4 million, $1.0 million and $3.7

million, respectively, of share-based compensation expense in selling, general and administrative expenses, respectively, and $0.1 million, $0.3

million, $0.4 million, $0.3 million, $0.1 million and $0.6 million, respectively, in research and development expenses in the accompanying

condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

The key inputs into fair value of stock options under the valuation models2019 Stock Incentive Award Plan was as follows: estimated using

the following assumptions:

December 31,  June 30, 

Input      2022      2023     

Risk-free interest rate 4.75 % 5.45 %

Expected term (years) 5.71 5.06

Expected volatility 9.8 % 40 %

Dividend rate 0.0 % 0.0 %

Exercise price $ 11.50 $ 11.50

Market implied likelihood of IBC 8.9 % 11.0 %

Nine Months Ended

September 30, 

2023 2022

Expected volatility 39% – 58%   47% – 61%

Risk-free interest rate 4.1% – 4.4%   1.87% – 3.92%

Expected life (in years) 3.00-6.25   5.75 – 6.25

Expected dividend yield —   —

The following table providesFair Value of the Underlying Common Stock.    For Predecessor periods, since the Predecessor’s common stock was

not traded in a reconciliation public stock market exchange, the Board of changes in Directors considered numerous factors including new

business and economic developments affecting the Predecessor and independent appraisals, when appropriate, to determine the fair value of

the beginning and ending balancesPredecessor’s common stock. Independent appraisal reports were prepared using valuation techniques,

such as discounted cash flow analyses, from which a discount factor for lack of marketability was applied. This determination of the fair value

of the common stock was performed on a contemporaneous basis. The Board of Directors determined the Company’s common stock fair value

on an as needed basis. For Successor periods, the fair value of the stock price is the closing price for the Company’s assets and liabilities

classifiedcommon stock as level 3reported on the NYSE American.

Expected Life.    The expected life is calculated using the simplified method as the Company does not have sufficient historical information to

provide a basis for the three estimate. The simplified method is based on the average of the vesting tranches and six months ended June 30,

2023 and 2022. the contractual life of each grant.

Fair Value at December 31, 2022 $250,239

Change in fair value   56,372

Fair Value at March 31, 2023 306,611

Change in fair value 202,114

Fair Value at June 30, 2023 $508,725

Fair Value at December 31, 2021 $ 2,692,800

Change in fair value (1,100,880)

Fair Value at March 31, 2022 1,591,920

Change in fair value (793,893)

Fair Value at June 30, 2022 $ 798,027
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NOTE 9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Expected Volatility.    The expected volatility is estimated based on a study of selected publicly traded peer companies as the Company does not

have any trading history for its common stock. The Company evaluated subsequent eventsselected the peer group based on similarities in

industry, stage of development, size and transactions that occurred after financial leverage with the condensed consolidated balance sheet

date upCompany’s principal business operations. For each grant, the Company measured historical volatility over a period equivalent to the

date that expected life.

Risk-free Interest Rate.       The risk-free interest rate is based on the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements were issued.

Based upon this review, yield available on U.S. Treasury  zero-coupon  issues whose term is similar in duration to the expected life of the

respective stock option.

Expected Dividend Yield.    The Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying any dividends on its common stock in the foreseeable

future. Accordingly, the Company did not identify any additional subsequent events that would have required adjustment or disclosure in has

estimated the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements, other than described below:

dividend yield to be zero.
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On July 3, 2023,Note 12.    Subsequent Events

The Company has further evaluated subsequent events for recognition and remeasurement purposes as of and for the Company convened

the Special Meeting. At the Special Meeting, a total of 1,528,826 shares of Class A common stock nine months ended September 30, 2023. After

review and 6,900,000 shares of Class B common stock of the Company, out of a total of 2,002,272 shares of Class A common stock and 6,900,000

shares of Class B common stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote evaluation, management has concluded that there were no material

subsequent events as of the close of business on April 11, 2023 (the record date for that the Special Meeting), financial statements were present

or represented by proxy at the Special Meeting. For more information regarding the Special Meeting, please see the Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on July 5, 2023.

On July 11, 2023, the Company, in connection with its proposed business combination (the “Business Combination”) with AEON Biopharma,

Inc. (“AEON”) and acting pursuant to authorization from its Board of Directors, determined (i) to voluntarily withdraw the listing of the

Company’s common stock, warrants, and units from The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“Nasdaq”), and (ii) to list the post-combination company’s

common stock and warrants on the NYSE American LLC (the “NYSE”), in each case subject to the closing of the Business Combination. Trading of

the common stock and warrants of the post-combination company, AEON Biopharma Inc., is expected to begin on NYSE at market open on or

about July 24, 2023 under the symbol “AEON”. The last day of trading on Nasdaq is expectedavailable to be on or about July 21, 2023. issued.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. Operations

References to the “Company,” “Priveterra Acquisition Corp.,” “our,” “us” or “we” refer to Priveterra Acquisition Corp. The following discussion and

analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction together with the unaudited interim condensed
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consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto contained and other financial information included elsewhere in this report.

Certain Report. Some of the information contained in thethis discussion and analysis set forth below includescontains forward-looking statements that

involve risks and uncertainties.

Cautionary Note  As a result of many factors, such as those set forth in the section of the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on October

23, 2023 captioned “Risk Factors” and in the section of this Reported captioned “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includesStatements”, actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements

within statements. Unless the meaning context otherwise requires, references to “we”, “us”, “our” and “the Company” refer to the business and

operations of Section 27AAEON Biopharma, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries prior to the Merger (“Old AEON” or the “Predecessor”) and to AEON

Biopharma, Inc. (“AEON”) following the consummation of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Merger.

On December 12, 2022, Old AEON and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations

and projections about future events. These forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us

that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity,

performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by

terminology such as “may,” “should,” “could,” “would,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “continue,” or the negative of such terms or

other similar expressions. Factors that might cause or contribute to such Priveterra Acquisition Corp. (“Priveterra”), a discrepancy include, but are not

limited to, those described in our other SEC filings.

Overview

We are a blank check special purpose acquisition company incorporated in Delaware on November 17, 2020. We were formed for the purpose of

effecting a merger, share capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, share stock purchase, reorganization, or other similar business combination

with one or more target businesses, entered into a Business Combination and Merger Agreement (the “Business Combination” Combination

Agreement”).

Our Sponsor is Priveterra Sponsor, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company. The registration statement for the IPO was declared effective on

February 8, 2021. On February 11, 2021July 21, 2023, we the parties consummated the IPO of 27,600,000 Units, at $10.00 per Unit, generating gross

proceeds of $276,000,000, and incurring offering costs of approximately $5,520,000, inclusive of approximately $9,660,000 in deferred underwriting

commissions. On November 16, 2022, transactions contemplated by the Company and one of Business Combination Agreement (collectively

referred to as the underwriters executed a waiver letter confirming the underwriter’s waiver of its deferred fee under the terms of the

underwriting agreement. As a result, the Company recognized income of $3,767,400 in relation to the waiver of the deferred underwriter fee

allocated to the underwriter in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the deferred

underwriting fee payable was $1,255,800 and 5,892,600, respectively. On January 23, 2023, the Company and a second underwriter executed a

waiver letter confirming the underwriter’s waiver of its deferred fee under the terms of the underwriting agreement which represents an

additional $4,636,800 of the deferred fee as waived.

Simultaneously“Merger”). In connection with the closing of the IPO, we consummatedMerger (the” Closing”), Priveterra changed its name from

Priveterra Acquisition Corp. to AEON Biopharma, Inc.

Priveterra was deemed the Private Placement of 5,213,333 Private Placement Warrants, at a price of $1.50 per Private Placement Warrant to our

Sponsor, generating gross proceeds to us of approximately $7,820,000.

Upon accounting acquirer in the closing Merger based on an analysis of the IPOcriteria outlined in Accounting Standards Codification 805,  Business

Combinations. Old AEON was deemed to be the predecessor entity based on an analysis of the criteria outlined in the Accounting Standards Codification

805, Business Combinations. Accordingly, the historical financial statements of Old AEON became the historical financial statements of the combined

company upon the consummation of the Merger. As a result, the financial statements included in this report reflect (i) the historical operating results of

Old AEON prior to the Merger; and (ii) the combined results of the Company following the Closing. The accompanying financial information includes a

predecessor period, which includes the periods through July 21, 2023 concurrent with the Merger, and the Private Placement, $276,000,000 ($10.00 per Unit)

of successor period from July 22, 2023 through September 30, 2023. A black-line between the net proceeds of the IPOSuccessor and certain of the proceeds

of the Private Placement wasPredecessor periods has been placed in the Trust Accountcondensed consolidated financial statements and was invested in

permitted the tables to the notes to the statements to highlight the lack of comparability between these two periods and differentiate the cut-off of these

periods.

Overview

We are a clinical stage biopharmaceutical company focused on developing our proprietary botulinum toxin complex, ABP-450

(prabotulinumtoxinA) injection (“ABP-450”) for debilitating medical conditions, with an initial focus on the neurology and gastroenterology
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markets. We plan to develop ABP-450 to address the estimated $3.0 billion global therapeutic botulinum toxin market, which is projected to

grow to $4.4 billion in 20271. We recently completed a Phase 2 study of ABP-450 for the treatment of cervical dystonia and have an ongoing Phase

2 study of ABP-450 for the treatment of both chronic and episodic migraine. ABP-450 is the same botulinum toxin complex that is currently

approved and marketed for cosmetic indications by Evolus, Inc. under the name Jeuveau in the United States “government securities” within

the meaning of Section 2(a)(16) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, having a maturity of 185 days or less or and Nuceiva in

money market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 promulgated under the Investment Company Act that invest only in direct

U.S. government treasury obligations.

Our management has broad discretion with respect to the specific application of the net proceeds of the IPOCanada and the sale European

Union. ABP-450 is manufactured by Daewoong Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. (“Daewoong”) in compliance with current good manufacturing processes

(“cGMP”) in a facility that has been approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (the “FDA”), Health Canada and the European Medicines

Agency (“EMA”). We have exclusive development and distribution rights for therapeutic indications of ABP-450 in the Private Placement

Warrants, although substantially all of United States, Canada, the net proceeds are intendedEuropean Union, the United Kingdom, and certain

other international territories. We have built a highly experienced management team with specific experience in biopharmaceutical and

botulinum toxin development and commercialization.

Botulinum toxins have proven to be applied generally toward consummating a Business Combination.

highly versatile therapeutic biologic, with over 230 therapeutic uses documented in published scientific literature and nine approved

therapeutic indications in the United States. Our initial development programs for ABP-450 are directed at migraine, cervical dystonia and

gastroparesis. We will only have 30 months from the closingselected these initial indications based on a comprehensive product assessment

screen designed to identify indications where we believe ABP-450 can deliver significant value to patients, physicians and payors and where its

clinical, regulatory and commercial characteristics suggest viability. We believe that ABP-450 has application in a broad range of the IPO, or

August 11, 2023, (or such later date as may be approved by Priveterra stockholders in an amendment indications and we plan to the current

charter)continue to complete explore additional indications that satisfy our initial Business Combination (the “Combination Period”). If we do

not complete a Business Combination within this period of time, we will (i) cease all operations except for the purposes of winding up; (ii) as

promptly as reasonably possible, but not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem the public shares for a per share pro rata portion of

the Trust Account, including interest and not previously released to us to fund our working capital requirements (less taxes payable and up to

$100,000 of such net interest to pay dissolution expenses) and (iii) as promptly as possible following such product assessment screens.

1 Source: Decision Resources Group Therapeutic Botulinum Toxin Market Analysis Global 2021.

2340

Table of Contents

redemption, dissolve The FDA accepted our investigational new drug (“IND”) application for ABP-450 as a preventative treatment for

migraine in October 2020, and liquidate we began treating patients in our Phase 2 clinical study beginning in March 2021. On October 19, 2023, we

announced topline results from our Phase 2 clinical trial of ABP-450 for the balance preventive treatment of episodic migraine. The Phase 2

clinical trial for episodic migraine did not meet its primary endpoint, though it did show statistical significance on multiple secondary and

exploratory endpoints, including the percentage of patients achieving a reduction from baseline of at least 50% in monthly migraine days and

75% in monthly migraine days during the weeks 21 to 24 of the treatment period and improvements on certain patient and rating scales. We

plan to announce topline data related to chronic migraine in the second half of 2024.

The FDA accepted our IND application for ABP-450 as a treatment for cervical dystonia in October 2020, and we began treating patients in 

our Phase 2 clinical study beginning in April 2021. Topline data from the Phase 2 study, released in September 2022, confirmed that ABP-450 met 

all primary endpoints and a number of other key secondary endpoints, supporting the safety and efficacy of ABP-450 in reducing signs and 

symptoms associated with cervical dystonia. ABP-450 demonstrated adverse event rates similar to, or lower than, other botulinum toxin 

products for the treatment of cervical dystonia. ABP-450 also demonstrated potential for efficacy similar to, or better than, other botulinum 

toxin products for the treatment of cervical dystonia. We are in discussions with the FDA regarding the design of our Phase 3 study in cervical 

dystonia, which we expect to commence based on the availability of capital resources.
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In December 2020, we initiated a preclinical gastroparesis study with 42 primates receiving multiple injections of ABP-450 across four dose 

ranges. We completed this preclinical study in January 2022. Following the preclinical study, we submitted an IND to the FDA and received a 

letter in May 2022 confirming that the IND-opening Phase 2a clinical study may proceed. We continue to evaluate various pathways to most 

efficiently advance this clinical development program.

ABP-450 has the same 900 kDa complex size as Botox. We believe physicians generally prefer the performance characteristics of the

complete 900 kDa botulinum toxin complex for therapeutic uses and that this characteristic will provide ABP-450, if approved, a competitive

advantage over other non-Botox therapeutic botulinum toxins currently on the market or in development. ABP-450, if approved, will be the

only therapeutic botulinum toxin with significantly similar physiochemical properties as Botox.

We license ABP-450 from Daewoong, a South Korean pharmaceutical manufacturer, and have exclusive development and distribution

rights for therapeutic indications in the United States, Canada, the European Union, the United Kingdom, and certain other international

territories. Daewoong licenses the same 900 kDa botulinum toxin to Evolus for cosmetic indications, which it markets and sells under the name

Jeuveau in the United States and Nuceiva in Canada and the European Union.

We have never been profitable from operations and, as of September 30, 2023, we had an accumulated deficit of $423.1 million. We have

never generated revenue from ABP-450. Losses from operations were $29.6 million, income from operations of $57.9 million and $33.4 million for

the period from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor) and for the nine months ended

September 30, 2022, respectively. Consolidated net assetslosses attributable to our remainingcommon stockholders as part were $38.0 million,

income of our plan $43.9 million and losses were $18.0 million for the period from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to

September 30, 2023 (Successor) and for the nine months ended September 30, 2022, respectively. As of dissolution and liquidation. Our Sponsor

and our executive officers and independent director nominees (the “initial stockholders”) entered into a letter agreement with us, pursuant to

which theySeptember 30, 2023, we had $16.2 million in cash. We have waived their rights to participate in any redemption with respect to their

Founder Shares; however, if the initial stockholders or any of our officers, directors or affiliates acquire shares of common stock in or after the

IPO, they will be entitled to a pro rata share of the Trust Account upon our redemption or liquidation in the event concluded that we do not

complete have sufficient cash to fund our operations for 12 months from the date of our financial statements without additional financing, and

as a Business Combination within the required time period. In the event of such distribution, it result, there is possible that the per share

value substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. As of the residual assets remaining available date of this Report, we

have sufficient cash to fund our operating plan through mid-December 2023. Any further development of ABP-450 for distribution (including

Trust Account assets) will be less than any indication, including the IPO price per Unit in the IPO.

On December 12, 2022, the Company entered into a Business Combination Agreement (the “Business Combination Agreement”) by and among

the Company, Priveterra Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Merger Sub”), and AEON Biopharma, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“AEON”).

The Business Combination Agreement provides, among other things, that on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, Merger

Sub will merge with and into AEON, with AEON surviving as a wholly owned subsidiarycompletion of the Company (the “Merger”). Upon Phase 2

open-label extension study in migraine, any Phase 3 trials for migraine, and any additional studies in cervical dystonia, will require additional

funding, which may not be available to us on reasonable terms, or at all.

We do not expect to receive any revenue from ABP-450 or any future product candidates that we develop unless and until we obtain

regulatory approval and commercialize ABP-450 or any future product candidates. We expect to continue to incur significant expenses and

increasing net operating losses for the closingforeseeable future as we seek regulatory approval, prepare for and, if approved, proceed to

commercialization of the Merger (the “Closing” ABP-450.

We utilize clinical research organizations (“CROs”), the Company will change its name to “AEON Biopharma, Inc.” The date on which the

Closing actually occurs is hereinafter referredcarry out our clinical development and we do not yet have a sales organization. We expect to as

the “Closing Date.”

Pursuant incur significant expenses related to the Business Combination Agreement, at the effective time of the Merger, each option, whether

vested or unvested, exercisable for AEON equity that is outstanding immediatelybuilding our commercialization infrastructure, including

marketing, sales and distribution functions, inventory build prior to the effective time of the Merger shall be assumed by the

Companycommercial launch, training and continue in full deploying a specialty sales force and effect on the same terms and conditions as are

currently applicable to such options, subject to adjustments to exercise price and number of shares of Class A Common Stock issued upon

exercise. implementing a targeted marketing campaign.

Under the Business Combination Agreement, the Company will acquire all of the outstanding equity interests of AEON (including equity

interests issued upon conversion of the outstanding convertible notes of AEON) in exchange for shares of the Company’s Class A common stock,

par value $0.0001 per share (the “Class A Common Stock”), based on an implied AEON equity value of $165,000,000, to be paid to AEON
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stockholders at the effective time of the Merger, except that 809,000 shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock otherwise issuable as

merger consideration shall be held back to satisfy the exercise of certain of AEON’s convertible notes upon the maturity thereof.

The issuance of additional shares in connection with the Business Combination to the current owners of AEON or other investors:

● may significantly dilute the equity interest of Priveterra stockholders, which dilution would increase if the anti-dilution provisions in the Class B
Common Stock resulted in the issuance of shares of Class A Common Stock on a greater than one-to-one basis upon conversion of the Class B
Common Stock;

● may subordinate the rights of holders of Priveterra Common Stock if preferred stock is issued with rights senior to those afforded Priveterra
Common Stock;

● could cause a change in control if a substantial number of shares of Priveterra Common Stock is issued, which may affect, among other things, our
ability to use our net operating loss carry forwards, if any, and could result in the resignation or removal of our present officers and directors;

● may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of us by diluting the stock ownership or voting rights of a person seeking to obtain
control of us; and

● may adversely affect prevailing market prices for our Class A Common Stock.

Similarly, if we issue debt securities or otherwise incur significant debt to bank or other lenders or the owners of AEON, it could result in:

● default and foreclosure on our assets if our operating revenues after the Business Combination are insufficient to repay our debt obligations;

● acceleration of our obligations to repay the indebtedness even if we make all principal and interest payments when due if we breach certain
covenants that require the maintenance of certain financial ratios or reserves without a waiver or renegotiation of that covenant;
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● our immediate payment of all principal and accrued interest, if any, if the debt is payable on demand;

● our inability to obtain necessary additional financing if the debt contains covenants restricting our ability to obtain such financing while the debt is
outstanding;

● our inability to pay dividends on Priveterra Common Stock;

● using a substantial portion of our cash flow to pay principal and interest on our debt, which will reduce the funds available for dividends on our
Description of the Merger

At the effective time of the Merger (“Effective Time”), (i) each outstanding share of Old AEON common stock (on an as-converted basis after taking

into effect the conversion of the outstanding warrants of Old AEON exercisable for shares of Old AEON preferred stock, the conversion of the shares

of Old AEON preferred stock into Old AEON common stock if declared, our ability to pay expenses, make capital expenditures and acquisitions, and

fund other general corporate purposes;

● limitations on our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in our business and in the industry in which we operate;

● increased vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic, industry and competitive conditions and adverse changes in government regulation;

● limitations on our ability to borrow additional amounts for expenses, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service requirements, and execution of
our strategy; and

● other purposes and other disadvantages compared to our competitors who have less debt.

As indicated in accordance with the accompanying financial statements, governing documents of Old AEON as of June 30, 2023, the

balance Effective Time, the conversion of the Trust Account outstanding convertible notes of Old AEON into Old AEON common stock in

accordance with the terms of such convertible notes and after giving effect to the issuance of Old AEON common stock in connection with the

merger of ABP Sub, Inc. with and into Old AEON) issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time converted into the right to

receive approximately 2.328 shares of our common stock. In addition, each share of Priveterra Class B common stock (“Founder Shares”), par
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value $0.0001 per share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time converted into one share of common stock (of which

3,450,000 Founder Shares are subject to certain vesting and forfeiture conditions).

In addition, Priveterra entered into separate Forward Purchase Agreements with each of ACM ARRT J LLC (“ACM”), and Polar Multi-Strategy

Master Fund (“Polar”), on June 29, 2023, for an OTC Equity Prepaid Forward Transaction. The Forward Purchase Agreements provide that each of

Polar and ACM will separately be paid directly an aggregate cash amount (the “Prepayment Amount”), which was approximately $21,193,395

(excluding $1,255,800equal to an aggregate of deferred underwriting commissions and taxes payable $66.7 million based on the income

earnedproduct of (i) 6,275,000 shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock (the “Additional Shares”) and (ii) the redemption price per share of

$10.63.

In satisfaction of the Prepayment Amount, on July 21, 2023, $66.7 million was obligated to be paid from the purchase of the Additional Shares

by each of ACM and Polar pursuant to the terms of certain FPA Funding Amount PIPE Subscription Agreements between Priveterra and each of

ACM and Polar. We did not have access to the Prepayment Amount immediately following the Closing and, depending on the Trust Account).

Further, manner in which the OTC Equity Prepaid Forward Transactions are settled, may never have access to the Prepayment Amount, which

may adversely affect our liquidity and capital needs.

As a result of becoming a public company, we will need to hire additional staff and implement processes and procedures to address public

company regulatory requirements and customary practices. We expect to incur significant additional annual expenses for, among other things,

directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, director fees and additional internal and external accounting, legal and administrative resources and

fees.

Components of Our Results of Operations

Revenue

We have generated no revenue from the sale of products and do not anticipate deriving any product revenue unless and until we receive

regulatory approval for, and are able to successfully commercialize, ABP-450.

Operating Expenses

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) expenses, consist primarily of compensation for personnel, including stock-based

compensation, management, finance, legal, and regulatory functions. Other SG&A expenses include travel expenses, market research and

analysis, conferences and trade shows, professional services fees, including legal, audit and tax fees, insurance costs, general corporate

expenses, and allocated facilities-related expenses. We anticipate that our SG&A expenses will increase in the future to support our continued

research and development (“R&D”), activities. Additionally, we anticipate increased costs associated with being a public company, including

expenses related to services associated with maintaining compliance with the requirements of the NYSE American and the SEC, insurance, and

investor relations costs. We expect to incur increased costs associated with establishing sales, marketing, and commercialization functions in

advance of potential future regulatory approvals and commercialization of our product candidates. If ABP-450 obtains United States regulatory

approval for any indication, we expect that we would incur significantly increased expenses associated with building a sales and marketing

team and funding commercial activities.
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Research and Development Expenses

Our R&D expenses are primarily attributed to the development of ABP-450 for migraine, cervical dystonia and gastroparesis. Due to the

stage of our development and our ability to use resources across all of our programs, most of our R&D costs are not recorded on a program-

specific basis. We expect our R&D expenses to continue to increase as we continue our Phase 2 clinical studies for ABP-450 to treat migraine,

commence a Phase 2 study of ABP-450 for gastroparesis, and as we develop and initiate a Phase 3 study of ABP-450 in cervical dystonia. R&D

expenses associated with these studies will include third-party costs such as expenses incurred under agreements with CROs, the cost of

consultants who assist with the development of ABP-450 on a program-specific basis, investigator grants, sponsored research, product costs in
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connection with acquiring ABP-450 from Daewoong for use in conducting preclinical and clinical studies, and other third-party expenses

attributable to the pursuit development of our product candidates.

R&D activities will be critical to achieving our business strategy. As our pipeline programs enter the later stages of clinical development, we

will generally incur greater development costs than those programs incurred in the earlier stages of clinical development, primarily due to the

increased size and duration of later- stage clinical studies. We expect our R&D expenses to be significant over the next several years as we

advance the clinical development of ABP-450 and prepare to seek regulatory approval.

As a result, we are unable to determine the duration and completion costs of our programs or when and to what extent we will generate

revenue from commercialization and sale of any of our product candidates. Our R&D activities may be subject to change from time to time as

we evaluate our priorities and available resources.

Acquired in-Process Research and Development

The Company records costs incurred in obtaining technology licenses to research and development expense as acquired in-process research

and development (“IPR&D”) if the technology licensed has not reached technological feasibility and has no alternative future use. The IPR&D

recorded at the Closing was written off and is included on the line in the consolidated financial statements (see Note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements).

Change in Fair Value of Contingent Consideration

The Company determined that the Contingent Consideration Shares would be classified as a liability on the condensed consolidated balance

sheets and remeasured at each reporting period with changes to fair value recorded to the condensed consolidated statements of operations

and comprehensive loss.

Other (Loss) Income, Net

Other (loss) income, net primarily consists of gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of the Business Combination. fair value of

our convertible notes, forward purchase agreements, warrant liabilities, each described below, at each balance sheet date.

Change in fair value of convertible notes – The Company elected the fair value option to account for its convertible notes, with the

subsequent changes in fair value recorded in the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss.

Change in fair value of forward purchase agreement and make whole derivative - the Company has determined that each of its forward 

purchase agreements entered in connection with the Merger is a freestanding hybrid financial instrument comprising a subscription 

receivable and embedded features, which have been bifurcated and accounted for separately as derivative instruments. The Company has 

recorded the derivatives as liabilities and measured them at fair value with the initial value of the derivative recorded as a loss “on the line” in 

the Successor’s opening accumulated deficit. On the line describes those transactions triggered by the consummation of the Merger that are 

not recognized in the consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor or the Successor as they are not directly attributable to either 

period but instead were contingent on the Merger. Subsequent changes in the bifurcated derivatives are recorded in the condensed 

consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Change in fair value of warrants - Changes in the estimated fair value of our warrant liabilities are recognized as a non-cash gain or loss on

the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.
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Income Tax Benefit

Our tax provision is comprised of United States and state income taxes. We cannot assure you that currently record a full valuation

allowance against our plans to raise capital or to complete net deferred tax assets. We have provided for the Business Combination will be

successful. tax effects of uncertain tax positions in our tax provision.

Results of Operations
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Our entire activity since inception through June 30, 2023 related to The following table summarizes our formation, the preparation results of

operations for the IPO, and since the closing of the IPO, the search for a prospective initial Business Combination. We have neither engaged in

any operations nor generated any revenues to date. We will not generate any operating revenues until after completion of our initial Business

Combination. We will generate non-operating income in the form of interest income and dividends on investments held in Trust Account.

Additionally, we will recognize unrealized gains or loss related to our Warrants. We expect to incur increased expenses as a result of being a

public company (for legal, financial reporting, accounting and auditing compliance), as well as for due diligence expenses. periods indicated (in

thousands):

For the three months ended June 30, 2023, we had net loss of $3,942,337, which is driven by an unrealized loss of $524,114 on our warrants,

income tax provision of $91,662 and operating costs of $3,526,521. Partially offsetting our $199,960 in interest income from asset held in our Trust

Account.

     Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30,  September 30, 

2023      2022 2023      2022

Predecessor 


July 1 to 


July 21          

Successor 


July 22 to

September 30

Predecessor


July 1 to

September 30         

Predecessor 


January 1 to 


July 21          

Successor 


July 22 to

September 30

Predecessor


January 1 to

September 30

Operating expenses:                      

Selling, general and

administrative $ 1,055 $ 5,460 $ 2,436 $ 9,841 $ 5,460 $ 8,171

Research and development   1,573   6,383   7,477   19,803   6,383   25,225

Change in fair value of

contingent consideration   —   (69,715)   —   —   (69,715)   —

Total operating costs and

expenses   2,628   (57,872)   9,913   29,644   (57,872)   33,396

(Loss) income from operations   (2,628)   57,872   (9,913)   (29,644)   57,872   (33,396)

Other (loss) income:                              

Change in fair value of

convertible notes   2,582   —   (666)   (3,528)   —   15,261

Change in fair value of

warrants   —   1,593   —   —   1,593   —

Change in fair value of

embedded forward purchase

agreements and derivative

liabilities (4,959) (15,776) — (4,959)   (15,776)   —

Other income, net   5   186   141   114   186   142

Total other (loss) income,

net   (2,372)   (13,997)   (525)   (8,373)   (13,997)   15,403

(Loss) income before taxes   (5,000)   43,875   (10,438)   (38,017)   43,875   (17,993)

Income taxes   —   —   —   —   —   —

(Loss) Income and

comprehensive (loss) income $ (5,000) $ 43,875 $ (10,438) $ (38,017) $ 43,875 $ (17,993)

Basic and diluted net (loss)

income per share $ (0.04) $ 1.19 $ (0.08) $ (0.28) $ 1.19 $ (0.13)

Weighted average shares of

common stock outstanding

used to compute basic and

diluted net (loss) income per

share 138,848,177 37,159,600 138,848,177 138,848,177 37,159,600 138,848,177

For the six months ended June 30, 2023, we had net loss of $4,330,852, which is driven by an unrealized loss of $666,966 on our warrants,

income tax provision of $496,296 and operating costs of $5,270,006. Partially offsetting our loss are gain on forgiveness of underwriting fee

payable of $200,087 and $1,902,329 in interest income from investments held in our Trust Account.

For the three months ended June 30, 2022, we had net income of $1,867,104, which is driven by an unrealized gain of $2,173,893 on our warrants

and $137,380 in interest income from investments held in our Trust Account. Partially offsetting our income is operating costs and of $427,204

and provision for income tax of $16,965.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2022, we had net income of $4,640,497, which is driven by an unrealized gain of $5,206,773 on our warrants and

$266,966 in interest income from investments held in our Trust Account. Partially offsetting our income is operating costs and of $816,277 and

provision for income tax of $16,965.
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Comparison of the periods from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor), July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), January 1, 2023 to July 21,

2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor)

Operating Expenses

Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) Expenses

SG&A expenses were $1.1 million and $5.5 million for the period from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September

30, 2023 (Successor), respectively, an increase of $4.2 million, or 175%, compared to $2.4 million during the three months ended September 30,

2022 (Predecessor). The increase in S&GA expenses was primarily attributable to an increase of $2.2 million in legal expenses and professional

fees related to the Merger, $1.2 million related to repricing of stock options in connection with the Merger and an increase in stock-based

compensation expense of $0.5 million due to vesting of restricted stock units granted in 2023.

SG&A expenses were $9.8 million and $5.5 million for the period from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to

September 30, 2023 (Successor), respectively, an increase of $7.1 million, or 87%, compared to $8.2 million during the nine months ended

September 30, 2022 (Predecessor). The increase in SG&A expenses was primarily attributable to an increase of $5.9 million in legal expenses and

professional fees related to the Merger and $1.2 million related to repricing of stock options in connection with the Merger.

Research and Development (R&D) Expenses

R&D expenses were $1.6 million and $6.3 million for the period from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September

30, 2023 (Successor), respectively, an increase of $0.4 million, or 5%, compared to $7.5 million during the three months ended September 30, 2022

(Predecessor). The increase was primarily attributable to a $0.2 million due to vesting of restricted stock units granted in 2023.

R&D expenses were $19.8 million and $6.3 million for the period from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to

September 30, 2023 (Successor), respectively, an increase of $0.9 million, or 4%, compared to $25.2 million during the nine months ended

September 30, 2022 (Predecessor). The increase was primarily attributable to $0.8 million due to vesting of restricted stock units granted in 2023.

Change in Fair Value of Contingent Consideration

At the Closing, the Company recognized a gain of $69.7 million related to the change in the fair value of the contingent consideration

liability for the period from July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor) related to certain contingent provisions, restrictions and forfeiture

provisions for Founder Shares and certain Participating Stockholders shares. See Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements for further

discussion.

Other Income (Loss), Net

Other income (loss), net was loss of $2.4 million and $14.0 million for the period from July 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023

to September 30, 2023 (Successor), respectively, an increase in net other loss of $15.8 million, compared to loss of $0.5 million during the three

months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor). The change is primarily due to loss on fair value of derivatives of $15.8 million (Successor),

offset by income of $1.6 million for change in fair value of warrants (Successor), $5.0 million loss related to settlement of derivatives

(Predecessor) and $2.6 million of income related to the change in value of convertible notes (Predecessor) compared to loss in the same period in

the prior year primarily related to $0.7 million due to change in convertible notes (Predecessor).

Other income (loss), net was loss of $8.4 million and $14.0 million for the period from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22,

2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), respectively, an increase in net other loss of $37.8 million, compared to income of $15.4 million during

the nine months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor). The change is due to loss on fair value of derivatives of $15.8 million (Successor), loss of

$3.5 million related to the change in value of convertible notes
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(Predecessor), income of $1.6 million for change in fair value of warrants (Successor), $5.0 million loss related to the change in fair value of

derivatives (Predecessor) compared to income during the nine months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor) primarily related to a $15.3

million due to change in fair value of convertible notes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of capital have been debt financing (Predecessor) and equity financing (Successor). We have has experienced recurring

losses from operations and have a net capital deficiency and negative cash flows from operations since our inception. As of June 30,

2023September 30, 2023 (Successor), we had $441,377reported cash of $16.2 million and an accumulated deficit of $423.1 million.

On July 21, 2023 the Company closed the Merger. The funding available to the Company at the Closing included approximately $30 million of

committed financing from existing and new AEON investors, as well as the cash remaining in Priveterra’s trust account after redemptions. The

committed financings available immediately at the Closing provided the capital necessary to consummate the Merger and provided sufficient

proceeds to fund the Company through the announcement of topline data from the Company’s Phase 2 study with ABP-450 for the preventive

treatment of episodic migraine, which occurred in October 2023. As of the date of this report, we have sufficient cash to fund our operating

bank account and workingplan through mid-December 2023. We are actively attempting to secure additional capital deficit to fund our

operations. However, we cannot assure you that we will be able to raise additional capital on commercially reasonable terms or at all. Any

further development of $8,868,659 (excluding taxes payable which is funded by earnings from the Trust Account).

Prior to ABP- 450 for any indication, including the completion of the IPO, our liquidity needs have been satisfied through a capital contribution

from Phase 2 open-label extension study in migraine, any Phase 3 trials for migraine, and any additional studies in cervical dystonia, will require

additional funding, which may not be available to us on reasonable terms, or at all.

In connection with the Sponsor Merger, the Company also entered the Forward Purchase Agreements, which provide the Company with

additional potential funding of $25,000 for up to approximately $73 million. However, the founder shares and loans under an unsecured

promissory note from the Sponsor of $73,295. On February 15, 2021, amounts, if any, that we issued an unsecured convertible promissory note to

our Sponsor, receive pursuant to which we may borrow up to $1,500,000 from the Forward Purchase Agreements will depend on numerous

factors, including the trading price of our sponsor for ongoing expenses reasonably related to our business andcommon stock over the

consummation life of an initial business combination. All unpaid principal under the convertible note Forward Purchase Agreements, which will

be due and payable in full on the earlier of (i) August 11, 2023 and (ii) the effective date of our initial business combination. Our Sponsor will have

the option, at any time on or prior to such maturity date, to convert any amounts outstanding under the convertible note into warrants to

purchase shares of our Class A Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share, at a conversion price of $1.50 per warrant, with each warrant

entitling the holder to purchase one share of our Class A Common Stock at a price of $11.50 per share, subject to the same adjustments

applicable to the private placement warrants sold concurrently with our IPO. In June 2021 we had $100,000 of Working Capital Loans outstanding

which were converted into 66,667 Working Capital Warrants. As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, there were no borrowings under the

Working Capital Loans.

Management continues to evaluate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and has concluded that the specific impact is not readily

determinable as of more than two years from the date of the balance sheets. The financial statements do Closing. Under the terms of the

Forward Purchase Agreements, the counterparties may also have the right under certain circumstances to accelerate the termination of the

Forward Purchase Agreements, in which case we may not include receive any adjustments that might result proceeds and may incur material

obligations. For example, if the shares are neither registered for resale under an effective resale registration statement (the deadline for which

is 120 days, subject to certain conditions, after a written request for registration by a Seller) nor transferable without any restrictions pursuant

to an exemption from the outcome registration requirements of this uncertainty.

Going ConcernSection 5 of the Securities Act, including pursuant to Rule 144 (the “Unregistered Shares”), such Unregistered Shares would not

be included in the calculation of the Settlement Amount and the Seller would not be obligated to pay us any amount, but we would still be

obligated to pay such Seller the Settlement Amount Adjustment of $2.00 per share. In such a scenario, if all 6,275,000 shares of Common Stock

purchased by the Sellers at the Closing were Unregistered Shares at settlement, we would potentially owe the Sellers an aggregate of

approximately $12.6 million. Further, we may be required to make cash payments to the counterparties in respect of settlement amounts
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under the Forward Purchase Agreements, such as in the case of a failure to maintain the listing of our Common Stock on a national securities

exchange. Any of the above scenarios may adversely affect our liquidity and capital needs.

We have approximately $441,000 in incurred operating losses and negative cash and approximately $9,400,000 in current liabilities as of June

30, 2023 and have incurredflows from operating activities since inception and expect to continue to incur additional significant  operating

losses for the foreseeable future and may never become profitable. We expect to continue to incur substantial costs in pursuit order to conduct

R&D activities necessary to develop and commercialize our product candidates. Until such time, if ever, as we can generate substantial product

revenue from sales of ABP-450, we will need additional capital to undertake these activities and commercialization efforts, and, therefore, we

intend to raise such capital through the issuance of additional equity, borrowings, and potentially strategic alliances with other companies.

However, if such financing is not available at adequate levels or on acceptable terms, we could be required to reduce the scope of or eliminate

some of our development programs or commercialization efforts, out-license intellectual property rights to our product candidates or sell

unsecured assets, or a combination of the above, any of which may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,

financial condition and/or our ability to fund our scheduled obligations on a timely basis or at all. Our ability to continue as a going concern is

dependent upon our ability to successfully accomplish these plans and secure sources of financing and acquisition plans. ultimately attain

profitable operations.

Our primary use of cash is to fund operating expenses, which consist of R&D expenditures as well as SG&A expenditures. Cash used to fund

operating expenses is impacted by the timing of when we pay or prepay these expenses.
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We may also seek to raise additional capital through the sale of public or private equity or convertible debt securities. If we incur additional

debt, the debt holders would have rights senior to holders of common stock to make claims on our assets, and the terms of any debt could

restrict our operations, including our ability to pay dividends to holders of our common stock. If we undertake discretionary financing by issuing

equity securities or convertible debt securities, our stockholders may experience substantial dilution. We may sell common stock, convertible

securities or other equity securities in one or more transactions at a price per share that is less than the price per share paid by current public

stockholders. If we sell common stock, convertible securities, or other equity securities in more than one transaction, stockholders may be

further diluted by subsequent sales. Additionally, future equity financings may result in new investors receiving rights superior to our existing

stockholders. Because our decision to issue securities in the future will depend on numerous considerations, including factors beyond our

control, we cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing, or nature of any future issuances of debt or equity securities. As a result, our

stockholders bear the risk of future issuances of debt or equity securities reducing the value of our common stock and diluting their interests.

We may receive additional capital from the cash exercise of the Warrants. However, the exercise price of our Warrants and the Private

Placement Warrants is $11.50 per warrant and the last reported sales price of our common stock on November 10, 2023 was $4.18. The likelihood

that holders of Warrants will exercise their Warrants or Private Placement Warrants, and therefore the likelihood of any amount of cash

proceeds that we may receive, is dependent upon the trading price of our Common Stock and we do not currently expect to receive any cash

proceeds from the exercise of Warrants in the short- to medium-term due to the trading price of our common stock. If the trading price for our

common stock continues to be less than $11.50 per share, we do not expect holders to exercise their Warrants. Additionally, the Private

Placement Warrants may be exercised on a cashless basis and we will not receive any proceeds from such exercise, even if the Private

Placement Warrants are in-the-money. We will have until August 11, 2023broad discretion over the use of any proceeds from the exercise of

such securities. Any proceeds from the exercise of such securities would increase our liquidity, but we are not currently budgeting for any cash

proceeds from the exercise of Warrants when planning for our operational funding needs.

To the extent that we raise additional capital through marketing and distribution arrangements or other collaborations, strategic

alliances, or licensing arrangements with third parties, we may have to consummate relinquish valuable rights to our product candidates,

future revenue streams, research programs or product licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us. If these sources are insufficient to

satisfy our liquidity requirements, we will seek to raise additional funds through future equity or debt financings. If we raise additional funds by

issuing equity securities, our stockholders would experience dilution. Additional debt financing, if available, may involve covenants restricting

our operations or our ability to incur additional debt. There can be no assurance that our efforts to procure additional financing will be

successful or that, if they are successful, the terms and conditions of such financing will be favorable to us or our stockholders. If we are unable
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to raise additional financing when needed, we may be required to delay, reduce, or terminate the development, commercialization and

marketing of our products and scale back our business and operations.

As a Business Combination. In connection with our assessment result of going concern considerations in accordance with FASB ASC Topic

205-40, “Presentation of Financial Statements– Going Concern,” we have determinedthese conditions, management has concluded that the

liquidity condition and mandatory liquidation, should a Business Combination not occur, and potential subsequent dissolution raises

substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We intendconcern exists as conditions and events, considered in the

aggregate, indicate that it is probable that we will be unable to complete a Business Combination before meet our obligations as they become

due within one year after the mandatory liquidation date. No adjustmentsdate that the financial statements included in this Report are

issued. Our financial information throughout this Report and our financial statements included elsewhere in this Report have been made

to prepared on a basis that assumes that we will continue as a going concern, which contemplates the carrying amountsrealization of assets

or and the satisfaction of liabilities should we be required to liquidate after August 11, 2023 (or such later date as may be approved by Priveterra

stockholdersand commitments in an amendment to the current charter).

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

Asnormal course of June 30, 2023, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K.

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation had a material impact on business. This financial information and our business, revenues or operating results

during the period presented.

JOBS Act

The Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”) contains provisions that, among other things, relax certain reporting

requirements for qualifying public companies. We qualify as an “emerging growth company” and under the JOBS Act are allowed to comply with

new or revised accounting pronouncements based on the effective date for private (not publicly traded) companies. We are electing to delay

the adoption of new or revised accounting standards, and as a result, we may not comply with new or revised accounting standards on the

relevant dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. As a result, the condensed consolidated

financial statements do not include any adjustments that may not be comparable result from an unfavorable outcome of this uncertainty. Our

ability to companies that comply with new or revised accounting pronouncementscontinue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to

successfully accomplish our business plans and secure sources of public company effective dates. financing and ultimately attain profitable

operations.

Additionally, we are Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities for the processperiod from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September

30, 2023 (Successor) were $21.7 million and $15.1 million, respectively, consisting primarily of evaluatinga net loss of $38.0 million (Predecessor)

and income of $43.9 million (Successor) and non-cash charges of $53.2 million, consisting primarily of $3.5 million related to the benefits of

relying on the other reduced reporting requirements provided by the JOBS Act. Subject to certain conditions set forth change in the JOBS Act, if,

as an “emerging growth company,” we choose to rely on such exemptions we may not be required to, among other things, (i) provide an

auditor’s attestation report on our system of internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404, (ii) provide all fair value of the

convertible notes (Predecessor), $(1.6) million related to change in fair value of warrants (Successor), $15.8 million related to change in fair value

of derivatives (Successor), $(69.7) million related to change in fair value of contingent consideration (Successor) and a $5.6 million non-cash

expense related to stock-based compensation disclosure that may be requiredfor our executives and directors, consisting of non-emerging

growth public companies under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform $3.2 million (Predecessor) and Consumer Protection Act, (iii) comply with

any requirement $2.4 million (Successor).
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Net cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 was $27.1 million, consisting primarily of a net loss of

$18.0 million and non-cash items of $10.7 million, consisting primarily of $15.3 million related to the change in the fair value of the convertible
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notes (Predecessor) offset by a $4.2 million non-cash expense related to stock-based compensation for our executives and directors

(Predecessor).

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the period from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023

(Successor) were $0 and $0, respectively, and $0.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor), related to the purchase

of property and equipment.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for the period from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor) and July 22, 2023 to September 30,

2023 (Successor) were $14.0 million and $0, respectively, primarily related to the issuance of convertible notes.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 (Predecessor) was $44.5, primarily related to the

issuance of convertible notes.

Convertible Notes (Predecessor)

Our convertible notes prior to the Merger included the Strathspey Crown Note, the SCH Convertible Note, the 2019 Convertible Notes, 2021

A1 Convertible Notes and the Daewoong Convertible Note, each described in more detail below. At the Closing, the convertible notes were

converted into shares of Successor common stock.

Strathspey Crown Note and SCH Convertible Note. Since December 2013, we had been party to an intercompany credit line promissory note

(the “Strathspey Crown Note”), pursuant to which SCH, our majority stockholder, had advanced borrowings to us to fund our capital

requirements. Effective as of January 2, 2020, we and SCH cancelled all obligations under the Strathspey Crown Note and in exchange we issued

a convertible promissory note to SCH (the “SCH Convertible Note”, with a principal amount of $17.5 million. We accounted for the debt

exchange as an extinguishment of the Strathspey Crown Note and recognized a loss on debt extinguishment of $11.8 million, representing the

difference between the fair value of the SCH Convertible Note of $26.5 million, the fair value of which included the principal plus the value of

the embedded features as described below at January 2, 2020 and total obligations outstanding under the Strathspey Crown Note of $15.8

million less the unamortized borrowing cost of $0.5 million. The SCH Convertible Note and the interest due thereupon was paid out in shares of

Old AEON common stock immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger, which were then converted into shares of Successor common

stock at the Closing.

2019 Debt Financings. In June 2019, we entered into a senior unsecured note purchase agreement (the “Original 2019 Note Purchase

Agreement”), with Dental Innovations BVBA (“Dental Innovations”), pursuant to which we issued Dental Innovations a promissory note (the

“Original 2019 Note”), with a principal amount of $5.0 million. Pursuant to the terms of the Original 2019 Note, we were required to repay a total

of $8.75 million, representing all principal and interest owed, upon the earliest to occur of (i) June 19, 2022, (ii) Dental Innovations’ demand for

repayment following our completion of an initial public offering and (iii) our election to repay the Original 2019 Note in full.

Under the Original 2019 Note Purchase Agreement, Dental Innovations committed to purchase from us an additional promissory note with

a principal amount of $5.0 million, subject to our issuing and selling an additional promissory note with a principal amount of $5.0 million to a

lender not affiliated with Dental Innovations. Any such additional promissory notes were to have the same payment terms as the Original 2019

Note.

In December 2019, we entered into an amendment to the Original 2019 Note Purchase Agreement that provided for the exchange of the

Original 2019 Note for a convertible promissory note with a principal amount of $5.0 million. In addition, Dental Innovations was no longer

committed to purchase from us an additional promissory note with a principal amount of $5.0 million subject to us issuing and selling an

additional promissory note with a principal amount of $5.0 million to a lender not affiliated with Dental Innovations. In December 2019, we

issued and sold five additional convertible promissory notes, each with a principal amount of $1.0
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million, including one to SCH and one to a member of our board of directors. All six such convertible promissory notes are referred to as the 2019

Convertible Notes.

The 2019 Convertible Notes and the interest due thereupon was converted into in shares of Old AEON common stock immediately prior to

the consummation of the Merger, which were then converted into shares of Successor common stock at the Closing.

A1 Convertible Notes. In December 2021, we entered into an agreement with A1 (the “A1 Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which we

expected to issue subordinated convertible promissory notes to A1 with an aggregate principal amount of $25.0 million. On December 8 and 15,

2021, we issued two convertible notes (together, the “2021 A1 Convertible Notes”), each with a principal amount of $5.0 million and totaling $10.0

million, that each matures on the third anniversary of its issuance. The 2021 A1 Convertible Notes were unsecured and subordinated to our

other convertible notes.

The 2021 A1 Convertible Notes bore interest daily at the lesser of 10% per annum or the maximum rate permissible by law. Interest was paid

in-kind by adding the accrued amount thereof to the principal amount on a monthly basis on the last day of each calendar month for so long as

any principal amount remained outstanding.

Subsequent to December 31, 2021, we issued five additional tranches of subordinated convertible promissory notes to A1 on February 18,

2022, March 9, 2022, April 14, 2022, June 3, 2022 and July 1, 2022 (collectively, the “2022 A1 Convertible Notes”), the first four with a principal

amount of $3.0 million each and the fifth issued July 1, 2022, for a principal amount of $2.5 million and totaling $14.5 million. The terms of the

2022 A1 Convertible Notes are similar to those of the 2021 A1 Convertible Notes. As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2023, the principal balance

was $14.5 million, with an estimated fair value of $13.5 million and $15.2 million, respectively.

Additionally, on March 30, 2022, we amended the 2021 A1 Convertible Notes and the convertible notes issued on February 18, 2022 and March

9, 2022 to remove the discount rate associated with the automatic conversion of any outstanding convertible notes into share of common stock

in connection with an initial public offering.

On March 6, 2023, we entered into an agreement with A1 (the “Original A1 Note Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which we issued 

subordinated convertible promissory notes to A1 with an aggregate principal amount of $6.0 million (the “March 2023 A1 Convertible Notes”), 

that matured upon the earlier of (x) the date of the consummation of the Merger and (y) December 29, 2023. The March 2023 A1 Convertible 

Notes bore interest at 15.79% based on simple interest daily, unless issued at least five days prior to maturity date. The March 2023 A1 

Convertible Notes were unsecured and subordinated to the Company’s other convertible notes. As of June 30, 2023, the principal amount 

outstanding was $6 million with an estimated fair value of $7.9 million.

In April 2023, the contingent warrants were amended to include the merger between AEON and Old AEON as a qualifying listing under the

warrant agreement, which stated that the holders of the contingent warrants would exercise the warrants, and that the holders would

receive 85% of the shares the holders would have been entitled to receive via the previous warrant agreement. The contingent warrants were

cancelled at the same time the convertible notes were converted to shares of the Company’s stock. The Company determined that the

contingent warrants amendment modified the settlement provision in the 2019 Convertible Notes. The Company determined that the

amendment should be accounted for as a debt extinguishment. Since the noteholders were both shareholders of Old AEON and Evolus and

Alphaeon Credit, the debt extinguishment was accounted for as a capital transaction on the April 2023 modification date. As such, due to the

warrant modification, the Predecessor recognized a $5.2 million reduction to the underlying fair value of the convertible notes and recorded a

corresponding increase of $5.2 million to additional paid in capital during the periods from January 1, 2023 to July 21, 2023 (Predecessor).

On May 2, 2023, we entered into an agreement with A1, pursuant to which we issued subordinated convertible promissory notes to A1 with

an aggregate principal amount of $6.0 million (“May 2023 A1 Convertible Notes”) that matured on the earlier of (x) the date of the

consummation of the Merger and (y) December 29, 2023. The May 2023 A1 Convertible Notes bore interest at 15.79%, based on simple interest

daily. The May 2023 A1 Convertible Notes were unsecured and subordinated to the Company’s other convertible notes.

On June 23, 2023, A1 entered into an amendment to its Original A1 Note Subscription Agreement (the “Amended A1 Note Subscription

Agreement”), to add the subscription of $20 million additional aggregate principal of subordinated convertible
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promissory notes. In connection therewith, on June 8, 2023, we and Priveterra entered into a Committed Financing Agreement with A1, or the

Additional Committed Financing Agreement, pursuant to which A1 agreed to purchase, and Priveterra and we agreed to sell to A1, an additional

$20 million aggregate principal of interim notes convertible into 2,857,143 shares of Priveterra Class A common stock, for a purchase price of

$7.00 per share pursuant to the Additional Committed Financing Agreement.

On June 27, 2023, we entered into an agreement with A1, pursuant to which we issued subordinated convertible promissory notes to A1 with

an aggregate principal amount of $2.0 million (“June 2023 A1 Convertible Notes”) that matured on the earlier of (x) the date of the

consummation of the Merger and (y) December 29, 2023. The June 2023 A1 Convertible Notes bore interest at 15.79%, based on simple interest

daily. The June 2023 A1 Convertible Notes were unsecured and subordinated to the Company’s other convertible notes.

The 2021 A1 Convertible Notes and 2022 A1 Convertible Notes and the interest due thereupon were repaid in shares of Old AEON common

stock immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger, which were then converted into shares of Successor common stock at the Closing.

The March 2023 A1 Convertible Notes, the May 2023 A1 Convertible Notes and the convertible notes subscribed for under the Amended A1 Note

Subscription Agreement and Additional Committed Financing Agreement were repaid in shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock

immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger and are not subject to any contractual lock-up.

Daewoong Convertible Notes. In August 2020, we entered into a Convertible Promissory Note Purchase Agreement with Daewoong (the

“Daewoong Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which we issued Daewoong two subordinated convertible promissory notes (the “2020

Daewoong Convertible Notes”), with an aggregate principal amount of $25.0 million. The 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes have similar terms,

of which one was issued on August 27, 2020 with a principal amount of $10.0 million and the other was issued on September 18, 2020 with a

principal amount of $15.0 million. The 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes were unsecured and subordinated to the 2019 Convertible Notes.

The 2020 Daewoong Convertible Notes bore interest daily at 3% per annum with semiannual compounding. Interest was paid in-kind by

adding the accrued amount thereof to the principal amount on a semi-annual basis on June 30th and December 31st of each calendar year for

so long as any principal amount remained outstanding (such paid in-kind interest, in the aggregate at any time, the “PIK Principal”). The 2020

Daewoong Convertible Notes had a maturity date of September 18, 2025.

In May 2021, the Daewoong Purchase Agreement was amended to provide for the issuance of an additional subordinated convertible

promissory note by us to Daewoong at an initial principal amount of $5.0 million. The subordinated convertible promissory note was issued with

terms similar to the two subordinated convertible promissory notes issued in 2020 and matures on May 12, 2026 (together with the 2020

Daewoong Convertible Notes, the “Daewoong Convertible Notes”).

On July 29, 2022, we entered into a Convertible Promissory Note Purchase Agreement between us and Daewoong (the “2022 Daewoong Note

Purchase Agreement”), for total available financing of $30 million. The note purchased under the 2022 Daewoong Note Purchase Agreement

(the “2022 Daewoong Note”), had a stated interest rate of 15.79% per annum. The 2022 Daewoong Note had a maturity date of December 29,

2023.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and June 30, 2023, the principal amount outstanding (excluding the PIK Principal) under the Daewoong

Convertible Notes and the 2022 Daewoong Note was $60.0 million and $30.0 million, and $60.0 million, respectively, with an estimated fair value

of $67.3 million and $35.0 million, and $67.7 million, respectively.

On June 27, 2023, we entered into an agreement with Daewoong, (the “Daewoong Note Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which we

issued subordinated convertible promissory notes to Daewoong with an aggregate principal amount of $5.0 million (the “2023 Daewoong

Convertible Notes”), that matured upon the date of the consummation of the Merger. The 2023 Daewoong Convertible Notes were unsecured

and subordinated to the Company’s other convertible notes.

The Daewoong Convertible Notes and the 2022 Daewoong Note and the interest due thereupon were repaid in shares of Old AEON common

stock immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger, which were then converted into shares of Successor common stock at the Closing.

The 2023 Daewoong Convertible Notes were repaid in shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock
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immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger and are not subject to any contractual lock-up, which were then converted into shares

of Successor common stock at the Closing.

Committed Financings and Forward Purchase Agreements in Connection with the Merger

Committed Financing

In connection with the Merger, on January 6, 2023, Priveterra and Old AEON entered into separate subscription agreements for convertible

notes with each of A1 and Daewoong (the “Original Committed Financing Agreements”), pursuant to which A1 and Daewoong agreed to

purchase, and Priveterra and Old AEON agreed to sell to each of them, $15 million and $5 million, respectively, for $20 million aggregate of

principal of interim notes convertible into an aggregate of 2,857,143 shares of Priveterra Class A common stock for a purchase price of $7.00 per

share. Further, on June 8, 2023, Old AEON and Priveterra entered into a committed financing agreement with A1 (the “Additional Committed

Financing Agreement”), pursuant to which A1 agreed to purchase, and Priveterra and Old AEON agreed to sell to A1, an additional 20 million

aggregate principal of interim notes convertible into 2,857,143 shares of Priveterra Class A common stock, for a purchase price of $7.00 per share.

The proceeds from the interim notes were used to fund Old AEON’s operations through the consummation of the Merger. Upon Closing, all of

the aggregate principal amount of interim notes, along with accrued interest, converted into an aggregate of 5,797,611 of common stock.

Forward Purchase Agreements (Successor)

On June 29, 2023, Priveterra and Old AEON entered into the Forward Purchase Agreements with each of (i) ACM and (ii) Polar (each of ACM

ARRT J LLC and Polar, individually, a “Seller”, and together, the “Sellers”) for OTC Equity Prepaid Forward Transactions. For purposes of each

Forward Purchase Agreement, Priveterra is referred to as the “Company” prior to the consummation of the Merger, while AEON is referred to as

the “Company” after the consummation of the Merger. Any reference herein to the “Forward Purchase Agreement” are to be treated as a

reference to each Seller’s separate agreement and should be construed accordingly and any action taken by a Seller should be construed as an

action under its own respective agreement.

Pursuant to the terms of the Forward Purchase Agreements, the Sellers intended, but were not obligated, to purchase up to 7,500,000

shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock in the aggregate concurrently with the Closing pursuant to each Seller’s respective FPA Funding

Amount PIPE Subscription Agreement, less the 236,236 shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock purchased by ACM ARRT J LLC from third

parties through a broker in the open market prior to the Closing, for which all redemption rights were irrevocably waived (such shares, the

“Recycled Shares”). No Seller shall be required to purchase an amount of shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock that would result in that

Seller owning more than 9.9% of the total shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to such

purchase, unless such Seller, at its sole discretion, waives such 9.9% ownership limitation. The Number of Shares subject to a Forward Purchase

Agreement is subject to reduction following a termination of the Forward Purchase Agreements with respect to such shares as described under

“Optional Early Termination” in the respective Forward Purchase Agreements.

Each Forward Purchase Agreement provides that a Seller will be paid directly the Prepayment Amount which was equal to an aggregate of

$66.7 million based on the product of (i) 6,275,000 shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock and (ii) the redemption price per share of $10.63.

On July 21, 2023, the Company was obligated to pay to each Seller separately the Prepayment Amount required under its respective Forward

Purchase Agreement, except that since the Prepayment Amount payable to a Seller was to be paid from the purchase of the Additional Shares

by such Seller pursuant to the terms of its respective FPA Funding Amount PIPE Subscription Agreement, such amount was netted against such

proceeds, with such Seller being able to reduce the purchase price for the Additional Shares by the Prepayment Amount. For the avoidance of

doubt, any Additional Shares purchased by a Seller will be included in the Number of Shares for its respective Forward Purchase Agreement for

all purposes, including for determining the Prepayment Amount. Therefore, the aggregate Prepayment Amount of $66.7 million was netted

against the proceeds paid from the purchase of the Additional Shares in the aggregate by the Sellers pursuant to the FPA Funding Amount PIPE

Subscription Agreements. We did not have access to the Prepayment Amount immediately following the Closing and, depending on the manner

in which the OTC Equity Prepaid Forward Transactions are settled, may never have access to the Prepayment Amount, which may adversely

affect our liquidity and capital needs. The Prepayment Amount of $66.7 million was recorded as Subscription Receivables on the condensed

consolidated
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balance sheets at present value of $60.7 million, with the $6.0 million being recorded to loss on forward purchase agreement derivative contract

and PIPE loss on the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The redemption price per share in the Forward Purchase Agreements is subject to a reset price (the "Reset Price"). The Reset Price was

initially the redemption price per share of $10.63 per share. Beginning 90 days after the Closing, the Reset Price became subject to monthly

resets, to be the lowest of (a) the then-current Reset Price, (b) $10.63 and (c) the 30-day volume-weighted average price of the our Common Stock

immediately preceding such monthly reset. The monthly resets of the Reset Price are subject to a floor of $7.00 per share (the “Reset Price

Floor”); however, if during the term of the Forward Purchase Agreements, we sell or issue any shares of common stock or securities convertible

or exercisable for shares of Common Stock at an effective price of less than the Reset Price (a “Dilutive Offering”), then the Reset Price would

immediately reset to the effective price of such offering and the Reset Price Floor would be eliminated. Additionally, in the event of a Dilutive

Offering, the maximum number of shares available under the Forward Purchase Agreements could be increased if the Dilutive Offering occurs

at a price below $10.00 per shares. The maximum number of shares would be reset to equal 7,500,000 divided by a number equal to the offering

price in the Dilutive Offering divided by $10.00. As of November 10, 2023, the Reset Price is equal to $7.00 per share and the closing price for our

Common Stock was $4.18. Elimination of the Reset Price Floor may result in the Sellers selling the shares covered by the Forward Purchase

Agreements at lower prices and in us receiving less of the Prepayment Amount.

We did not have access to the Prepayment Amount immediately following the Closing and, depending on the manner of settlement for the

transactions covered by the Forward Purchase Agreements, may have limited or no access to the Prepayment Amount, particularly if our

Common Stock continues to trade below the prevailing Reset Price. Further, we may be adoptedrequired to make cash payments to the

counterparties in respect of settlement amounts under the Forward Purchase Agreements, such as in the case of a failure to maintain the

listing of our Common Stock on a national securities exchange. Any of the above scenarios may adversely affect our liquidity and capital needs.

From time to time and on any date following the Merger (any such date, an “OET Date”), any Seller may, in its absolute discretion, terminate

its Forward Purchase Agreement in whole or in part by providing written notice to the Company (the “OET Notice”), no later than the next

Payment Date following the OET Date (which shall specify the quantity by which the Number of Shares shall be reduced (such quantity, the

“Terminated Shares”)). The effect of an OET Notice shall be to reduce the Number of Shares by the Public number of Terminated Shares

specified in such OET Notice with effect as of the related OET Date. As of each OET Date, the Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding

mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement shall be entitled to an amount from the Seller, and the Seller shall pay to the auditor’s report

providing additional information about Company an amount, equal to the audit product of (x) the number of Terminated Shares and (y) the

consolidated financial statements (auditor discussion and analysis) and (iv) disclose certain executive compensation related itemsReset Price

in respect of such asOET Date. The payment date may be changed within a quarter at the correlation between executive compensation and

performance and comparisonsmutual agreement of the CEO’s compensation parties.

The “Valuation Date” will be the earlier to median employee compensation. These exemptions will apply for a periodoccur of five years

following the completion of our IPO or until we are no longer an “emerging growth company,” whichever is earlier.

Contractual Obligations

Administrative Services Agreement

Commencing on (a) the date that our is two years after the Closing Date pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement; (b) the date

specified by Seller in a written notice to be delivered to AEON at such Seller’s discretion (which Valuation Date shall not be earlier than the day

such notice is effective) after the occurrence of any of (w) a VWAP Trigger Event, (x) a Delisting Event, or (y) a Registration Failure (defined terms

in each of clauses (b)(w) through (b)(y), as described in further detail below) and (c) 90 days after delivery by AEON of a written notice in the event

that for any 20 trading days during a 30 consecutive trading day-period that occurs at least 6 months after the Closing Date, the VWAP Price is

less than the current Reset Price Floor of $7.00 per share; provided, however, that the Reset Price may be reduced immediately to any lower

price at which the Company sells, issues or grants any shares or securities are first listedconvertible or exchangeable into shares (other than,

among other things, grants or issuances under the Company’s equity compensation plans, any securities issued in connection with the Merger

or any securities issued in connection with the FPA Funding Amount PIPE Subscription Agreements), subject to certain exceptions, in which

case the Reset Price Floor would be eliminated. Elimination of the Reset Price Floor may result in the Sellers selling the shares covered by the

Forward Purchase Agreements at lower prices and in us receiving less of the Prepayment Amount.

On the Cash Settlement Payment Date, which is the tenth local business day following the last day of the valuation period commencing on

the NasdaqValuation Date, a Seller shall pay the Company a cash amount equal to (1) (A) a maximum of up to 7,500,000 shares of common stock

(the “Number of Shares”) as of the Valuation Date less the number of Unregistered Shares, multiplied by (B) the volume-weighted daily VWAP

Price over the Valuation Period less (2) if the Settlement Amount Adjustment is less than the cash amount to be paid, the Settlement Amount

Adjustment. The Settlement Amount Adjustment is equal to (1) the Number of Shares as of the Valuation Date multiplied by (2) $2.00 per share,
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and the Settlement Amount Adjustment will be automatically netted from the Settlement Amount. For example, if the VWAP Price over the

Valuation Period were equal to the sales price of our Common Stock Market, on
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November 10, 2023, or $4.18, we would receive a cash amount equal to (A) (i) the number of shares to be sold by the Sellers multiplied by (ii) $4.18,

less (B) the product of (i) such number of shares sold by the Sellers multiplied by (ii) $2.00; in other words, the Sellers would be obligated to pay us

$2.18 per share sold by the Sellers. If the Sellers were to sell all 6,275,000 shares of Common Stock purchased at the Closing, the Company would

receive an aggregate of $13.7 million in proceeds, based on such sales price of $4.18. However, if the shares are neither registered for resale

under an effective resale registration statement (the deadline for which is 120 days, subject to certain conditions, after a written request for

registration by a Seller) nor transferable without any restrictions pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of Section 5 of

the Securities Act, including pursuant to Rule 144 (the “Unregistered Shares”), such Unregistered Shares would not be included in the

calculation of the Settlement Amount and the Seller would not be obligated to pay us any amount, but we would still be obligated to pay such

Seller the Settlement Amount Adjustment of $2.00 per share. In such a scenario, if all 6,275,000 shares of Common Stock purchased by the

Sellers at the Closing were Unregistered Shares at settlement, we would potentially owe the Sellers an aggregate of approximately $12.6 million.

If the Settlement Amount Adjustment exceeds the Settlement Amount, the Company will pay the Seller in shares of common stock or, at

the Company’s election, in cash. Under such circumstances, we may not have sufficient shares authorized and may not have sufficient funds or

be able to obtain financing from third parties to pay such amount. Breach by us of any of these obligations could constitute an event of default

under a Forward Purchase Agreement, which could subject us to financial exposure thereunder (including arising from potential

indemnification claims by a Seller).These uncertainties with respect to the number of shares we may be required to issue or amount of cash we

may owe under the Forward Purchase Agreements could materially and adversely affect our ability to raise capital, our liquidity position, our

ability to operate our business and execute our business strategy, and the trading volatility and price of our securities. In addition, future debt

or other contractual agreements may contain cross-default or cross-acceleration provisions that could be triggered if we defaulted on our

obligations to a Seller.The Forward Purchase Agreements would be canceled and all obligations due thereunder would be accelerated in the

event of the bankruptcy of the Company or a sale of the Company for consideration other than stock of another entity. In the event of a tender

offer or a sale of the Company for stock of another company, the terms of the Forward Purchase Agreement would be adjusted to give effect to

the tender offer or sale transaction. Any or all of these consequences could have material adverse consequences for us.

Forward Purchase Agreement Subscription and Letter Agreements

On June 29, 2023, Priveterra entered into separate subscription agreements (the “FPA Funding Amount PIPE Subscription Agreements”) with

each of ACM ARRT J LLC and Polar (collectively, the “FPA Funding PIPE Investors”). Pursuant to the FPA Funding Amount PIPE Subscription

Agreements, the FPA Funding PIPE Investors agreed to paysubscribe for and purchase, and Priveterra agreed to issue and sell to the FPA Funding

PIPE Investors, on the Closing, an aggregate of up to 7,500,000 shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock, less the Recycled Shares in connection

with the Forward Purchase Agreements.

On June 29, 2023, Priveterra entered into separate subscription agreements (the “New Money PIPE Subscription Agreements”) with each of

ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP, the Polar Affiliate and certain other investors (collectively, the “New Money PIPE Investors”). Pursuant to the New

Money PIPE Subscription Agreements, the New Money PIPE Investors subscribed for and purchased, and Priveterra issued and sold to the New

Money PIPE Investors, on the Closing Date, an aggregate of 1,001,000 shares of Priveterra Class A Common Stock for a purchase price of $7.00 per

share, for aggregate gross proceeds of $7.0 million (the “New Money PIPE Investment”).

On June 29, 2023, the Sponsor upentered into separate letter agreements (each, “Letter Agreement” and collectively, the “Letter

Agreements”) with each of ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP and Polar. Pursuant to $25,000the Letter Agreements, in the event that the average

price per month share at which shares of common stock purchased pursuant to the New Money PIPE Subscription Agreements that are

transferred during the period ending on the earliest of (A) June 21, 2025, (B) the date on which the applicable Forward Purchase Agreement

terminates and (C) the date on which all such shares are sold (such price, the “Transfer VWAP”, and such period, the “Measurement Period”) is

less than $7.00 per share, then (i) ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP and Polar shall be entitled to receive from Sponsor a number of additional shares

of common stock that have been registered for administrative resale by us under an effective resale registration statement pursuant to the

Securities Act, under which ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP and other services, Polar may sell or transfer such shares of which $10,000common

stock in an amount that is equal to the lesser of (A) a number of shares of common stock equal to the Make-Whole Amount divided by the VWAP
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(measured as of the date the additional shares are transferred to ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP or Polar, as applicable) and (B) an aggregate of

400,000 shares of common stock (the “Additional Founder Shares”) and (ii) Sponsor shall promptly (but in any event within fifteen (15) business

days) after the Measurement Date, transfer the Additional
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Founder Shares to ACM ASOF VIII Secondary-C LP or Polar, as applicable. “Make-Whole Amount” means an amount equal to the product of (A)

$7.00 minus the Transfer VWAP multiplied by (B) the number of Transferred PIPE Shares. “VWAP” means the per month share volume weighted

average price of the common stock in respect of the five consecutive trading days ending on the trading day immediately prior to the

Measurement Date. “Measurement Date” means the last day of the Measurement Period.

Contingent Consideration

As part of the Merger, Founder Shares and certain Participating Stockholders shares (together, “Contingent Consideration Shares”), as

further discussed below, contain certain contingent provisions.

On April 27, 2023, Priveterra and Old AEON amended the Business Combination Agreement. Concurrently with the amendment to the

Business Combination Agreement, Priveterra amended the Sponsor Support Agreement to include restriction and forfeiture provisions related

to the Founder Shares. In addition following the Closing, certain AEON Stockholders will be paid to the Sponsor for office space and

administrative services provided to members of the management team and up to $15,000 will be used to compensate the Company’s Chief

Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer and Secretary for issued a portion of their time spent on up to 16,000,000 additional shares of

common stock

Pursuant to the Company’s affairs. Upon completion terms of the Business Combination or Sponsor Support Agreement, as amended,

effective immediately after the Company’s liquidation, Closing, 50% of the Company will cease paying these monthly fees.

Registration Rights

Founder Shares (i.e., 3,450,000 Founder Shares) (the “Contingent Founder Shares”) were unvested and subject to the restrictions and forfeiture

provisions set forth in this Sponsor Support Agreement. The initial stockholdersremaining 50% of the Founder Shares and holders100% of the

Private Placement Warrants will be entitledare not subject to registration rights pursuant to a registration rights agreement. such restrictions

and forfeiture provisions. The initial stockholdersContingent Founder Shares shall vest, and holdersshall become free of the Private Placement

Warrants will be entitledprovisions as follows:

●  1,000,000 of the Contingent Founder Shares (the “Migraine Phase 3 Contingent Founder Shares”) shall vest upon the

achievement of the conditions for the issuance of the Migraine Phase 3 Contingent Consideration Shares on or prior to make

upthe Migraine Phase 3 Outside Date;

● 1,000,000 of the Contingent Founder Shares (the “CD BLA Contingent Founder Shares”) shall vest upon the achievement of

the conditions for the issuance of the CD BLA Contingent Consideration Shares on or prior to three demands, excluding short

form registration demands, the CD BLA Outside Date; and

● 1,450,000 of the Contingent Founder Shares (the “Episodic/Chronic Migraine Contingent Founder Shares”) shall vest upon

the earlier of (x) the achievement of the conditions for the issuance of the Episodic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares on

or before the Episodic Migraine Outside Date and (y) the achievement of the conditions for the issuance of the Chronic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares on or before the Chronic Migraine Outside Date.

The Sponsor has agreed not to vote the Contingent Founder Shares during any period of time that register such securities for sale

under Contingent Founder Shares are subject to vesting.

Following the Securities Act. In Closing, in addition these holders will have “piggy-back” registration rights to include their securities in other

registration statements filed by us. We will bear the expenses incurredconsideration received at the Closing and as part of the overall
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consideration paid in connection with the filingMerger, certain holders of common stock in Old AEON (the “Participating AEON Stockholders”)

will be issued a portion of up to 16,000,000 additional shares of common stock, as follows:

●  1,000,000 shares of common stock, in the aggregate, if, on or before June 30, 2025 (as it may be extended, the “Migraine

Phase 3 Outside Date”), the Company shall have commenced a Phase 3 clinical study for the treatment of chronic migraine or

episodic migraine, which Phase 3 clinical study will have been deemed to commence upon the first subject having received a

dose of any product candidate that is being researched, tested, developed or manufactured by or on behalf of the Company or

any of its subsidiaries (any such registration statements. product candidate, a “Company Product”) in connection with such

Phase 3 clinical study (such 1,000,000 shares of common stock, the “Migraine Phase 3 Contingent Consideration Shares”); and

● 4,000,000 shares of common stock, in the aggregate, if, on or before November 30, 2026 (as it may be extended, the “CD BLA

Outside Date”), the Company shall have received from the FDA acceptance for review of the BLA submitted by the Company for

the treatment of cervical dystonia (such 4,000,000 shares of common stock, the “CD BLA Contingent Consideration Shares”);

54

Underwriting Agreement Table of Contents

●  4,000,000 shares of common stock, in the aggregate, if, on or before June 30, 2029 (as it may be extended, the “Episodic

Migraine Outside Date”), the Company shall have received from the FDA acceptance for review of the BLA submitted by the

Company for the treatment of episodic migraine (such 4,000,000 shares of common stock, the “Episodic Migraine Contingent

Consideration Shares”); provided that in the event the satisfaction of the conditions for the issuance of the Episodic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares occurs prior to the satisfaction of the conditions for the issuance of the Chronic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares, then the number of Episodic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares shall be increased to

11,000,000 shares of common stock; and

We granted ● 7,000,000 shares of common stock, in the underwriters a 45-day option aggregate, if, on or before June 30, 2028

(as it may be extended, the “Chronic Migraine Outside Date”, and together with the Migraine Phase 3 Outside Date, the CD BLA

Outside Date and the Episodic Migraine Outside Date, the “Outside Dates”), the Company shall have received from the FDA

acceptance for review of the BLA submitted by AEON for the treatment of chronic migraine (such 7,000,000 shares of common

stock, the “Chronic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares”); provided that in the event that the number of Episodic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares is increased to purchase up11,000,000, then the number of Chronic Migraine Contingent

Consideration Shares shall be decreased to 3,600,000 additional Units to cover any over-allotments, at the IPO price less the

underwriting discountszero and commissions. The warrants that were no Contingent Consideration Shares will be issued in

connection with the 3,600,000 over-allotment Units are identical satisfaction of the conditions to the public warrants and have

no net cash settlement provisions.

We paid an underwriting discount of 2% issuance of the per Unit offering price, Chronic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares.

● In the event that the Company licenses any of its products (except in connection with migraine or approximately $5,520,000

million cervical dystonia indications) to a third-party licensor for distribution in the aggregate at U.S. market (a “Qualifying

License”) prior to the closingsatisfaction of (x) the conditions for the issuance of the IPO, Episodic Migraine Contingent

Consideration Shares and agreed to pay an additional fee (the “Deferred Underwriting Fees”) of 3.5% (y) the conditions for the

issuance of the gross offering proceeds, or approximately $9,660,000 in the aggregate Chronic Migraine Contingent Consideration

Shares, then upon the Company’s completion entry of an Initial Business Combination. The Deferred Underwriting Fees

will AEON into such Qualifying License, 2,000,000 shares of common stock shall become due and payable to Participating

Stockholders and the underwritersnumber of Episodic Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares and (A) the number of Episodic

Migraine Contingent Consideration Shares shall be reduced by 1,000,000 or by 2,000,000 and (B) the number of Chronic Migraine

Contingent Consideration Shares shall be reduced by 1,000,000, but not below zero.

The Company accounts for the Contingent Consideration Shares as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an

assessment of the Contingent Consideration Shares specific terms and applicable authoritative guidance in ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities

from Equity (“ASC 480”) and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”). Based on the amounts held in the Trust Account solely in the

event appropriate guidance, the Company completes its initial Business Combination. On November 16, 2022determined that the Contingent
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Consideration Shares would be classified as a liability on the condensed consolidated balance sheets and remeasured at each reporting period

with changes to fair value recorded to the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, while the founder shares

were recorded to equity. As of September 30, 2023 (Successor), the contingent consideration liability was $72.1 million. For the period from July

22, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (Successor), the income related to the change in fair value of contingent consideration was $69.7 million.

The Company utilized the Probability-Weighted Expected Return Method (PWERM) model to value the contingent consideration based on

earnout milestones, probability of forfeiture and success scenarios. For the successor period July 22, 2023 to September 30, 2023, the Company

and one of the underwriters executed a waiver letter confirming the underwriter’s waiver of its deferred fee under the terms of the

underwriting agreement. As a result, the Company recognized $69.7 million in income of $3,767,400 in relation related to the waiver change in

fair value of contingent consideration on the deferred underwriter fee allocated to the underwriter in the accompanyingcondensed

consolidated financial statements. Asstatements of June 30, 2023operations and December 31, 2022, the deferred underwriting fee payable was

$1,255,800 and $5,892,600, respectively. On January 23, 2023, the Company and a second underwriter executed a waiver letter confirming the

underwriter’s waiver of its deferred fee under the terms of the underwriting agreement which represents an additional $4,636,800 of the

deferred fee as waived. comprehensive loss.

Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our financial statements, which

have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The preparation of condensed

consolidatedthese financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America requires management us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses at the date of the condensed consolidated financial statements

and income andas well as the expenses incurred during the periods reported. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates. We

have not identified any critical accounting policies.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We evaluate reporting period. Generally, we base our financial instruments to determine if such instruments are derivatives or contain

features that qualify as embedded derivativesestimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions in accordance with ASC

Topic 815, “DerivativesUnited States GAAP that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ materially from

these estimates under different assumptions or conditions and Hedging”. Derivative instruments are recorded at fair value on such differences

could be material to the grant date financial position and re-valued at each reporting date, with results of operations. On an ongoing basis, we

evaluate our judgments and estimates in light of changes in the fair value reported in the statements of operations. Derivative

assetscircumstances, facts and experience.
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While our significant accounting policies are more fully described in the notes to our financial statements appearing elsewhere in this

Report, we believe the following accounting policies to be most critical for fully understanding and evaluating our financial condition and

results of operations, as these policies relate to the more significant areas involving management’s judgments and estimates.

Fair Value Option

We elected to account for our convertible promissory notes, warrants, forward purchase agreement and contingent consideration, which

met the required criteria, at fair value at inception. Subsequent changes in fair value are recorded as a component of other (loss) income in the

condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss or as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) for changes

related to instrument-specific credit risk. As a result of electing the fair value option, direct costs and fees related to the liabilities are expensed

as incurred.

Convertible Preferred Stock (Predecessor)

Prior to the Merger, we recorded convertible preferred stock at their respective issuance price, less issuance costs on the dates of issuance.

The convertible preferred stock was classified outside of permanent equity as temporary equity in the accompanying condensed consolidated
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balance sheets. Although the convertible preferred stock was not redeemable, upon certain change in control events that were outside of our

control, including liquidation, sale or transfer of control of us, holders of the convertible preferred stock had the right to receive their

liquidation preference to any distribution of the proceeds under the terms of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation.

Contingent Considerations (Successor)

The Company accounts for its contingent consideration as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an assessment

of the Contingent Consideration Shares specific terms and applicable authoritative guidance in ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity

(“ASC 480”) and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”). Based on the appropriate guidance, the Company determined that the Contingent

Consideration Shares would be classified as a liability on the condensed consolidated balance sheets as current or non-current basedand

remeasured at each reporting period with changes to fair value recorded to the condensed consolidated statements of operations and

comprehensive loss.

Forward Purchase Agreements (Successor)

Based on whether or not net-cash settlement or conversion of the applicable guidance in ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity

(“ASC 480”) and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”), the Company has determined it is a freestanding financial instrument could be

required within 12  months of and the balance sheet date. We have determined the warrants are prepaid forward contract is a derivative

instrument.

FASB ASC 470-20, Debt  The Company has recorded the prepaid forward contract as a derivative liability and measured it at fair value with

Conversion the initial value of the derivative recorded as a loss in the consolidated statements of operations and Other Options

addressescomprehensive loss. Subsequent changes in the allocation of proceeds from the issuance of convertible debt into its equity and debt

components. We apply this guidance to allocate IPO proceeds from the Units between Class A common stock and warrants, using the residual

method by allocating IPO proceeds first to fair value of the warrants and then the Class A common stock.

Investments Held forward purchase agreements are recorded in the Trust Account

Our portfolio of investments held in the Trust Account is comprised of U.S. government securities, within the meaning set forth in Section 2(a)

(16) of the Investment Company Act, with a maturity of 185 days or less, or investments in money market funds that invest in U.S. government

securities, or a combination thereof. The investments held in the Trust Account are classified as trading securities. Trading securities are

presented on the balance sheets at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from the change in fair value of

these securities is included in gain on marketable securities, dividends and interest held in Trust Account in the accompanying unaudited

condensed consolidated statements of operations. The estimated fair values of investments held in the Trust Account were determined using

available market information. operations and comprehensive loss.

Class A Common Stock Subject to Possible Redemption Warrants (Successor)

We account The Company accounts for Class A common stock subject to possible redemption in accordance with warrants as either equity-

classified or liability-classified instruments based on an assessment of the warrant’s specific terms and applicable authoritative guidance in

Accounting Standards Codification FASB ASC 480 and ASC Topic 815, “Derivatives and Hedging” (“ASC” ASC 815”) Topic 480 “Distinguishing

Liabilities from Equity.” Class A common stock subject to mandatory redemption (if any) is classified as a liability instrument and is measured at

fair value. Conditionally redeemable Class A common stock (including Class A common stock that feature redemption rights that are either

within the control of the holder or subject to redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within the Company’s control) is

classified as temporary equity. At all other times, Class A common stock is classified as stockholders’ equity. Our Class A common stock features

certain redemption rights that is considered to be outside of the Company’s control and subject to the occurrence of uncertain future events.

Accordingly, Class A common stock subject to possible redemption is presented at redemption value as temporary equity, outside of the

stockholders’ deficit section of the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Net (Loss) Income Per Share

We have two classes of common shares, which are referred to as Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. Earnings and losses are

shared pro rata between the two classes of stock. Private and public warrants to purchase 14,480,000 Class A Common Stock at $11.50 per share

were issued on February 8, 2021. No warrants were exercised during the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. The calculation of

diluted (loss) income per common share does not consider the effect of the warrants issued in connection with the (i) IPO, (ii) exercise of over-

allotment, and (iii) Private Placement since the exercise of assessment considers whether the warrants are contingent upon freestanding

financial instruments pursuant to ASC 480, meet the occurrence definition of future events. As a result, diluted net (loss) income per liability

pursuant to ASC 480, and whether the warrants meet all of the requirements for equity classification under ASC 815, including whether the

warrants are indexed to the Company’s own shares of common share is the same as basic net (loss) income per common share stock, among
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other conditions for the periods. Accretion associated with the redeemable Class A Common Stock is excluded from (loss) income per share as

the redemption value approximates fair value.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-13, Financial Instruments-

Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, equity classification. This assessment, which requires entities

to measure all expected credit losses for financial assets heldthe use of professional judgment, is conducted at the reportingtime of warrant

issuance and as of each subsequent quarterly period end date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and

supportable forecasts. ASU 2016-13 also requireswhile the warrants are outstanding. For issued or modified warrants that meet all of the

criteria for equity classification, the warrants are required to be recorded as a component of additional disclosures regarding significant

estimates and judgments used in estimating credit losses, as well aspaid-in capital at the credit quality and underwriting standardstime of an

entity’s portfolio. The Company adoptedissuance. For issued or modified warrants that do not meet all the provisions of this guidance on

January 1, 2023. The adoption did not have a material impact criteria for equity classification, the warrants are required to be recorded at their

initial fair value on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements.

Besidesdate of issuance, and each balance sheet date thereafter until settlement. Changes in the above, the Company’s management does not

believe that any other recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards if currently adopted would have a material effect on the

accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements.
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estimated fair value of the warrants are recognized as a non-cash gain or loss on the condensed consolidated statements of operations and

comprehensive loss.

Share-based Compensation

Immediately prior to the Closing, ABP merged with and into us so that we are the surviving corporation, which we refer to as the Subsidiary

Merger. Pursuant to the Subsidiary Merger, all options and RSU awards of ABP that are outstanding immediately prior to the merger converted

into substantially similar awards covering shares of our common stock, with an adjustment to the number of shares subject to the award and,

with respect to the options, the exercise price to reflect the economic value of the new award within our capital structure. Additionally, we, in

each case, determined the conversion ratio of the ABP awards by dividing the number of shares of our common stock outstanding on an as-

converted basis by the number of shares of common stock of ABP outstanding, and then dividing by a number equal to the number of ABP

options outstanding divided by the number of ABP awards outstanding plus the ABP shares held by the Company to account for the awards

representing 21.63% of ABP’s fully diluted shares outstanding. This resulted in a conversion ratio of 77.65 to 1 shares. As of the date of this

Report, ABP had granted options to purchase a total of 45,272 ABP Sub options which converted into options to purchase 3,515,218 shares of our

common stock, and a total of 15,059 RSU awards which converted into RSU awards covering 1,169,366 shares of our common stock, although

127,801 of such RSU awards accelerated and vested at the Closing, which resulted in 1,041,565 shares of our common stock subject to RSU awards

remaining outstanding following the Closing. We do not anticipate any additional stock-based compensation expense to result from the ABP

merger and the conversion of the awards.

The following table summarizes by grant date the number of shares of our common stock subject to outstanding stock options and RSU

awards granted from September 2020 through September 30, 2023 reflecting the conversion described in the preceding paragraph, as well as the

per share fair value of the underlying common stock, and for stock options, the associated per share exercise price:

# of Shares Underlying

Option CommonStock

Grants/ ExercisePrice Value PerShare

Grant Date RSU Award per Share on Grant Date

2/26/2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 154,207 $12.98 $12.98

3/5/2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 104,047 $12.98 $12.98
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8/23/2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 223,235 $13.45 $13.45

9/9/2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 324,448 $14.93 $14.93

10/20/2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,068 $14.14 $14.14

10/25/2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,024 $14.14 $14.14

3/9/2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 972,919 $11.57 $11.57

10/5/2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,456 $11.57 $11.57

4/26/2023 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,169,366 $ — $ 7.00

In connection with the Subsidiary Merger, AEON assumed the ABP 2019 Plan and the outstanding stock options and RSU awards under the

ABP 2019 Plan converted into awards covering AEON common stock, and such options, all of which have “underwater” exercise prices, were

repriced such that the per share exercise price is equal to the fair market value of AEON’s common stock on the date of the Subsidiary Merger.

JOBS Act; Smaller Reporting Company

We are an emerging growth company, as defined in the Securities Act, as modified by the JOBS Act. For so long as we remain an emerging

growth company, we are permitted and intend to rely on certain exemptions from various public company reporting requirements, including

not being required to have our internal control over financial reporting audited by our independent registered

57

Table of Contents

public accounting firm pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in

our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a non-binding advisory vote on executive

compensation and any golden parachute payments not previously approved. In particular, in this Report, we have provided only two years of

audited financial statements and unaudited financial statements and have not included all of the executive compensation- related

information that would be required if we were not an emerging growth company. Section 102(b)(2) of the JOBS Act allows us to delay adoption of

the new or revised accounting standards until those standards apply to non-public business entities. Accordingly, the information contained

herein may be different than the information you receive from other public companies in which you hold stock.

We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of (i) the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of

Priveterra’s initial public offering (December 31, 2026), (ii) the last day of the fiscal year in which we have total annual gross revenue of at least

$1.235 billion, (iii) the last day of the fiscal year in which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the

Exchange Act, which would occur if the market value of our common stock held by non-affiliates exceeded $700.0 million as of the last business

day of the second fiscal quarter of such year, or (iv) the date on which we have issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt securities

during the prior three-year period.

We are also a “smaller reporting company,” as such term is defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act, meaning that the market value of our

common stock held by non-affiliates plus the proposed aggregate amount of gross proceeds to us as a result of this offering is less than $700

million and our annual revenue is less than $100 million during the most recently completed fiscal year. We will continue to be a smaller

reporting company if either (i) the market value of our common stock held by non-affiliates is less than $250 million or (ii) our annual revenue is

less than $100 million during the most recently completed fiscal year and the market value of our common stock held by non-affiliates is less

than $700 million. If we are a smaller reporting company at the time we cease to be an emerging growth company, we may continue to rely on

exemptions from certain disclosure requirements that are available to smaller reporting companies.

Specifically, as a smaller reporting company, we may choose to present only the two most recent fiscal years of audited financial

statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and, similar to emerging growth companies, smaller reporting companies have reduced

disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation. Investors could find our common stock less attractive to the extent we rely on these

exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our common

stock and the trading price may be more volatile.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
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We describe the recently issued accounting pronouncements that apply to us in Note 2 of the condensed consolidated financial

statements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. Risk

We are The Company is a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and are is not required to provide the

information otherwise required under this item. Item.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures. Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in our Exchange Act reports is

recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specifiedspecific in the SEC’sSEC rules and forms, and that such

information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer or

persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As required by Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer carried out an

evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2023September 30, 2023. As

previously disclosed, on July 21, 2023, AEON completed a Merger with Old AEON and Merger Sub, pursuant to which Merger
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Sub merged with and into Old AEON, with Old AEON surviving the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of AEON. Prior to the Merger, Priveterra

was a special purpose acquisition company formed for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock

purchase, reorganization, or other similar business combination with one or more target businesses. As a result, previously existing internal

controls are no longer applicable or comprehensive enough as of the assessment date considering the Company’s operations prior to the

Merger were insignificant compared to those of the Post-Combination Company. The design and implementation of internal controls over

financial reporting for the Post-Combination Company has required and will continue to require significant time and resources from

management and other personnel. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have assessment, we

concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective because of a for this assessment period due to the material weakness

in our connection with Priveterra’s internal control over financial reporting. controls around the interpretation and accounting for

extinguishment of a significant contingent obligation as of December 31, 2022 that were not effectively designed or maintained. A material

weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility

that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Specifically, the Company’s management has concluded that our control around the interpretation and accounting for extinguishment of a

significant contingent obligation was not effectively designed or maintained. In light of this material weakness, we performed additional

analysis as deemed necessary to ensure that our financial statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP. Accordingly, management

believes that the financial statements included in this Form 10-Q present fairly in all material respects our financial position, results of

operations and cash flows for the period presented.

Remediation Status of a Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Report Reporting

We recognize the importance of the control environment as it sets the overall tone for the Company and is the foundation for all other

components of internal control. Consequently, we designed and implemented remediation measures

Management continues to addressbe actively engaged to take steps to remediate the material weakness, previously identifiedincluding

transition of financial reporting responsibilities from Priveterra to AEON and enhance our internal control over financial reporting. In light of

the material weakness, we enhanced our processes to identify and appropriately apply applicable accounting requirements to better evaluate

and understand the nuances of the complex accounting standards that apply to our condensed consolidated financial statements, including

providing enhanced access to accounting literature, research materials and documents, and increased communication among our personnel

and third-party professionals with whom we consult regarding complex accounting applications.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Except as discussed

Management has continued to take action to remediate the material weakness during the quarterly period ended September 30, 2023.

However, the material weakness will not be considered remediated until management designs and implements effective controls that operate

for a sufficient period of time and management has concluded, through testing, that these controls are effective.

Other than described above, there were no has not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting except as discussed

above, (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of 15(d)-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the most recent fiscal quarter  to

which this Report relates that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial

reporting.
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PART II -— OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings. Proceedings

None. On September 18, 2023, Odeon Capital Group LLC (“Odeon”) filed a lawsuit against the Company in the Supreme Court of the State of

New York, alleging that the Company failed to pay Odeon’s deferred underwriting fee of $1.25 million. Odeon claims that it served as the

underwriter for Priveterra Acquisition Corp., the special purpose acquisition company with which Old AEON merged with and into in July 2023.

Odeon seeks monetary damages for the full amount of its claimed underwriting fee, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and other amounts. The

Company has yet to file a response to Odeon’s complaint.

Item 1A. Risk Factors. Factors

Factors that could cause We are subject to various risks and uncertainties in the course of our actual results to differ materially from those

in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are anybusiness. For a discussion of such risks and uncertainties, please see the risks describedsection in

our Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2022 asS-1, initially filed with the SEC on April 10, 2023. Any of these factors could result in a

significant or August 18, 2023, and as amended on October 20, 2023 titled “Risk Factors.” There have been no material adverse effect on our

results of operations or financial condition. Additional changes to the risk factors not presently known to us or that we currently deem

immaterial may also impair our business or results of operations.

In addition, on March 30, 2022, the SEC issued proposed rules relating to, among other items, enhancing disclosures in business combination

transactions involving special purpose acquisition companies and private operating companies; amending the financial statement

requirements applicable to transactions involving shell companies; enhancing disclosures regarding projections in SEC filings in connection

with proposed business combination transactions; increasing the potential liability of certain participants in proposed business combination

transactions; and the extent to which special purpose acquisition companies could become subject to regulation under the Investment

Company Act of 1940. These rules, if adopted, whether in the form proposed or in revised form, may materially adversely affect our ability to

engage financial and capital market advisors, negotiate and complete our initial business combination and may increase the costs and time

relate thereto. disclosed therein.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds. Proceeds

On December 17, 2020, our Sponsor purchased an aggregate of 5,750,000 founder shares for a purchase price of $25,000, or approximately

$0.004 per share, of which up to 900,000 shares were subject to forfeiture if During the over-allotment option was not exercised by the

underwriters in full. As a result of the underwriters’ election to fully exercise of their over-allotment option, the 900,000 shares are no longer

subject to forfeiture. On February 8, 2021fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2023, as part of an upsizing of our IPO, we effected a stock split in

which each issued share of Class B common stock that was outstanding was converted into one and two tenths shares of Class B common stock,

resulting in an aggregate of 6,900,000 shares of Class B common stock issued and outstanding.
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Prior to the initial investment in the company of $25,000 by our Sponsor, the Company haddid not make any unregistered issuances or sales of

equity securities that were not reported in a Current Report on Form 8-K.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

During the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2023, no assets, tangible director or intangible. The per share price was determined by

dividing the amount of cash contributed to the company by the number of founder shares issued.

Our Sponsor is an accredited investor for purposes of Rule 501 of Regulation D. Each of the equity holders in our Sponsor is an accredited

investor under Rule 501 of Regulation D. The sole business of our Sponsor is to act as the Company’s sponsor in connection with this offering.

The limited liability company agreement of our Sponsor provides that its membership interests may only be transferred to our officers or

directors or other persons affiliated with our Sponsor, or in connection with estate planning transfers.

Substantially concurrently with the closing of our IPO, pursuant to the Private Placement Warrants Purchase Agreement, the Company

completed the private sale of an aggregate of 5,213,333 warrants (the “Private Placement Warrants”) to our Sponsor at a purchase price of $1.50

per Private Placement Warrant, generating gross proceeds to the Company of $7,820,000. The Private Placement Warrants are identical to the

Warrants sold in the IPO, except that the Private Placement Warrants, so long as they are held by our Sponsor or its permitted transferees, (i)

are not redeemable by the Company, (ii) may not (including the Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of such Private Placement

Warrants), subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by such holders until 30 days after the completion of the

Company’s initial business combination, (iii) may be exercised by the holders on a cashless basis and (iv) will be entitled to registration rights. No

underwriting discounts or commissions were paid with respect to such sale. The issuance of the Private Placement Warrants was made

pursuant to the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

On June 28, 2021, the Sponsor elected to convert $100,000 of outstanding principal amount under the Working Capital Loans into, and the

Company has issued, warrants to purchase 66,6667 shares of Class A common stock officer of the Company at adopted or terminated a purchase

price “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or a “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” (in each case, as defined in Item 408 of $11.50 per share,

subject to adjustment as described in the Private Placement Warrants Purchase Agreement. Such warrants are identical to the Private

Placement Warrants issued to the Sponsor in connection with our IPO. The issuance of such warrants was made pursuant to the exemption

from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Regulation S-K).

Item 6. Exhibits

See Exhibit Index.
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Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information.

None.

Item 6. Exhibits. EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number No. Description

31.1* 2.1* Business Combination Agreement, dated as of December 12, 2022, by and among Priveterra Acquisition Corp., Priveterra Merger Sub, Inc.

and AEON Biopharma, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Form 8-K filed by Priveterra Acquisition Corp. with the SEC on

December 13, 2022)

2.1(a)* Amendment No. 1 to Business Combination Agreement, dated as of April 27, 2023, by and among Priveterra Acquisition Corp., AEON

Biopharma, Inc. and Priveterra Merger Sub, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Form 8-K filed by Priveterra Acquisition Corp.

with the SEC on May 1, 2023)

3.1 Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of AEON Biopharma, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 8-K

filed by the Company on July 27, 2023)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of AEON Biopharma, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on

July 27, 2023)

4.1 Warrant Agreement between Priveterra Acquisition Corp. and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, dated as of February 8, 2021

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 10-K filed by Priveterra Acquisition Corp. with the SEC on March 28, 2022)

4.2 Specimen Warrant Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 10-K filed by Priveterra Acquisition Corp. with the SEC on

March 28, 2022)

10.1+ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, by and between AEON Biopharma, Inc. and Marc Forth (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.11 to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on July 27, 2023)

10.2+ Employment Agreement, by and between AEON Biopharma, Inc. and Chad Oh (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Form 8-K

filed by the Company on July 27, 2023)

10.3+ Employment Agreement, by and between AEON Biopharma, Inc. and Alex Wilson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Form 8-K

filed by the Company on July 27, 2023)

10.4+ Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 21, 2023, by and between AEON Biopharma, Inc. and the stockholders

party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on July 27, 2023)

31.1† Certification of Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.2002

31.2† Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1† Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

32.2† Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

101.INS† XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are

embedded within the Inline XBRL document

101.SCH† XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL† XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF† XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB† XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE† XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104† Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

† Filed herewith.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1837607/000110465923084851/tm2314948d1_ex3-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1837607/000110465923084851/tm2314948d1_ex3-2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1837607/000110465921021987/tm2039147d12_ex4-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1837607/000110465921021987/tm2039147d12_ex4-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1837607/000110465923084851/tm2314948d1_ex10-11.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1837607/000110465923084851/tm2314948d1_ex10-12.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1837607/000110465923084851/tm2314948d1_ex10-13.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1837607/000110465923084851/tm2314948d1_ex10-20.htm
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* The annexes, schedules, and certain exhibits to this Exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. The Company

hereby agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted annex, schedule or exhibit to the SEC upon request.

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by

the undersigned, duly authorized.

Date: November 13, 2023

AEON BIOPHARMA, INC.

31.2* By: /s/ Marc Forth

Name: Marc Forth

Title: President, Chief Executive Officer

Certification of Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and

Accounting (Principal Executive Officer) Pursuant to Rules 13a-

14(a)  and 15d-14(a)  under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as

Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1** By: /s/ Peter Reynolds

Name: Peter Reynolds

Title: Chief Financial Officer

Certification of Chief Executive(Principal Financial Officer (Principal

Executiveand Principal Accounting Officer) Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2** Certification of Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer) Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and

contained in Exhibit 101)
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* Filed herewith.

** These certifications are furnished to the SEC pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and are deemed not filed for

purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, nor shall they be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing

under the Securities Act of 1933, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.
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PART III

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

By: /s/ Oleg Grodnensky

Name: Oleg Grodnensky

Title: Chief Financial Officer

Dated: July 21, 2023

3262

EXHIBIT Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a)

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert Palmisano, Marc Forth, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 of Priveterra Acquisition
Corp.AEON Biopharma, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officersofficer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
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a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. [Paragraph omitted pursuant Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238/34-47986be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 33-8392/34-49313]; the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officersofficer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controlscontrol over financial reporting.

Date:

July 21, 2023

Dated:  November

13, 2023

By: /s/ Robert

Palmisano Marc Forth

Name:Robert

Palmisano Marc

Forth

Title: Chief Executive

Officer

(Principal

Executive

Officer)

EXHIBIT Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a)

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Oleg Grodnensky, Peter Reynolds, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 of Priveterra Acquisition
Corp.AEON Biopharma, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;
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3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officersofficer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is

made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. [Paragraph omitted pursuant Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238/34-47986be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 33-8392/34-49313];
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this

report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has

materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officersofficer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial

information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the

registrant’s internal controlscontrol over financial reporting.

Date:

July 21, 2023

Dated:  November

13, 2023

By: /s/ Oleg

Grodnensky Peter

Reynolds

Name:Oleg

Grodnensky Peter

Reynolds

Title: Chief Financial

Officer

(Principal

Financial

Officer)

EXHIBIT Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
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Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section § 1350, as adopted pursuant to created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, the

undersigned officer of AEON Biopharma, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifies, to the best of my knowledge: knowledge, that:

(1)
(i)

the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2023 (the

“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934; and

(2)

(ii)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company.

Date:

July 21, 2023

Dated:  November

13, 2023

By: /s/ Robert

Palmisano Marc Forth

Name:Robert

Palmisano Marc

Forth

Title: Chief Executive

Officer

(Principal

Executive

Officer)

EXHIBIT Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TOOF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Priveterra Acquisition Corp. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June

30, 2023, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Oleg Grodnensky, Chief

Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section § 1350, as adopted pursuant to created by Section

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, the undersigned officer of AEON Biopharma, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifies, to

the best of my knowledge: knowledge, that:

(1)
(i)

the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2023 (the

“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934; and

(2)

(ii)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company.

Date:

July 21, 2023

Dated:  November

13, 2023

By: /s/ Oleg

Grodnensky Peter

Reynolds

Name:Oleg

Grodnensky Peter

Reynolds

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us

©2023 Refi nitiv.  Al l  rights reserved. Republ ication or redistribution of Refi nitiv content, including
by fram ing or sim i lar m eans, is prohibi ted
w ithout the prior w ri tten consent of Refi nitiv.  'Refi nitiv' and the Refi nitiv logo  are
registered tradem arks of Refi nitiv and i ts affi l iated
com panies.

94/95

Title: Chief Financial

Officer

(Principal

Financial

Officer)
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DISCLAIMER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE REFINITIV
CORPORATE DISCLOSURES DELTA REPORT™ IS A COMPARISON OF TWO FINANCIALS
PERIODIC REPORTS. THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR
INACCURACIES IN THE REPORT INCLUDING THE TEXT AND THE
COMPARISON DATA AND TABLES. IN NO WAY DOES REFINITIV OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME
ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY
INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS REPORT. USERS ARE ADVISED TO
REVIEW
THE APPLICABLE COMPANY’S ACTUAL SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS.
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